
 

North Liberty City Council 
Regular Session 

March 8, 2022 



 

City Administrator Memo 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To Mayor and City Council 
From Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Date March 4, 2022 
Re City Council Agenda March 8, 2022 

 

Meeting Note 
Tuesday’s meeting will be held in person as well as live 
streamed at Watch Meetings Live. 

Consent Agenda 
The following items are on the consent agenda and 
included in the packet: 
• City Council Minutes (02/22/2022) 
• Claims 
• Liquor License Renewals 

o Quail Creek Golf Course 
o Blue Bird Café  

 
 
 
 
 

 
Meetings & Events 

 
Tuesday, March 8 at 
6:30p.m. City Council 

 
Monday, March 14 at 7:00 
p.m. Library Board 
 
Tuesday, March 15 Special 
Election   
 
Tuesday, March 22 at 6:30 
p.m. City Council  
 
Wednesday, March 23 at 4:00 
p.m. Council Goal Setting  

 

Stiltner Site Plan Amendment 
This industrial site plan proposes a 9,000 square foot standalone building at 340 Herky St. 
The metal building will match the existing Stiltner Electric building and will contain the 
required amount of masonry. The Planning Commission unanimously recommended 
approval of the site plan at its February 1, 2022 meeting. A storm water maintenance 
agreement is also required by City Code. Staff also recommends approval of both the site 
plan and the agreement. 
 

FY23 Budget 
The agenda includes a second and final public hearing and resolution approving the 
FY23   budget and the Capital Improvements Plan. The proposed budget has a tax rate 
of $11.32. Full details of the FY23 budget can be found in the final budget documents 
(the budget model and CIP), which are included in the packet. Staff recommends 
approval of the resolution and FY23 budget. 



 
Solomon Holdings, LLC Rezoning  
Solomon Holdings, LLC is requesting a zoning map amendment to two residential districts 
and one commercial district on 71.48 acres, situated north of Penn Street, south of 240th 
Street, and west of future North Jones Boulevard.  
 
The rezoning will allow development of a variety of housing types and unspecified 
commercial uses: 
 

• The RS-9 Single-Unit Dwelling District was created in 2017 to allow smaller lots. 50’ 
wide lots would be toward the north end of the property and 60’ wide lots would 
be more toward the interior. If approved, this would be the first RS-9 zoned 
subdivision in the City.  

 
• The RM-21 Multiple-Unit Dwelling District portion would facilitate a higher-end 

apartment development with amenities such a clubhouse with a pool, walking trails 
and a pier. The concept plan depicts 420 units in nine buildings, so this would be a 
large development that would take several years to build out. Staff is requiring a 
traffic study to analyze the traffic distribution and to ensure there are no traffic 
safety concerns.  

 
• The W. Penn Street frontage would contain four C-2-A zoned lots. There would be 

a public street between the commercial and multi-family development, which 
would allow access for both developments.  

 
Construction of the roadway, multi-use trail and utilities is anticipated to begin in the 
spring. The applicant is working on the design of the preliminary subdivision plat for the 
overall development and preliminary site plan for the multi-family development. Recently 
approved Zoning Code amendments regarding submission requirements for preliminary 
site plans has facilitated an “entire property approach” to the design because fully 
engineered construction plans are not required at this stage of the process.  
 
From a land use perspective, it is staff’s opinion that this is an ideal location for a high-
intensity development as the only residentially-zoned properties are to the north, across 
240th Street. Considering there is a need for park space in the northwest portion of the 
City, staff has begun a dialogue with the property owner regarding the acquisition of park 
space east of future N. Jones Blvd. Approximately 15 people attended the January 27, 
2022 good neighbor meeting. Neighbors in attendance had general questions regarding 
the style of development. One attendee expressed concern over conflict points with the 
multi-use trail and the accesses into the development. Staff notes that no lot would have 
direct access to N. Jones Boulevard.  
 
 
 



Staff and the Planning Commission are recommending approval subject to the preliminary 
plat and preliminary site plan being approved at the third and final reading of the rezoning. 
Again, the plan submittal requirements are lessened and this would help ensure the 
development is consistent with what has been presented. It is anticipated that the 
Planning Commission would consider the preliminary plat and preliminary site plan at the 
April 5, 2022 meeting. 

 
Smoke Free Places Ordinance Amendment 
Johnson County Public Health recommended an amendment of the Smoke-free Air Act 
to the Park Board on January 6.  The Park Board has in turn recommended the Council 
adopt an amendment to the City Code designating City parks and trails as tobacco and 
nicotine-free places. Council is asked to consider a first reading of the amendment. 

 
Vintage Estates PAD Amendment  
Vintage Estates of North Liberty is requesting an amendment to a previously approved 
RS-4 PAD Single-Unit Residence Planned Area Development – west side of S. Jones 
Boulevard west of the western terminus of Cory Court – to reduce the rear yard setback 
from 30’ to 25’ adjacent to the north and west property lines. The applicant indicated that 
the request is to allow a couple of the units to have slightly larger units and/or patios. The 
rest of the development would remain as previously approved. Considering the style of 
the development (age-restricted, no individual lots) a rear yard setback reduction would 
not be a significant impact.  A good neighbor meeting was held on January 24, 2022.  A 
few residents attended to better understand the purpose of the request. The Planning 
Commission unanimously recommended approval of the request at its February 1 
meeting. Staff recommends approval as well.  

 
The applicant has request that the third and final reading be waived so construction of the 
units may begin a little earlier. Staff has no objection to this request and there is very little 
change to the overall development. 
 



 

Agenda 



 

City of North Liberty – 2022   Updated March 4, 2022 12:00 p.m. 
Page: 1 

City Council 
March 8, 2022 

6:30 p.m. 
Regular Session  

Council Chambers  
1 Quail Creek Circle 

1. Call to order   
 

2. Roll call 
 

3. Approval of the Agenda 
 
4. Consent Agenda 

A. City Council Minutes, Regular Session, February 22, 2022 
B. Claims 
C. Liquor License Renewal, Quail Creek Golf Course 
D. Liquor License Renewal, Blue Bird Café  

 
5. Public Comment 

 
6. City Engineer Report  

 
7. City Administrator Report  

 
8. Mayor Report 

A. Proclamation – Honey Bee Day 
 

9. Council Reports 
 

10. Stiltner Site Plan Amendment 
A. Staff and Commission recommendations 
B. Applicant presentation 
C. Resolution Number 2022-19, A Resolution approving the Amended 

Development Site Plan for Lot 2 Resubdivision of Lot 10, I-380 Industrial 
Park, North Liberty, Iowa  

D. Resolution Number 2022-20, A Resolution approving the Stormwater 
Management Facilities Maintenance and Easement between the City of 
North Liberty and TSS Investments, LLC that establishes the terms and 
conditions under with storm water management facilities will be maintained 
for the Stiltner Electric Development in the City of North Liberty, Iowa  

 
 



City of North Liberty – 2022  Updated March 4, 2022 12:00 p.m. 
Page: 2 

11. Annual Budget and Capital Improvements Plan FY 2023 
A. Public Hearing regarding proposed annual budget for fiscal year 2023 
B. Resolution Number 2022-21, A Resolution adopting the Annual Budget and 

Capital Improvements Plan for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2023 for the 
City of North Liberty, Iowa  

 
12. Solomon Holdings, LLC Zoning Map Amendment 

A. Staff and Planning Commission Recommendations 
B. Applicant Presentation 
C. Public Hearing regarding proposed zoning map amendment  
D. First consideration of Ordinance Number 2022-07, An Ordinance amending 

Chapter 167 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances by amending the use 
regulations on property located on the north side of West Penn Street west 
of North Jones Boulevard as extended northerly from West Penn Street to 
240th Street located in North Liberty, Iowa to those set forth in the Municipal 
Code for the RS-9 Single-Unit Residence District, RM-21 Multiple-Unit 
Residence District and C-2-A Highway Commercial District  
 

13. Smoke Free Places 
A. Public Hearing regarding proposed amendment regarding smoking in parks 

and on trails  
B. First consideration of Ordinance Number 2022-06, An Ordinance Amending 

Chapter 49 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances to prohibit smoking in 
parks and on trails  

 
14. Vintage Estates PAD Amendment 

A. Second consideration of Ordinance Number 2022-05, An Ordinance 
amending the Vintage Estates RS-4 PAD Single-Unit Residence Planned 
Area Development by reducing the rear yard setback from 30 feet to 25 feet 
adjacent to the north and west property line on property located on the west 
side of South Jones Boulevard west of western terminus of Cory Court 
located in North Liberty, Iowa 

B. Consideration of waiving the requirement to have an ordinance read on three 
separate dates 

C. Third consideration and adoption of Ordinance Number 2022-05, An 
Ordinance amending the Vintage Estates RS-4 PAD Single-Unit Residence 
Planned Area Development by reducing the rear yard setback from 30 feet 
to 25 feet adjacent to the north and west property line on property located 
on the west side of South Jones Boulevard west of western terminus of Cory 
Court located in North Liberty, Iowa  

 
 



City of North Liberty – 2022  Updated March 4, 2022 12:00 p.m. 
Page: 3 

 
15. Old Business 
 
16. New Business 

 
17. Adjournment  



 

Consent Agenda 



 

City of North Liberty – 2022 
Page: 1 

City Council 
February 22, 2022 

Regular Session 
 
Call to order   
Mayor Chris Hoffman called the February 22, 2022 Regular Session of the North Liberty City 
Council to order at 6:32 p.m. Councilors present: RaQuishia Harrington, Erek Sittig, Brent Smith, 
Brian Wayson; absent –none. 
 
Others present: Ryan Heiar, Tracey Mulcahey, Ryan Rusnak, Kevin Trom, Grant Lientz, Dustin 
Opatz, Angela McConville, Gerry Kuhl and other interested parties.  
 
Approval of the Agenda 
Harrington moved; Wayson seconded to approve the agenda with moving the board appointment 
before the Audit presentation. The vote was all ayes. Agenda approved.    
 
Consent Agenda 
Smith moved, Harrington seconded to approve the Consent Agenda including the City Council 
Minutes from the Regular Session on February 8, 2022; the attached list of claims; the liquor 
license renewal for Pancheros; Pay Application Number 10 for the Ranshaw Way Phase 5 Project 
for Petersen Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $16,228.97. The vote was all ayes. Consent Agenda 
approved.   
 
Public Comment 
No public comment was offered.  
 
City Engineer Report  
City Engineer Trom reported that the Dubuque Street Phase 1 Project preconstruction meeting is 
scheduled for March 1 with a late start date of March 23.  Meetings are being scheduled with 
directly impacted property owners.  The Jones Boulevard extension project design work is almost 
complete.  Council discussed the report with Trom.  
 
City Administrator Report  
City Administrator Heiar reported that Department Heads are meeting tomorrow for Goal Setting 
session ahead of Council’s March 23 Goal Setting Session that will start at 4 p.m.  At the next City 
Council meeting, first consideration of the smoke free parks ordinance will be on the agenda.  
 
Mayor Report 
Mayor Hoffman proclaimed March 10, 2022 as Kidney Day and March 2022 as Kidney Month. Dr. 
Lee Sanders was present representing the National Kidney Foundation.   
 



City of North Liberty – 2022 
Page: 2 

Mayor Hoffman reported that he attended his last Think Iowa City Board meeting.  Councilor 
Harrington will be stepping into the role.  He spoke at the North Liberty Baptist Church last week 
and attended the ICAD breakfast last Thursday.  
 
Council Reports 
Councilor Harrington attended the Business Partnership banquet and reported on the 
presentation.  Councilor Smith offered feedback he obtained on owners from along Ranshaw Way.  
Councilor Sittig attended the Business Partnership banquet.  He plans to attend Affordable 
Housing Coalition meeting on Friday. He attended Racism and Social Justice meeting. Mayor 
Hoffman reminded that there is a special election to fill Council vacancy on March 15 with three 
candidates on the ballot.  
 
Park Board Appointment 
Harrington moved, Sittig seconded to affirm the appointment of Laura Olds to fill a vacancy on 
the Park Board. The vote was all ayes. Appointment affirmed.  
 
FY 2021 Audit  
Dustin Opatz from BerganKDV presented the Report for Fiscal Year 2021.  Council discussed the 
report with Opatz.   
  
Harrington moved, Sittig seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-12, A Resolution 
accepting the Audit Report for Fiscal Year 2021 as completed by BerganKDV. The vote was: ayes 
– Wayson, Smith Sittig, Harrington; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Transit Presentation 
Angela McConville, Special Project Coordinator, presented an update on the City’s transit 
programs.  Council discussed the presentation with McConville.  Gerry Kuhl offered information 
on the Transit Committee.  Jim Jetter offered an observation on transit in North Liberty. 

 
Maximum Levy FY 2023 
At 7:44 p.m., Mayor Hoffman opened the public hearing regarding proposed maximum levy for 
fiscal year 2023. No oral or written comments were received. The public hearing was closed.  
 
Wayson moved, Smith seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-13, A Resolution approving 
the maximum tax dollars from certain levies for the City of North Liberty’s proposed budget for 
fiscal year 2022-2023.  After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Smith, Sittig, Harrington, Wayson; 
nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
North Liberty Newspaper of Record 
Harrington moved, Sittig seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-14, A Resolution 
approving the designation of The Gazette as the official newspaper for the City of North Liberty. 
After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Smith, Wayson, Sittig, Harrington; nays – none. Motion 
carried.   

 



City of North Liberty – 2022 
Page: 3 

Right of Way Acquisition – Christine Grant Elementary 
Harrington moved, Sittig seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-15, A Resolution 
accepting the Warranty Deed from Iowa City Community School District to the City of North 
Liberty for the establishment of right of way.  After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Wayson, Smith, 
Sittig, Harrington; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
Right of Way Acquisition – Jones Boulevard Project  
Harrington moved, Sittig seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-16, A Resolution 
approving the purchase of right of way and a temporary construction easement for the Jones 
Boulevard Extension Project. After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Harrington, Wayson, Sittig, 
Smith; nays – none. Motion carried.   

 
Emergency Siren Contract 
Harrington moved, Wayson seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-17, A Resolution 
approving the Statement of Work Contract between the City of North Liberty and Frontline Plus 
Fire and Rescue. After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Harrington, Smith, Wayson, Sittig; nays – 
none. Motion carried.   
 
Assessment Resolution  
Sittig moved, Harrington seconded to approve Resolution Number 2022-18, A Resolution 
assessing delinquent amounts owed to the City of North Liberty, Iowa to individual property taxes.  
After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Sittig, Wayson, Harrington, Smith; nays – none. Motion 
carried.   

 
Watts Rezoning 
Sittig moved, Wayson seconded to approve the third consideration and adoption of Ordinance 
Number 2022-01, An Ordinance amending Chapter 167 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances 
by amending the use regulations on property located on the south side of Denison Avenue 
approximately 130 feet east of Brook Ridge Avenue located in North Liberty, Iowa to those set 
forth in the Municipal Code for the RD-10 Two Unit Residence District. The vote was: ayes – Sittig, 
Wayson, Harrington, Smith; nays – none. Motion carried.    

 
Vintage Estates PAD Amendment 
Rusnak reported that staff and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the PAD 
amendment.  
 
Jason Ledden, Snyder and Associates, was present on behalf of the applicant and offered 
additional information on the project. Council discussed the proposed change with the applicant 
representative. 
 
At 7:58 p.m., Mayor Hoffman opened the Public Hearing regarding proposed PAD amendment. 
No oral or written comments were received. The public hearing was closed.  
 



City of North Liberty – 2022 
Page: 4 

Harrington moved, Smith seconded to approve the first consideration of Ordinance Number 
2022-05, An Ordinance amending the Vintage Estates RS-4 PAD Single-Unit Residence Planned 
Area Development by reducing the rear yard setback from 30 feet to 25 feet adjacent to the north 
and west property line on property located on the west side of South Jones Boulevard west of 
western terminus of Cory Court located in North Liberty, Iowa. After discussion, the vote was: ayes 
– Harrington, Smith, Wayson, Sittig; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Zoning Code 
Sittig moved, Wayson seconded to approve the third consideration and adoption of Ordinance 
Number 2022-02, An Ordinance amending Chapters 165 through 170 and 173 of the North Liberty 
Code of Ordinances, governing the administration, organization, enforcement and definitions of 
Zoning Districts, development and sign regulations.  Attorney Ryan Haaland representing the Iowa 
Manufactured Housing Association spoke with the Council regarding proposed amendments to 
this ordinance. After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Smith, Sittig, Harrington, Wayson; nays – 
none. Motion carried.  
 
Rental Code 
Harrington moved, Sittig seconded to approve the third consideration and adoption of Ordinance 
Number 2022-03, An Ordinance amending Chapter 146 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances, 
governing rental housing procedures and regulations and structure procedure requirements. The 
vote was: ayes – Sittig, Wayson, Smith, Harrington; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
City Rezonings 
Harrington moved, Smith seconded to approve the third consideration and adoption of Ordinance 
Number 2022-04, An Ordinance amending zoning on various properties in the City of North 
Liberty, Iowa. The vote was: ayes – Wayson, Sittig, Smith, Harrington; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
Old Business 
Councilor Smith offered that the special election will be held during spring break. He encouraged 
all to vote early or by absentee ballot. 
 
New Business 
No new business was offered.  
 
Adjournment 
Wayson moved, Harrington seconded to adjourn at 8:19 p.m. The vote was all ayes. Meeting adjourned.  
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
 
 
By:  _________________________ 

Chris Hoffman, Mayor  
Attest: ________________________ 

Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk 



 

(App-154273)

License Application

Name of Legal Entity : T. L. & L. Inc

Name of Business(DBA) : Quail Creek Golf Course

Address of Premises :  700 Clubhouse Road

City :  North Liberty

County : Johnson

Zip : 52317

Business : (316) 626-2281

Mailing Address:  1260 South Jones Boulevard

City : North Liberty

State : Iowa

Zip :  52317

Name : Theodore Lewis

 <https://www.iowa.gov/search/google?ia_slv=1646398713063>

Applicant

Contact Person

Services <https://directory.iowa.gov/service/Index?
_ga=1.101492737.1604613096.1488473035&ia_slv=1646398713063>

Agencies <https://directory.iowa.gov/?ia_slv=1646398713063>

Social <https://directory.iowa.gov/social/Index?ia_slv=1646398713063>

https://www.iowa.gov/search/google?ia_slv=1646398713063
https://www.iowa.gov/?ia_slv=1646398713063
https://directory.iowa.gov/service/Index?_ga=1.101492737.1604613096.1488473035&ia_slv=1646398713063
https://directory.iowa.gov/?ia_slv=1646398713063
https://directory.iowa.gov/social/Index?ia_slv=1646398713063


Phone :  (319) 430-6911

Email : lewis.ted@live.com

License Number :  

License/Permit Type :  Class B Beer Permit

Term : 8 Month

Status : Pending Dramshop Review

Tentative Effective Date : 2022-04-01

Tentative Expiration Date :  2022-12-01

Sub-Permits : Class B Beer Permit 

Privileges : Living Quarter, Sunday Sales, Outdoor Service 

Last Day of Business :  

Business Type :  Privately Held Corporation

License Information

Status of Business

Ownership



Theodore Lewis

City : North Liberty

State : Iowa

Zip : 52317

Position : Owner

% of ownership : 100

U.S. Citizen : Yes

Insurance Company : Selective Insurance Company of America

Policy Effective Date :  

Policy Expiration : 

Bond Effective : 

Dram Cancel Date : 

Outdoor Service Effective : 

Outdoor Service Expiration : 

Temp Transfer Effective Date : 

Temp Transfer Expiration Date : 

Insurance Company Information





Inspection Type: Liquor License Inspection

Inspection Date: 2/23/2022 By: Hardin, Bryan E (01-1022)

Time In: 12:57 Time Out: 13:17

Authorized Date: 02/23/2022 By: Hardin, Bryan E (01-1022)

Next Inspection Date: 03/25/2022 Reinspection

Occupancy: Quail Creek Golf Course Club House
Occupancy ID: QUAI03

Address: 700 Clubhouse RD
North Liberty IA 52317

Inspection Topics:

North Liberty Fire Department

Form: General Fire 
Inspection Checklist 1.3

Miscellaneous

No Other Unsafe Conditions 

Status: FAIL
Notes: 1) Verify that the outdoor gasoline fuel tank is clearly marked and labeled.
2) Smoke alarm needs a new battery. If the smoke alarm is older than 10 years, it will need to be replaced.

110.4 Abatement. The owner, the owner’s authorized agent, operator or occupant of a building or premises deemed unsafe by the fire code official shall abate 
or cause to be abated or corrected such unsafe conditions either by repair, rehabilitation, demolition or other approved corrective action.

Compressed Gas Cylinders / LPG 

Compressed Gas Cylinders Secured or Chained

Status: FAIL
Notes: Secure all compressed cylinders.

5303.5.3 Securing compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks. Compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks shall be secured to prevent falling 
caused by contact, vibration or seismic activity. Securing of compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks shall be by one of the following methods: 1. 
Securing containers, cylinders and tanks to a fixed object with one or more restraints. 2. Securing containers, cylinders and tanks on a cart or other mobile 
device designed for the movement of compressed gas containers, cylinders or tanks. 3. Nesting of compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks at 
container filling or servicing facilities or in sellers’ warehouses not accessible to the public. Nesting shall be allowed provided the nested containers, cylinders 
or tanks, if dislodged, do not obstruct the required means of egress. 4. Securing of compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks to or within a rack, 
framework, cabinet or similar assembly designed for such use. Exception: Compressed gas containers, cylinders and tanks in the process of examination, 
filling, transport or servicing.

Inspection Description:
ORDER TO COMPLY: 
You must correct the violations noted upon receipt of this notice. An inspection to determine compliance with this Notice will be 
conducted on or after 30 days from the date of inspection.  
This initial and the first re-inspection are at no charge. If subsequent re-inspections are needed to ensure compliance, you will be 
charged the current fee schedule.
If you fail to comply with this notice, you may be liable for the penalties provided for by law for such violations.

Page 1 of 2Printed on 02/23/22 at 14:45:39



Additional Time Spent on Inspection:
Category Start Date / Time End Date / Time

No Additional time recordedNotes:

Total Additional Time: 0 minutes

Total Time: 20 minutes

Inspection Time: 20 minutes

Summary:
Overall Result: Correction Notice Issued

Inspector Notes:

Closing Notes:
Above is the results of your Fire Inspection conducted by the North Liberty Fire Department Department.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact Fire Marshal Bryan Hardin at (319) 626-5709.  If you had any violations, please reply 
back when all corrections are made so we may close out your inspection.  Thank you for your time and attention.

Inspector:
Name: Hardin, Bryan E
Rank: Assistant Chief
Work Phone(s): None on file
Email(s): bhardin@northlibertyiowa.org
Hardin, Bryan E:

Signature Date

Signed on: 02/23/2022 14:26

Representative Signature:

Signature Date

Signature of: Ted Lewis on 02/23/2022 13:18

Page 2 of 2Printed on 02/23/22 at 14:45:39



 
 

   North Liberty Police Department 
                    340 N Main St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626-5724/Fax: 5743 

     

 
 March 2, 2021 

Liquor License Check 

Business:  Quail Creek Golf Course 

      700 Club House Road 

                    North Liberty, IA  52317 

  
Owner:   Theodore Lewis (DOB: 1955) 
 

The North Liberty Police Department does not have any documented contacts with the 
owners or premise in conflict with their liquor license. 

 I recommend the license be granted. 

 This record check was conducted by Sergeant Mitch Seymour. 

  



 

License Application (LC0039189)

Name of Legal Entity : Rara Avis, Inc.

Name of Business(DBA) : Bluebird Cafe

Address of Premises :  650 W. Cherry St. #9

City :  North Liberty

County : Johnson

Zip : 52317

Business : (319) 626-2603

Mailing Address:  650 W. Cherry St. #9

City : North Liberty

State : Iowa

Zip :  52317

Name : Lacey Meyne

Phone :  (319) 512-9323

Email : lbw2004@me.com

 <https://www.iowa.gov/search/google?ia_slv=1646226668935>

Applicant

Contact Person

Services <https://directory.iowa.gov/service/Index?
_ga=1.101492737.1604613096.1488473035&ia_slv=1646226668935>

Agencies <https://directory.iowa.gov/?ia_slv=1646226668935>

Social <https://directory.iowa.gov/social/Index?ia_slv=1646226668935>

https://www.iowa.gov/search/google?ia_slv=1646226668935
https://www.iowa.gov/?ia_slv=1646226668935
https://directory.iowa.gov/service/Index?_ga=1.101492737.1604613096.1488473035&ia_slv=1646226668935
https://directory.iowa.gov/?ia_slv=1646226668935
https://directory.iowa.gov/social/Index?ia_slv=1646226668935


License Number :  LC0039189

License/Permit Type :  Class C Liquor License

Term : 12 Month

Status : Submitted to Local Authority

Effective Date : 2022-04-12

Expiration Date :  2023-04-11

Sub-Permits :  

Privileges :  

Last Day of Business :  

Business Type :  Privately Held Corporation

License Information

Status of Business

Ownership



Lacey Meyne

City : North Liberty

State : Iowa

Zip : 52317

Position : Owner

% of ownership : 100

U.S. Citizen : Yes

Insurance Company : Society Insurance

Policy Effective Date :  2022-04-12

Policy Expiration : 2023-04-12

Bond Effective : 

Dram Cancel Date : 

Outdoor Service Effective : 

Outdoor Service Expiration : 

Temp Transfer Effective Date : 

Temp Transfer Expiration Date : 

Insurance Company Information





 
 

   North Liberty Police Department 
                    340 N Main St•PO Box 77•North Liberty, Iowa•52317•(319) 626-5724/Fax: 5743 

     

 
March 2, 2022 
 
Liquor License Check 
 
Business:   Blue Bird Café 
  650 W. Cherry Street 

North Liberty, IA  52317 
  
Owners: Lacey Meyne (DOB: 1984)  
 

 
The North Liberty Police Department does not have any documented contacts with the 
owners or premise in conflict with their liquor license. 

 I recommend the license be granted. 

 

This record check was conducted by Sergeant Mitch Seymour.    

 
 

  



 

Mayor Report 



 

 

Honey Bee Day  

WHEREAS, honey bees and native insects are important as pollinators for a third of the food we 
eat.  Honey bees are vital in production of over 90 crops grown across the nation, many of which are in 
Iowa.  Honey bees contribute to a healthy Iowa environment by assuring the availability of fruits, 
vegetables, nuts, and flowers for wildlife and all Iowans; and 

WHEREAS, Iowa's 45,000 or more honey bee hives produce about 4 million pounds of honey 
valued at over $8 million and honey bees provide an estimated $92 million economic value to Iowa crops 
from their pollination; and 

WHEREAS, Iowa has over 4,500 beekeepers representing hobbyists, sideliners as part time small 
businesses and full-time commercial beekeepers.  Beekeepers have as few as 1-2 hives in a single apiary 
to a hundred apiaries with thousands of hives of individual commercial operations; and 

WHEREAS, traditionally, beekeeping occurred in rural areas of Iowa.  Now bee hives increasingly 
are in urban areas with the rising interest of hobby beekeepers that keep honey bees in Iowa cities and 
towns; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Iowa has an active apiary program that protects honey bees and 
beekeepers by inspecting for apiary diseases and pests as well as actively encouraging best beekeeping 
practices by outreach to individuals and beekeeping groups; and 

WHEREAS, honey bees face serious threats from invasive pests and disease, decreasing bee 
friendly habitat, variable climate and pesticide and herbicide pressure: 

THEREFORE, I, Mayor Chris Hoffman, Mayor City of North Liberty, do hereby proclaim March 30, 
2022 as  

HONEY BEE DAY 

 corresponding to Governor Reynolds State of Iowa Honey Bee Day Proclamation and encourage all 
citizens, residents and visitors to join in observing this day and focusing on the importance of honey bees 
to our state economy, to enjoy the honey and other products of the hive, to recognize the honey bees’ 
role in maintaining our Iowa environment, and to assist in reducing the threats to honey bee survival in our 
state. 

 

____________________________________________________ 

          Mayor Chris Hoffman  

Signed in North Liberty, Iowa 
this 8th day of March, 2022 

 

 



 

Stiltner Site Plan 
Amendment 



 

 

 

 



 





 











 

 



H
E

R
K

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

LOT 1

LOT 11

EXISTING
BUILDING

PROPOSED
BUILDING

EXISTING
BUILDING

4

1

3

6

2
6

6

2

2

2
2

1

1

1

5

5

3

9

9

7

7

7

8 8
8

8

(319) 351-8282
IOWA CITY, IOWA 52240

www.mmsconsultants.net

1917 S. GILBERT ST.

02-16-22

NORTH LIBERTY
JOHNSON COUNTY
IOWA

01-03-2022
KJC

KLE

KJC

8976-004 5

2.04 ACRE

C120
1"=20'

NOT TO SCALE
LOCATION MAP

NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA

STILTNER ELECTRIC
340 HERKY STREET PAVING LEGEND 

PROPOSAL                                                                    

LEGAL DESCRIPTION                                                       

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE                                                

DEVELOPMENT CHARACTERISTICS                                     

KEYNOTES
NUMBER KEYNOTE

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

PAVING REMOVAL LEGEND 

SCALE: 1"=20'

SCALE: 1"=20'

O C SM

IOW

THE SUB-CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TRAFFIC
CONTROL PER IDOT STANDARD ROAD PLAN TC-202
AND CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY REQUIREMENTS AT
ALL TIMES DURING WORK WITHIN PUBLIC R.O.W.

THE SUB-CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH
UTILITY PROVIDERS FOR ANY REQUIRED
RELOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES.

PLAT PREPARED BY:
MMS CONSULTANTS INC.
1917 S. GILBERT STREET
IOWA CITY, IA  52240

APPLICANT:
GREG STILTNER
STILTNER ELECTRIC
340 HERKY STREET
NORTH LIBERY, IA 52317

AMENDED SITE PLAN
STILTNER ELECTRIC

340 HERKY STREET
NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA

C120 SITE LAYOUT, UTILITY AND DIMENSION
PLAN

C140 EROSION CONTROL, SWPPP AND SITE
                    GRADING PLAN
C500 GENERAL NOTES AND DETAILS
C501 GENERAL NOTES AND DETAILS
L100 SITE LANDSCAPE PLAN

SHEET INDEX



EXISTING
BUILDING

PROPOSED
BUILDING

EXISTING
BUILDING

(4) VT

(3) TM

(7) VT
(5) TM

(6) VT
(1) LT

(1) QB

(1) LT

(1) UM

(1) UM

SHADE TREES CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME INSTALL SIZE COMMENT MATURE H. X W.

LT 2 Liriodendron tulipifera Tulip Poplar 2" Cal. B&B 60` x 30`

QB 1 Quercus bicolor Swamp White Oak 2" Cal. B&B 50` x 50`

UM 2 Ulmus x `Morton Glossy` TM Triumph Elm 2" Cal. B&B 50` x 35`

DECIDUOUS SHRUBS CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME INSTALL SIZE COMMENT MATURE H. X W.

VT 17 Viburnum trilobum `Bailey Compact` Bailey`s Compact American Cranberry Bush 36" Ht. Container 6` x 5`

EVERGREEN SHRUBS CODE QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME INSTALL SIZE COMMENT MATURE H. X W.

TM 8 Taxus x media `Everlow` Everlow Yew 15" Ht. Container 3` x 5`

PLANT SCHEDULE

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS:

(319) 351-8282
IOWA CITY, IOWA 52240

www.mmsconsultants.net

1917 S. GILBERT ST.

02-16-22

NORTH LIBERTY
JOHNSON COUNTY
IOWA

01-03-2022
KJC

KLE

KJC

8976-004 5

2.04 ACRE

L100
1"=20'

THE SUB-CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TRAFFIC
CONTROL PER IDOT STANDARD ROAD PLAN TC-202
AND CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY REQUIREMENTS AT
ALL TIMES DURING WORK WITHIN PUBLIC R.O.W.

THE SUB-CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH
UTILITY PROVIDERS FOR ANY REQUIRED
RELOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES.

O C SM

IOW

PLAT PREPARED BY:
MMS CONSULTANTS INC.
1917 S. GILBERT STREET
IOWA CITY, IA  52240

APPLICANT:
GREG STILTNER
STILTNER ELECTRIC
340 HERKY STREET
NORTH LIBERY, IA 52317

AMENDED SITE PLAN
STILTNER ELECTRIC

340 HERKY STREET
NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA

C120 SITE LAYOUT, UTILITY AND DIMENSION
PLAN

C140 EROSION CONTROL, SWPPP AND SITE
                    GRADING PLAN
C500 GENERAL NOTES AND DETAILS
C501 GENERAL NOTES AND DETAILS
L100 SITE LANDSCAPE PLAN

SHEET INDEX





North Liberty – 2022  Resolution Number 2022-19 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2022-19 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AMENDED DEVELOPMENT 
SITE PLAN FOR LOT 2 RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 10, I-380 
INDUSTRIAL PARK, NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 

  
 WHEREAS, the applicant, Greg Stiltner, has filed with the City Clerk an amended 
development site plan;  
 
 WHEREAS, the property is described as:  

 
Lot 2, Re-subdivision of Lot 10, I-380 Industrial Park, North Liberty, Iowa, according to the 
plat thereof recorded in Book 49, Page 35, Plat Records of Johnson County, Iowa; 

    
 WHEREAS, said site plan is found to conform with the Comprehensive Plan and the Zoning 
Ordinance of the City of North Liberty; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said site plan has been examined by the North Liberty Planning and Zoning 
Commission, which recommended that the site plan be approved with no conditions.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of North Liberty, Iowa, does 
hereby approve the amended development site plan for Lot 2 Re-subdivision of Lot 10, I380 
Industrial Park, North Liberty, Iowa.  
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of March, 2022. 
  
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by and Return to: 
Grant D. Lientz, 3 Quail Creek Circle, P.O. Box 77, North Liberty, IA 52317 319-626-5767 

 
STORM WATER MANAGEMENT FACILITY  

MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT AND EASEMENT 
STILTNER ELECTRIC DEVELOPMENT 

 
THIS AGREEMENT, made by and between the City of North Liberty, Iowa, a municipal 

corporation, hereinafter referred to as “City,” and TSS Investments, LLC., hereinafter referred to 
as “Owner.” 

 
SECTION 1.  REQUEST FOR STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITY MAINTENANCE 
AGREEMENT. 
 

A. The Owner has requested that the City approve this Storm Water Management 
Facility Maintenance Agreement and Easement with respect to the real estate situated in North 
Liberty, Johnson County, Iowa, said real estate designated as a “Storm Water Management 
Easement” as described and depicted on the attached Exhibit “A” (the “Facilities”): 
 

B. As part of this request, the Owner acknowledges the following: 
 

1. The Owner has full ownership and control of the real estate described 
above; 

 
2. The Owner, for the purposes of this Agreement, includes the current owner 

of the property described above; any successor owners, assigns, and heirs of the original 
Owner, and any other person or party determined to be a “responsible person” as defined 
in Chapter 156, City of North Liberty Code of Ordinances, or any successor ordinance 
thereto. 

 
3. This Agreement is required by and shall be enforced pursuant to Chapter 

156, City of North Liberty Code of Ordinances, or any successor ordinance thereto, and 
the Iowa Storm Water Management Manual, or any successor manual thereto. 

 















EXHIBIT A



 

North Liberty – 2022 Resolution Number 2022-20 
Page 1 

Resolution No.  2022-20 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT FACILITIES MAINTENANCE AND 
EASEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
AND TSS INVESTMENTS, LLC THAT ESTABLISHES THE 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES WILL BE 
MAINTAINED FOR THE STILTNER ELECTRIC 
DEVELOPMENT IN THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA: 
 

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions for the maintenance of the storm water 
management facilities for the Vintage Estates Planned Area Development have been 
set forth in an Agreement between the City of North Liberty (“City”) and TSS Investments, 
LLC (“Owner”); 

  
WHEREAS, the owner of the property shown in the attachment have executed the 

Public Storm Sewer Easement Agreement to permit the City to utilize property delineated 
in the agreement for the purpose of excavating for and the installation, replacement, 
maintenance and use of public storm sewer infrastructure;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the Storm Water Management 

Facility Maintenance Agreement and Easement between the City and the Owner is 
approved for the development of Stiltner Electric at 340 Herky Street, North Liberty, 
Iowa. 

 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 8th day of March, 2022. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:    
 
_______________________________________   
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR   
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the 
above was adopted.  
_______________________________________  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

FY 2023 Annual Budget 



��������������	
 �����������������������������������������

�������� ��!����"��#��$�#"���%� "��!��� ����&� '�()�* ���(

+,-./01�2,3,10/�/,45
6789:;�<=:+�>?;<�@A�BCBB�D�>?E=�FCA�BCBF:GHIJ7HE�H6�K?G2=J�:EG�9=+J7679:J7HE�H6�97J<�J:L=8JM,�9NO5�PQ�R���EH+JS�;7K=+J<����9P.3O5�E0T,R���>HSE8HE�9H?EJ<UVWXYZV�[\]�̂Z\YZ_ZV�̀XW\�aVWXYbW\c�����dZeWf̀YbW\]�̂Z\YZ_ZV�̀XW\�aVWXYbW\cJM,�g,/PhDiN-3,j�k,1ONQN,i�OM0O�OM,�9NO5�9P.3kN/A�P3�OM,�j0O,�iO0O,j�0gP4,A�/0hQ.//5�0ll1P4,j�OM,�30T,j�1,iP/.ONP3�0jPlON3-�0�g.j-,O�QP1�3,mO�QNik0/�5,01A�0i�i.TT01Nn,j�P3�OMNi03j�OM,�i.llP1ON3-�l0-,iopbYq�rae�s�tfZuY_bu pbYqẀY�rae�s�tfZuY_bu+,-./01 B0 @ACv@AwwxAyxv Bg @ACyzAzC{A@xxG=KJ�8=+|79= F0 @ABBBAx{wAxyz Fg @AB@{AyC@AFy{:-�;03j y0 BAFCxACv{ }bY~��̀ ��Z_]��������aeY�[��bubaf�}Z\èe]��������U�t���t��t��̀_XWeZ �Wffa_�b�bY t��td���dt����d�}��dU�t�t�[p dZ�̀ZeY��bYq�YbfbY~dZXfauZ�Z\Y �_WXZ_Y~�a�Ze��Z�bZV daYZ{o@CCCC v {AvB@A@z@ {Ay{xAyFx yF {o@CCCC�W\��WYZV�[YqZ_��Z_�beeb�fZ��Z�bZe9P3O10kO�QP1�.i,�PQ�K1Nj-, CoxzvCC x C C yy CoCCCCCHl1����0N3O�l.g/Nk/5�Ph3,j�J103iNO CowvCCC z C C yv CoCCCCC+,3OA�73io��0N3O�PQ�9N4Nk�9,3O,1 :TOE,k { C C yx CoCCCCCHl1����0N3O�PQ�9NO5�Ph3,j�9N4Nk�9,3O,1 Co@FvCC w C C yz CoCCCCCI/033N3-�0�803NO015�GNilPi0/�I1P�,kO CoCxzvC @C C C y{ CoCCCCC:4N0ONP3�:.OMP1NO5��.3j,1�i,koFFC:o@v� CoBzCCC @@ C C yw CoCCCCC;,4,,�7Tl1o�Q.3j�N3�il,kN0/�kM01O,1�kNO5 CoCxzvC @F C C v@ CoCCCCC;N0gN/NO5A�l1Pl,1O5���i,/Q�N3i.103k,�kPiOi :TOE,k @y C C vB CoCCCCC8.llP1O�PQ�0�;Pk0/�=T,1-o�-TOo9PTTo :TOE,k yxB C C yxv CoCCCCC�WYZV�[YqZ_��Z_�beeb�fZ��Z�bZe73iO1.T,3O0/ |Pk0/��.iNk�21P.li Co@FvCC @v C C vF CoCCCCC�,TP1N0/�K.N/jN3- Co{@CCC @x C C vy CoCCCCC85TlMP35�H1kM,iO10 Co@FvCC @z C C vv CoCCCCC9./O.10/���8kN,3ONQNk�60kN/NON,i CoBzCCC @{ C C vx CoCCCCC9P.3O5�K1Nj-, :i|PO,j @w C C vz CoCCCCC�NiiN�P1��NiiP.1N�+N4,1�K1Nj-,�9P3iOo @oFvCCC BC C C v{ CoCCCCC:Nj�OP�0�J103iNO�9PTl035 CoCFFzv B@ C C vw CoCCCCC�0N3O0N3�73iONO.ONP3�1,k,N4,j�g5�-NQO j,4Ni, CoBCvCC BB C C xC CoCCCCC9NO5�=T,1-,3k5��,jNk0/�GNiO1NkO @oCCCCC yxF C C yxx CoCCCCC8.llP1O�I.g/Nk�;Ng1015 CoBzCCC BF C C x@ CoCCCCC?3NQN,j�;0h�=3QP1k,T,3O @ovCCCC By C C xB CoCCCCC�WYaf�rZ\Z_af��̀\V�dZ¡̀fa_��Z�bZe�̂��Yq_̀���c Bv {AvB@A@z@ {Ay{xAyFx:-�;03j FoCCFzv Bx xAwBz xAwBz xF FoCCFzv�WYaf�rZ\Z_af��̀\V��a���Z�bZe�̂���¢��£c Bz {AvB{ACw{ {AywFAFxF�XZubaf�dZ�Z\̀Z��Z�bZe=T,1-,3k5��NQ�-,3,10/�Q.3j�0O�/,45�/NTNO� CoBzCCC B{ C C xy CoCCCCCIP/Nk,���6N1,�+,ON1,T,3O :TOE,k Bw C C CoCCCCC679:���7I=+8��NQ�-,3,10/�Q.3j�0O�/,45�/NTNO� :TOE,k FC @ABy@A{B{ @ABFxAzxz @o@{CyvHOM,1�=Tl/P5,,�K,3,QNOi :TOE,k F@ {xyAxxv {x@A@yF Co{B@wF�WYaf�t�XfW~ZZ��Z\Z�bY��Z�bZe�̂���¤��¤¥c FB BA@CxAywF BACwzAw@C xv BoCCBF{�̀���WYaf��XZubaf�dZ�Z\̀Z��Z�bZe�̂��¢¤�c FF BA@CxAywF BACwzAw@CUe�dZ� pbYq�rae�s�tfZu�af̀aYbW\ pbYqẀY�rae�stfZu��af̀aYbW\88�7G�@ C C Fy C xx CoCCCCC88�7G�B C C Fv C xz CoCCCCC88�7G�F C C Fx C x{ CoCCCCC88�7G�y C C Fz C xw CoCCCCC88�7G�v C C vvv C vxv CoCCCCC88�7G�x C C vvx C vxx CoCCCCC88�7G�z C C@@zz C@@zw CoCCCCC88�7G�{ C C@@{v C@@{z CoCCCCC�WYaf��XZubaf�dZ�Z\̀Z��Z�bZe Fw BA@CxAywF BACwzAw@C�Z�Y��Z_�buZ��Z�~��£¦¥�̂£c :TO�E,k yC @Ay{zAzwz @Ay{BAvzv zC @oB@x{B}aXbYaf��_W§ZuYe�̂}aXbYaf���X_W�¦�dZeZ_�Zc CoxzvCC y@ C z@ CoCCCCC�WYaf��_WXZ_Y~��a�Ze�̂��¢¤�¢��¢�¥c yB @BA@BBAF{{ @BACzFA{y{ zB@@oF@wBC��8N-30O.1,�� �G0O,� ��9P.3O5�:.jNOP1�� �G0O,�



��������������	
 �����������������������������������������

�������� ��!����"��#��$�#"���%� "��!��� ����&� '�()�* ���(

+,-./0�,1�2345./�6078.+9�:�/.-;�,1�+,8-6�5.408-;�:�28,2,<0=�28,208-;�-7>�50?;1@ABCD�;ECF�GHDI�JK�LMLL�:�GHNE�OMK�LMLOPQR�STUV�SWXYZT[�\T[[�ZWY]XZU�̂�_X̀[TZ�QR̂aTYb�WY�UQR�_aW_WcR]�dTcẐ[�eR̂a�STUV�_aW_RaUV�Ûf�[RgV�̂c�hW[[W\cijEEk@Nl�=CkEm����nonnonpnn����jEEk@Nl�-@qEm����prisp�tu����jEEk@Nl�5vBCk@vNm����SWXYZT[�SQ̂ẁ Rac�s�xX̂T[�SaRRy�STaZ[RzU�UQR�_X̀[TZ�QR̂aTYb�̂YV�aRcT]RYU�Wa�Ûf_̂VRa�ŵV�_aRcRYU�Ẁ{RZUTWYc�UW|�Wa�̂abXwRYUc�TY�ĥgWa�Wh�UQR�_aW_WcR]�Ûf�[RgV}�zhURa�̂]W_UTWY�Wh�UQR�_aW_WcR]�Ûf�[RgV|�UQR�STUVSWXYZT[�\T[[�_X̀[TcQ�YWUTZR�̂Y]�QW[]�̂�QR̂aTYb�WY�UQR�_aW_WcR]�ZTUV�̀X]bRU}STUV�~R̀cTUR��Th�̂ĝT[̂̀[R�\\\}YWaUQ[T̀RaUVTW\̂}Wab � STUV�PR[R_QWYR��Xẁ Ra�s����rnr���pp/HFFENk�;ECF�/EFk@�@E�2Fv�EFkI�-C��LMLJ�:�LMLL 4H�lEk�;ECF�0��EBk@�E2Fv�EFkI�-C��LMLL�:�LMLO 4H�lEk�;ECF�2Fv�vAE��jC�@qHq2Fv�EFkI�-C��LMLL�:�LMLO 7NNHCD��/69�RbX[̂a�P̂f̂ [̀R��̂[X̂UTWY ���|r��|s�r �|p��|��r|�r� �|p��|��r|�r�P̂f��RgTRci�RbX[̂a��RYRâ[ �|psn|p�� �|psn|p�� �|�n�|���SWYUâZU�hWa��cR�Wh��aT]bR p p p�_a���u T̂YU�tX̀[TZ[V��\YR]�PâYcTU p p p�RYU|��Yc}�u T̂YU}��h��WY��\YR]�STg}�SUa} p p p�_a���u T̂YU�Wh�STUV��\YR]�STgTZ�SRYURa p p pt[̂YYTYb�̂��̂YTÛaV��Tc_Wĉ[�taW{RZU p p p�T̂̀T[TUV|�taW_RaUV����R[h��YcXâYZR�SWcUc p p p�X__WaU�Wh��WẐ[��wRa}�ubwU}�SWwwTccTWY p p p�wRabRYZV p p ptW[TZR���dTaR��RUTaRwRYU p p pd�Sz����t��� �|�r�|��r �|�r�|��r �|n��|�n��UQRa��w_[WVRR��RYRhTUc ���|ps� ���|ps� �r�|rr�-vkCD�-C��5E�I �p|p��|rr� �p|p��|rr� �p|rn�|rr� r}p�-C��8CkE �p}�pns� �}�nn�s �p}�pns�0��DCNCk@vN�v��A@lN@�@BCNk�@NBFECAEA�@N�k�E��H�lEkmPQR�STUV�Tc�cRRTYb�̂�_aW{RZUR]�����TYZaR̂cR�TY�TYcXâYZR�_aRwTXwc�hWa�bRYRâ[�̂Y]�[T̂̀T[TUV�ZWgRâbR}�PQR�STUV�c�QR̂[UQ�TYcXâYZR�_[̂Y�_aRwTXwc�\T[[�TYZaR̂cR�̀V��}r��}PQR�tW[TZR��R_̂aUwRYU�Tc�̂]]TYb�̂��TRXURŶYU�_WcTUTWY}�PQR�dTaR��R_̂aUwRYU�Tc�̂]]TYb�̂�YR\�hX[[�UTwR�dTaRhTbQURa}�zY�̂YTŵ[�ZWYUaW[�UaXZy�\T[[�̀R�_XaZQ̂cR]}�P\W�tW[TZRẐac�YRR]�aR_[̂ZR]}�PQR�t̂ayc��R_̂aUwRYU�Tc�̂]]TYb�̂�YR\�cÛhh�_RacWY}��gRâ[[�cÛhh�ZWcUc�\T[[�TYZaR̂cR�\TUQ�̂�ZWcU�Wh�[TgTYb�̂Y]�wRaTUocUR_�TYZaR̂cRc}�PQR�ŵ{WaTUV�Wh�UQRSTUV�c��RYRâ[�dXY]�Rf_RYcRc�̂aR�_RacWYYR[�aR[̂UR]�]XR�UW�UQR�cRagTZR�̀̂cR]�ŶUXaR�Wh�̂�wXYTZT_̂[TUV}�z�aRwW]R[�Wh��T̀âaV�c_̂ZR�UW�ZaR̂UR�̂�wWaR�_̂UaWY�haTRY][VRYgTaWYwRYU}.��C��D@BC�DEK�k�E�C�v�E�Nvk@BE�CDAv�C�C@DC�DE�vND@NE�Ckm\\\}YWaUQ[T̀RaUVTW\̂}Wab�PWÛ[�ZTUV�Ûf�âUR�\T[[�̂[cW�TYZ[X]R�gWUR]�bRYRâ[�hXY]�[RgV|�]R̀U�cRagTZR�[RgV|�̂Y]�Ẑ_TÛ[�Tw_aWgRwRYU�aRcRagR�[RgV}���X]bRU�VR̂a�RhhRZUTgR�_aW_RaUV�Ûf�âUR�Tc�UQR�âUR�UQ̂U�\WX[]�̀R�̂ccRccR]�hWa�UQRcR�[RgTRc�Th�UQR�]W[[̂ac�aR XRcUR]�Tc�YWU�ZQ̂YbR]�TY�UQR�ZWwTYb�̀X]bRU�VR̂a



��������������	

�����������������������������������������

�������� ��!����"��#��$�#"���%� "��!��� ����&�  '�()�*
���(

+,-.�/010-234567�89:;<����8=>?@�ABCD>?EF5GH9I�E;9J�KLI7�MN�OPOO�Q�KLR;�SPN�OPOS T3-3U01 VW32X01U3Y3-,3V ZX+�VW32X01U3Y3-,3V .3/ZV3UYX23 20WXZ01WU[\32ZV W3U]0-3-Z Z[Z01T[Y3U-]3-Z WU[WUX3Z0Û TU0-.Z[Z010__̀ab�Ucdefg�+̂ �hihjC;k5RR5Rk�FLRl�C9I9RH;�KLI7�M M MONOPMNmOn MNoSpNpOp MNqoMNnqp MNMpnNqqS QMSNpmMNSMo P ONpqpNmnP pNrmSNrop MONrOSNPmpsH6L9I�>;t;RL;G�DuH;v6�C;k�C9I9RH; O MqNPmpNPMr rNqnMNmpm mNponNrOr qNqmONmqP MPNMnSNmqO P rSNmrrNMmm MqNmrqNppr qPNPpMNMrpsH6L9I�Duv;Rl56LJ;G�DuH;v6�DRl�C9I9RH; S MrNmPONSoo rNMrmNppp mNqmrNOSn mNpqpNqPo mNpOnNroS P SqNMppNnMm MoNOnnNrmn mrNrnnNMnODRl5Rk�FLRl�C9I9RH;�KLR;�SP r MSNnmoNMmS ONSqmNmOm ONPMrNpmq MNooPNqMm QpNnPmNOSp P MPNSMrNPMP nNnOSNPOq MoNPSnNPSqUcw3xgyzagc{�+̂ �hihhC;k5RR5Rk�FLRl�C9I9RH; m MSNnmoNMmS ONSqmNmOm ONPMrNpmq MNooPNqMm QpNnPmNOSp P MPNSMrNPMP nNnOSNPOq MoNPSnNPSq>;QDG6�>;t;RL;G q MmNPqnNnOn rNSSrNMpm mNqSONOor qNpMONoMO SNOnrNomr P SmNOOMNonO MrNpqSNMnO mPNMomNPrr>;QDG6�Duv;Rl56LJ;G n MmNMrnNOpM rNPpmNSmo mNqSONOor mNnqoNqMn MMNnppNPPP P rONrrONmmP MmNOOSNomM mnNqqqNrPMDRl5Rk�FLRl�C9I9RH; o MSNqnoNmop ONqPrNSqO ONPMrNpmq SNPOrNoMP QMoNOOpNSom P SNPpSNSSO nNrqONSrn MPNmmmNqnp/̀{|cg�+̂ �hih}C;k5RR5Rk�FLRl�C9I9RH; p MSNqnoNmop ONqPrNSqO ONPMrNpmq SNPOrNoMP QMoNOOpNSom P SNPpSNSSO nNrqONSrn MPNmmmNqnp>;t;RL;G MP MnNPMSNSSM rNqnqNqPo rNnpSNOMm qNnSPNOSp MoNPOMNmnp P mMNOSrNpnO MrNppmNomo qqNOSPNoSPDuv;Rl56LJ;G MM MoNOnmNqnr rNnMONnSM rNqpSNOMo qNpOoNMSn MoNmmONPPP P mSNMqMNnqP MrNrSqNPOS qnNmpnNnoSDRl5Rk�FLRl�C9I9RH; MO MONrMqNOrq ONmqoNOSp ONMMrNpmS ONoOqNpMO QMoNnmpNoPq P MNMqqNmrr oNPOONMoO pNMooNnOq



��������������	

�����������������������������������������

�������� ��!����"��#��$�#"���%� "��!��� ����&�  '�()�*
+��(

,-./,�01.�2344-56789:�;<=>?����;@ABC�DEFGABHI8JK<L�H><M�NOL:�PQ�RSRR�T�NOU>�VSQ�RSRVWJ�XMYZ8[>[�8U�EY\<�7Y[>�]>K98YU�V̂_̀PRQ�JOaJ>K98YU�RRQ�<�K89:�=<:�L>Z:�9b>�<=YOU9�U>K>JJ<M:�8U�JOXXYM9�Yc�<�LYK<L�G=>Md>UK:�e<U<d>=>U9�7Y==8JJ8YÙ�EU�<[[898YU�9Y�9b8J�8U[8Z8[O<L�L>Z:Q�G=>Md>UK:�e<U<d>=>U9�7Y==8JJ8YUJOXXYM9�=<:�<LJY�a>�8UKLO[>[�<J�X<M9�Yc�9b>�f>U>M<L�IOU[�D>Z:̀�EY\<�7Y[>�]>K98YU�Rg7̀PhQ�JOaJ>K98YU�i�J9<9>J�9b<9�<U:�JOXXYM9�cMY=�K898>J�YM�KYOU98>J�=OJ9�a>�J>X<M<9>L:�M>XYM9>[�YU�9<j�J9<9>=>U9J�8JJO>[�a:�9b>�KYOU9:�9M><JOM>M̀�EUXO99b>�<=YOU9�Yc�f>U>M<L�IOU[�D>Z:�M>kO>J9�9Y�a>�OJ>[�cYM�JOXXYM9�Yc�<U�G=>Md>UK:�e<U<d>=>U9�7Y==8JJ8YÙ�Bb>�9Y9<L�a>LY\�\8LL�M>cL>K9�9b>�9Y9<L�<=YOU9�Yc�G=>Md>UK:�e<U<d>=>U9�7Y==8JJ8YU�JOXXYM9�XMYZ8[>[�a:�9b>�789:̀5lmnlop�qrps�3prtrpu�5lvtwxlylzp 4{|vl{pu�6w}lo�,l~rl��YM98YU�Yc�f>U>M<L�IOU[�D>Z:��J>[�cYM�G=>Md̀�ed=9̀�7Y==̀ S S]OXXYM9�Yc�<�DYK<L�G=>Md̀ed=9̀7Y==̀ S SB@BWD�I@A�IH�RSRV S S



��������������	

�����������������������������������������

�������� ��!����"��#��$�#"���%� "��!��� ����&�  '�()�*
+��(

,-.-/01230-4�-56-74108,-/�/9:-48;-�63<-�=>?@A�BCDEF����BGHIJ�KLMNHIOP?QRCS�OECT�UVSA�WX�YZYW�[�UV\E�]ZX�YZYY<̂ _-,72-70�3901_101-/�9̂ 70̀ <-7-,3; /6-913;,-_-78- 01a�/6-913;,-_-78-/ 4-b0/-,_19- 936103;6,̂ c-90/ 6-,237-706,̂ 6,1-03,d ,-.-/01230-4efee 39083;efe=68b;19�/3a-0dghS?RE�iEjCT@DE\@k>T?DE�gTElE\@?h\ W ]XZmnXWmo ]XZmnXWmooXWZoXnppUC?S Y Z ZNDETqE\RA�rC\CqEDE\@ ] YYXpZZ YYXpZZ WsXZWsPShht�>h\@ThS o Z ZP?TE�iEjCT@DE\@ n upnXnmn upnXnmnWXZpWXWuovDwVSC\RE m Z ZMV?St?\q�L\QjER@?h\Q p om]XoZs om]XoZs o]oXouZr?QRESSC\EhVQ�gTh@ER@?lE�xETl?REQ u Z Zv\?DCS�>h\@ThS s YYXpZZ YYXpZZ uXZpYG@yET�gVwS?R�xCzE@A WZ ]mXnos ]mXnos YYXW]mIGIvK�{S?\EQ�W�[�WZ| WW oXoumXZup Z Z oXoumXZupnXmnsXomu68b;19�} ,̂~/HhCtQX�MT?tqEQX���x?tE�CS�Q WY YonXZZZ WXZsWXuuu WX]]mXuuumXZuZX]pogCT�?\q�[�rE@ET�C\t�Gzz[x@TEE@ W] Z Zx@TEE@�K?qy@?\q Wo pZXZZZ pZXZZZ mYXoZmITCzz?R�>h\@ThS�C\t�xCzE@A Wn WYuXZZZ WYuXZZZ WWnXmusx\h��HEDhlCS Wm W]nXZZZ W]nXZZZ Ws]Xsn]J?qy�CA�N\q?\EET?\q Wp Z Zx@TEE@�>SEC\?\q Wu Z Zv?TjhT@�{?z�\h@�N\@ETjT?QE| Ws Z Z�CTwCqE�{?z�\h@�N\@ETjT?QE| YZ WXZYZXZZZ WXZYZXZZZWXo]pXnp]G@yET�gVwS?R��hT�Q YW WpnXZZZ WpnXZZZ WY]XYmmIGIvK�{S?\EQ�WY�[�YW| YY WXooZXZZZ WXoYoXuuu Z YXumoXuuuuXZW]XYmW:-3;0:���/̂ 913;�/-,_19-/�ESzCTE�vQQ?Q@C\RE Y] Z Z>?@A�JhQj?@CS Yo Z ZgCADE\@Q�@h�gT?lC@E�JhQj?@CSQ Yn Z ZJECS@y�HEqVSC@?h\�C\t�L\QjER@?h\ Ym Z Z�C@ETX�v?TX�C\t�rhQ�V?@h�>h\@ThS Yp Z Z>hDDV\?@A�rE\@CS�JECS@y Yu Z ZG@yET�JECS@y�C\t�xhR?CS�xETl?REQ Ys WYnXZZZ WYnXZZZ WoZXsYsIGIvK�{S?\EQ�Y]�[�Ys| ]Z WYnXZZZ Z Z WYnXZZZ WoZXsYs98;08,-���,-9,-301̂7K?wTCTA�xETl?REQ ]W WXYYmXu]n WXYYmXu]nWXWWnXnssrVQEVDX�MC\t�C\t�IyEC@ET ]Y Z ZgCT�Q ]] WXZWZXYsu WXZWZXYsu sumXWuoHERTEC@?h\ ]o WXpWsXZ]Y WXpWsXZ]YWXYmuXsns>EDE@ETA ]n oZXZZZ oZXZZZ YuXZWo>hDDV\?@A�>E\@ETX��hhX���rCT?\C ]m YsZXZZZ YsZXZZZ Y]uXoopG@yET�>VS@VTE�C\t�HERTEC@?h\ ]p WXo]YXWoZ WXo]YXWoZWXWZYX]ZsIGIvK�{S?\EQ�]W�[�]p| ]u nXpWuX]Zn Z Z nXpWuX]ZnoXp]sXnWY



��������������	

�����������������������������������������

�������� ��!����"��#��$�#"���%� "��!��� ����&�  '�()�*
*��(

+,-,./012/,3�,45,630/7+,.�.89,37:,�52;,�<=>?@�ABCDE����AFGHI�JKLMGHNO>PQBR�NDBS�TUR@�VW�XYXV�Z�TU[D�\YW�XYXX;]̂ ,+61,6/�28/0̂0/0,.�8]6/_ ;,6,+2: .5,802:+,̂ ,67, /0̀�.5,802:+,̂ ,67,. 3,a/.,+̂ 08, 8250/2:5+]b,8/. 5,+126,6/5+]5+0,/2+c +,-,./012/,3<d<< 28/72:<d<e8]11760/c�f�,8]6]108�3,̂ ,:]51,6/=gCCU[>?@�LDBU?>h>QB?>g[ \i Y YMQg[gC>Q�jDkDRglCD[? mY VVnWYYY VVnWYYY VnoWYYYIgUP>[p�B[q�rSsB[�GD[DtBR mV Y YuRB[[>[p�v�wg[>[p mX nYoWo\V nYoWo\V mYxWxXoF?yDS�=gC�v�MQg[�jDkDRglCD[? m\ mXXWmXV mXXWmXV \xnWVoVHKO�GDsB?DP mm VWYmYWzXz VWYmYWzXz VWYxXWxoYHFH{J�|R>[DP�\i�Z�mm} mn VWYmxWXnX Y VWYmYWzXz Y XWYoxWizi VWiiXWmoi;,6,+2:�;]̂ ,+61,6/~B@gSW�=gU[Q>RW�v�=>?@�~B[BpDS mx XnWV\x XnWV\x VXWYmo=RDS�W�HSDBPUSDSW�v�O>[B[QD�{qC� mz VWxmiWnVm VWxmiWnVm VWxziWomoMRDQ?>g[P mo Y YJDpBR��DSk>QDP�v�=>?@�{??gS[D@ mi X\\Wmiz X\\Wmiz XnVW\V\=>?@�IBRR�v��D[DSBR�LU>Rq>[pP nY Y \\WXzoHgS?�J>Bs>R>?@ nV Y YF?yDS��D[DSBR��gkDS[CD[? nX xiWnYY xiWnYY moWVomHFH{J�|R>[DP�mx�Z�nX} n\ VWizzWxmz Y Y Y VWizzWxmz XWYXmWxzV3,a/�.,+̂ 08, nm nWzxoWxVz nWzxoWxVz nWixiWxYo�gk�=Bl>?BR�uSg�DQ?P nn VVWziiWYYY VVWziiWYYY YHKO�=Bl>?BR�uSg�DQ?P nx Y YHFH{J�={uKH{J�uGFTM=H� nz Y Y Y VVWziiWYYY Y VVWziiWYYY Y/]/2:�;������������2����������,�������������������ee�<<��d��������<������� no VmWzi\WXiV VWmXmWooo VWYmYWzXz nWzxoWxVz VVWziiWYYY Y \mWoXxWnX\XoWn\iWi\oa7.06,..�/c5,�28/0̂0/0,.��5������������,����������fa��������0.̀�B?DS�r?>R>?@ ni VWiioWXn\ VWiioWXn\ VWin\WXoz�DtDS�r?>R>?@ xY VWoXYWVVo VWoXYWVVo VWmz\W\\VMRDQ?S>Q�r?>R>?@ xV Y Y�BP�r?>R>?@ xX Y Y{>SlgS? x\ Y YJB[qh>RR��BSsBpD xm Y YHSB[P>? xn Y Y=BsRD�H W�K[?DS[D?�v�HDRDlyg[D xx Y YIgUP>[p�{U?ygS>?@ xz Y Y�?gSC��B?DS�r?>R>?@ xo VooWiin VooWiin VxmWYoxF?yDS�LUP>[DPP�H@lD�|Q>?@�ygPl�W�K�OW�lBS�>[pW�D?Q�} xi Y YM[?DSlS>PD�jMLH��MG K=M zY \WmxYWxnY \WmxYWxnY \WnX\Wz\zM[?DSlS>PD�={uKH{J�uGFTM=H� zV oziWYo\ oziWYo\ mWVYXWzVmM[?DSlS>PD�HKO�={uKH{J�uGFTM=H� zX Y YHFH{J�Lr�KAM���HNuM�M¡uMAjKHrGM��|R>[DP�ni¢zX} z\ oW\mzWYii oW\mzWYiiVVWXVzWVnn/]/2:�2::�,45,630/7+,.�����������£�� zm VmWzi\WXiV VWmXmWooo VWYmYWzXz nWzxoWxVz VVWziiWYYY Y oW\mzWYii m\WVz\WxXX\iWznzWYi\GDpURBS�HSB[PhDSP�FU? zn \nmWYYY XWxzYWmzY xWozxWznX iWiYVWXXXVYWVXoWnXXK[?DS[BR�HKO�JgB[�HSB[PhDSP�FU? zx mWniVWnnz mWniVWnnz mWniVWnnzHg?BR�{JJ�HSB[PhDSP�FU? zz \nmWYYY XWxzYWmzY mWniVWnnz Y Y Y xWozxWznX VmWmiXWzziVmWzXYWYzi/�����,����������������]�¤���̀���7�����������£��££� zo VnWVmzWXiV mWYinW\no nWx\XWXom nWzxoWxVz VVWziiWYYY Y VnWXX\WonV nzWxxxWmYVnmWmzzWVzX,������̀����a�������b�����d zi V\WxzoWnoi XWxYmW\xX XWYVmWinx \WYXmWoVY ZVoWXXiW\on Y zWmxXW\mz VYWnnnWxziVoWY\zWY\x



��������������	

�����������������������������������������

�������� ��!����"��#��$�#"���%� "��!��� ����&�  '�()�*
)��(

+,-,./012/,3�+,4,56,.�3,/20789:;�<=>?@����<ABCD�EFGHBCIJ9KL=M�I?=N�OPM;�QR�STSQ�U�OPV?�WTR�STSS+,4,56,.�X�Y/Z,+�[0525\05]�.Y6+\,. ],5,+27 .̂,\027+,4,56, /0[�.̂,\027+,4,56,. 3,_/.,+40\, \2̂ 0/27+̂Ỳ ,\/. ,̂+125,5/ +̂Ŷ +0,/2+a +,-,./012/,3bcbb 2\/627bcbdC=e?K�E?f9?g�hV�iNhj?N:; Q kRTTlRmWn QRnooRSko QRWlSRnQl QQRWSlRolTQTRmomRSTQE?KK@�pVLhMM?L:?g�iNhj?N:;�C=e?K�U�E?f;�I?=N S T T<?:�8PNN?V:�iNhj?N:;�C=e?K�qM9V?�Q�>9VPK�M9V?�Sr W kRTTlRmWn QRnooRSko QRWlSRnQl T QQRWSlRolTQTRmomRSTQs?M9VtP?V:�iNhj?N:;�C=e?K l T TCFJ�B?f?VP?K m mRuWSRSkl mRuWSRSkl mRkoSRuTWA:v?N�89:;�C=e?K@p:9M9:;�C=e�B?jM=L?>?V:�HeL9K?�C=e?K u WWRmkW kRWTl lRoWQ luRuQk SSRSoTp:9M9:;�wN=VL9K?�:=e�qFhx=�8hg?�8v=j:?N�WulySr o T Ti=N9>P:P?M�x=z?N�:=e k T T{=>9Vz�x=z?N�:=e n T T|h}9M?�Dh>?�C=e?K QT SmRTTT SmRTTT SkRuuSDh:?M~|h:?M�C=e?K QQ omRTTT omRTTT uTRknSA:v?N�7�����Y������/���� QS STTRTTT STTRTTT WQkRSSl�P}:h:=M�U�A:v?N�89:;�C=e?K�qM9V?K�u�:vNP�QSr QW WWWRmkW kRWTl lRoWQ T WluRuQk lWTRTlkE9L?VK?K���i?N>9:K Ql oTmRkTT oTmRkTT oSnRmkSpK?�hw�|hV?;���iNhj?N:; Qm QoSRmTT lQRTTT SQWRmTT QSTRTTSFV:?Nzhf?NV>?V:=M@J?g?N=M�{N=V:K���B?9>}PNK?>?V:K Qu SRmouRTTT SRmouRTTT mlTRmSSBh=g�pK?�C=e?K Qo SRSkoRWom SRSkoRWom SRoWkRuunA:v?N��:=:?�{N=V:K���B?9>}PNK?>?V:K Qk SolRukl uQRSSn WlRkoT WoTRokW luWRToQEhL=M�{N=V:K���B?9>}PNK?>?V:K Qn SSmRWQu SSmRWQu SnuRQkl�P}:h:=M�U�FV:?Nzhf?NV>?V:=M�qM9V?K�Qu�:vNP�Qnr ST mTTRTTT SRWlkRuTl T WlRkoT SRmouRTTT T mRlmnRlol lRTWkRllu8v=Nz?K�whN�J??K����?Nf9L?@�=:?N�p:9M9:; SQ lRSkSRokk lRSkSRokk lRSnlRQWQ�?x?N�p:9M9:; SS lRnQWRQnm lRnQWRQnm lRnunRQuuHM?L:N9L�p:9M9:; SW T T{=K�p:9M9:; Sl T Ti=N�9Vz Sm T T�9NjhN: Su T TE=Vgw9MM~{=N}=z? So T QRlWmRumQDhKj9:=M Sk T TCN=VK9: Sn T T8=}M?�C�R�FV:?NV?:���C?M?jvhV? WT T TDhPK9Vz��P:vhN9:; WQ T T�:hN>��=:?N�p:9M9:; WS SQlRuQu SQlRuQu SQoRlkoA:v?N�J??K���8v=Nz?K�whN��?Nf9L? WW SRSooRumT SRSooRumT lnQRoWk.��������-�\�����������.��������������bd��������� Wl SRSooRumT T T T T nRlQTRmnn QQRukkRSlnQQRlTkRQoW�j?L9=M��KK?KK>?V:K Wm T SRQQQ|9KL?MM=V?hPK Wu umRQTT SmTRTTT uRmTT WSQRuTT QRmoQRuloA:v?N�J9V=VL9Vz��hPNL?K@�B?zPM=N�Aj?N=:9Vz�CN=VKw?NK�FV Wo WRTTkRmmm nWkRolT llkRkml mRmTmRToW nRnTQRSSSQTRQSkRmSSFV:?NV=M�CFJ�Eh=V�CN=VKw?NK�FV Wk lRmnQRmmo lRmnQRmmo lRmnQRmmo�P}:h:=M��EE�Aj?N=:9Vz�CN=VKw?NK�FV Wn WRTTkRmmm T T mRmWTRSno llkRkml T mRmTmRToW QlRlnSRoonQlRoSTRToniNhL??gK�hw�s?}:�qHeLMPg9Vz�CFJ�FV:?NV=M�GhNNhx9Vzr lT TQTRuSWRSmoiNhL??gK�hw�8=j9:=M��KK?:��=M?K lQ T T.�������-Y�����[���������.������������������������� lS WRTTkRmmm T T mRmWTRSno llkRkml T mRmTmRToW QlRlnSRoonSmRWlWRWWu/�����+�����������������������������������������������������������db��d��d���d ��������������X�� � lW QmRTuoRoSo lRWWlRQnm mRuWSRSkl uRnQSRkQS WRSolRkml T QlRnuWRQoS mTRQkmRTlluTRTnQRQlnG?z9VV9Vz�JPVg�G=M=VL?�OPM;�Q ll QWRomkRQmW SRWumRmSm SRTQlRnmu QRkkTRuQm UnRoTmRSWn T oRoSWRTSu QkRTWoRTWuQSRlSWRTmn/Y/27�+,4,56,.�X�_,]05�_2725\,���������d¡�b� lm SkRkSmRkkT uRunnRoST oRuloRSlT kRonWRlSo UuRlWTRWkm T SSRukuRQnk ukRSSSRTkToSRmQlRSTk



��������������	

�����������������������������������������

�������� ��!����"��#��$�#"���%� "��!��� ����&�  '�()�*
���(

+,-+./0123+4�456+/27+�-89+�:;<=>�?@ABC����?DEFG�HIJKEFLM<NO@P�LB@Q�RSP>�TU�VWVV�X�RSYB�ZWU�VWVZ9[\+3.]+.1�8510\010+4 9+.+387 4-+50873+\+.2+4 10̂�4-+50873+\+.2+4 /+_14+3\05+ 58-0187-3[̀ +514 -+3]8.+.1-3[-30+183a _2/9+1bcbd 3+e+410]81+/bcbb 851287bcb:-2_705�48̂ +1afgP<OB�hBi@Q=ABY=j;Q<AB�fQBkBY=<gY T ZUlmnUnlo ZUlmnUnlo ZUWmlUTmppUTWpUlqqR@<P V W W WKABQrBYO>�s@Y@rBABY= Z VpUnWW VpUnWW VVUqWW TnUWTnMPggt�;gY=QgP p W W WM<QB�hBi@Q=ABY= l TUZlpUopZ TUZlpUopZ oqlUlmlTUWqTUTopuAvSP@YOB m W W WJS<Pt<Yr�IYNiBO=<gYN q llqUZWn llqUZWn pmZUpWn pZpUpoWs<NOBPP@YBgSN�fQg=BO=<kB�wBQk<OBN o W W WuY<A@P�;gY=QgP n nnUTWW nnUTWW VVUqWW oUWqVD=xBQ�fSvP<O�w@yB=> TW pVUonn pVUonn ZmUlpn VVUTZmFDFuH�zP<YBN�T�X�TW{ TT lUmpnUWWn W W lUmpnUWWn pUpomUWoqlUmlnUpmo-2_705�|[3}4Eg@tNU�JQ<trBNU�~�w<tB�@P�N TV VmpUTTW TUZTqUqqW TUloTUooW TUZZmUooomUWoWUZqpf@Q�<Yr�X�sB=BQ�@Yt�DyyXw=QBB= TZ W W Ww=QBB=�H<rx=<Yr Tp qqUWWW qqUWWW qWUWWW mVUpWmFQ@yy<O�;gY=QgP�@Yt�w@yB=> Tl TpZUWWW TpZUWWW TVoUWWW TTlUmonwYg��EBAgk@P Tm TmWUWWW TmWUWWW TZlUWWW TnZUnlZG<rx�@>�KYr<YBBQ<Yr Tq W W Ww=QBB=�;PB@Y<Yr To W W Wu<QigQ= Tn W W W�@Qv@rB�z<y�Yg=�KY=BQiQ<NB{ VW VUWVVUlWW VUWVVUlWW TUWVWUWWWTUpZqUlqZD=xBQ�fSvP<O��gQ�N VT TqlUWWW TqlUWWW TqlUWWW TVZUVmmFDFuH�zP<YBN�TV�X�VT{ VV VUpmTUmTW TUmnqUqqW W pUTlnUZoW VUompUooooUWTZUVmT6+8716���4[5087�4+3\05+4�BPy@QB�uNN<N=@YOB VZ W W W;<=>�GgNi<=@P Vp W W Wf@>ABY=N�=g�fQ<k@=B�GgNi<=@PN Vl W W WGB@P=x�EBrSP@=<gY�@Yt�IYNiBO=<gY Vm W W W�@=BQU�u<QU�@Yt�sgN�S<=g�;gY=QgP Vq W W W;gAASY<=>�sBY=@P�GB@P=x Vo W W WD=xBQ�GB@P=x�@Yt�wgO<@P�wBQk<OBN Vn TlWUWWW TlWUWWW TVlUWWW TpWUnVnFDFuH�zP<YBN�VZ�X�Vn{ ZW TlWUWWW W W TlWUWWW TVlUWWW TpWUnVn527123+���3+53+810[.H<vQ@Q>�wBQk<OBN ZT TUpVVUTlZ TUpVVUTlZ TUVVmUoZlTUTTlUlnnsSNBSAU�J@Yt�@Yt�FxB@=BQ ZV W W Wf@Q�N ZZ TUWnpUZlo TUWnpUZlo TUWTWUVno nomUTopEBOQB@=<gY Zp TUoplUqqZ TUoplUqqZ TUqTnUWZVTUVmoUnln;BAB=BQ> Zl pWUWWW pWUWWW pWUWWW VoUWTp;gAASY<=>�;BY=BQU��ggU�~�s@Q<Y@ Zm VZqUWWW VZqUWWW VnWUWWW VZoUppqD=xBQ�;SP=SQB�@Yt�EBOQB@=<gY Zq TUWZVUTWW TUWZVUTWW TUpZVUTpWTUTWVUZWnFDFuH�zP<YBN�ZT�X�Zq{ Zo lUmqTUZop W W lUmqTUZop lUqToUZWlpUqZnUlTV



��������������	

�����������������������������������������

�������� ��!����"��#��$�#"���%� "��!��� ����&�  '�()�*
+��(

,-.,/01234,5�567,038,�.9:,�;<=>?�@ABCD����@EFGH�IJKLFGMN=OPAQ�MCAR�STQ?�UV�WXWW�Y�STZC�[XV�WXW[:\],4/̂ ,/2�9621]121,5 :,/,498 5.,61984,],/3,5 21_�5.,61984,],/3,5 0,̀ 25,4]16, 69.1298.4\a,625 .,4̂ 9/,/2.4\.41,294b 3̀0:,2;c;d 4,e,521̂ 92,0;c;; 962398;c;f6\̂ ^3/12b�g�,6\/\̂ 16�0,],8\.̂ ,/2<hBBTZ=>?�KCAT>=i=PA>=hZ [j X X XLPhZhB=P�kClCQhmBCZ> nX U[oVXXX U[oVXXX UUoVXXX UopVXXXHhTO=Zq�AZr�sRtAZ�FCZCuAQ nU X X XvQAZZ=Zq�w�xhZ=Zq nW oo[VjUy oo[VjUy oXpVp[U nXzVzWpE>{CR�<hB�w�LPhZ�kClCQhmBCZ> n[ oonVjzj oonVjzj nWWVnWU [zoVUpUGJN�FCtA>CO nn [jpVoUn [jpVoUn UVXnXVyWy UVXzWVzpXGEG|I�}Q=ZCO�[j�Y�nn~ no UVWn[Vppz X [jpVoUn X UVznWVnXX WVXpzVjyj UVjjWVnpj:,/,498�:\],4/̂ ,/2�A?hRV�<hTZP=QV�w�<=>?��AZAqCR nz WnV[jj WnV[jj WoVU[z UWVXnp<QCR�V�GRCAOTRCRV�w�N=ZAZPC�|rB� ny UVjUpVjpz UVjUpVjpz UVznjVoUn UVzyjVpnpLQCP>=hZO np X X XICqAQ��CRl=PCO�w�<=>?�|>>hRZC? nj WzjVUXX WzjVUXX W[[Vnjy WoUV[U[<=>?�HAQQ�w��CZCRAQ�KT=Qr=ZqO oX X X [[VWypGhR>�I=At=Q=>? oU X X XE>{CR��CZCRAQ��hlCRZBCZ> oW ypVyXX ypVyXX zjVoXX npVUpnGEG|I�}Q=ZCO�nz�Y�oW~ o[ WVWjUVUpo X X X WVWjUVUpo UVjyyVzny WVXWnVzyU0,̀ 2�5,4]16, on zVjWpVU[y zVjWpVU[y oVyzpVzUy oVjzjVzXp�hl�<Am=>AQ�vRh�CP>O oo UpVooWVXXX UpVooWVXXX UUVyjjVXXX XGJN�<Am=>AQ�vRh�CP>O oz X X XGEG|I�<|vJG|I�vFESL<G� oy X X X UpVooWVXXX X UpVooWVXXX UUVyjjVXXX X2\298�:����������9����������,�������������������ff�;;�dc�d������d������� op UyVnzyVXyn UVzjyVyyX [jpVoUn zVjWpVU[y UpVooWVXXX X noVXn[Vnjo [nVpWzVoW[WpVo[jVj[p3̀51/,55�2b.,�9621]121,5.������������,����������g�̀��������15_�A>CR�s>=Q=>? oj WVW[[Vj[j WVW[[Vj[j UVjjpVWo[ UVjo[VWpy�CuCR�s>=Q=>? zX UVjXXVn[W UVjXXVn[W UVpWXVUUp UVny[V[[ULQCP>R=P�s>=Q=>? zU X X X�AO�s>=Q=>? zW X X X|=RmhR> z[ X X XIAZri=QQ �ARtAqC zn X X XGRAZO=> zo X X X<AtQC�G¡V�JZ>CRZC>�w�GCQCm{hZC zz X X XHhTO=Zq�|T>{hR=>? zy X X X�>hRB��A>CR�s>=Q=>? zp WUpVo[y WUpVo[y UppVjjo UznVXpzE>{CR�KTO=ZCOO�G?mC�}P=>?�{hOm�V�J�NV�mAR�=ZqV�C>P�~ zj X X XLZ>CRmR=OC�kLKG��LF¡J<L yX [VWzUVWpj [VWzUVWpj [VnzXVzoX [VoW[Vy[yLZ>CRmR=OC�<|vJG|I�vFESL<G� yU znXVXXX znXVXXX pyjVXp[ nVUXWVyUnLZ>CRmR=OC�GJN�<|vJG|I�vFESL<G� yW X X X2\298�̀��������2����,��������������������¢�e��;� y[ pVWonVUjy pVWonVUjy pV[nyVXjjUUVWUyVUoo2\298�988�,-.,/01234,5��������������d� yn UyVnzyVXyn UVzjyVyyX [jpVoUn zVjWpVU[y UpVooWVXXX X pVWonVUjyo[VWjyVzjW n[VUy[VzWW[jVyoyVXj[FCqTQAR�GRAZOiCRO�ET> yo pXpVzXX [VXUnVjzU zVUpUVpWzUXVXXoV[py jVjXUVWWWUXVUWpVoWWJZ>CRZAQ�GJN�IhAZ� �FCmA?BCZ>�GRAZOiCRO�ET> yz nVWjnVyXn nVWjnVyXn nVojUVooy nVojUVooy2�����988�2����£����\�� yy pXpVzXX [VXUnVjzU nVWjnVyXn X X X zVUpUVpWzUnV[XXVXjU UnVnjWVyyjUnVyWXVXyj2�����,������������g�_����2����£����\���������������� yp UpVWyoVzyn nVyUWVy[U nVzj[VWUp zVjWpVU[y UpVooWVXXX X UnVn[zVXW[zyVojyVyp[ oyVzzzVnXUonVnyyVUyW,������_����̀�������a����dc yj UWVnUzVWnz WVozpVW[j WVUUnVjo[ WVpWzVjUW YUpVyojVpXz X pVXWWVUpW jVUppVyWz UXVoooVzyjUpVX[yVX[z



��������������	

�����������������������������������������

�������� ��!����"��#��$�#"���%� "��!��� ����&�  '�()�*
�(��(

+,-,./,0�1,23456789�:;<=>����:?@AB�CDEF@AGH7IJ;K�G=;L�MNK9�OP�QRQQ�S�MNT=�URP�QRQU V,.,+35 0W,X435+,-,./,0 24Y�0W,X435+,-,./,0 1,Z20,+-4X, X3W4235W+[\,X20 W,+]3.,.2W+[W+4,23+̂ Z/1V,2_̀_a +,b,024]32,1_̀__ 3X2/35_̀_c+,-,./,0�d�[2e,+�Y4.3.X4.V�0[/+X,0A;f=I�C=g7=h�iT�jLik=L89 O lPmnUPUoU QPRnpPnOR OPmlQPqpq R OQPRpUPlml OOPUQmPpmRORPqpqPQROC=II>�rTJiKK=J8=h�jLik=L89�A;f=I�S�C=g9�G=;L Q R R R:=8�6NLL=T8�jLik=L89�A;f=I�sK7T=�O�<7TNI�K7T=�Qt U lPmnUPUoU QPRnpPnOR OPmlQPqpq R OQPRpUPlml OOPUQmPpmRORPqpqPQROu=K7TvN=T8�jLik=L89�A;f=I m R R RADH�@=g=TN=I q mPpnUPQOq mPpnUPQOq qPoUQPQlm qPlpQPoRU?8w=L�6789�A;f=I>r87K789�A;f�@=kK;J=<=T8�FfJ7I=�A;f=I o UmPpUq lPqlU qPQQQ R mlPqmR moPoOl QQPQpRr87K789�xL;TJ7I=�8;f�sDiy;�6ih=�6w;k8=L�UomzQt p UmUPmRR UmUPmRR R Rj;L7<N8N=K�y;{=L�8;f l R R R|;<7T{�y;{=L�8;f n R R R}i~7K=�Bi<=�A;f=I OR QqPRRR QqPRRR QqPRRR QlPooQBi8=K�}i8=K�A;f=I OO ooPURR ooPURR pqPRRR oRPlnQ?8w=L�CiJ;K�?k87iT�A;f=I OQ UQRPRRR UQRPRRR QRRPRRR UOlPQQm�N~8i8;K�S�?8w=L�6789�A;f=I�sK7T=I�o�8wLN�OQt OU mmoPRUq lPqlU qPQQQ UmUPmRR lRUPQmR UmoPoOl mURPRmlC7J=TI=I���j=L<78I Om onnPQqR onnPQqR pRqPlRR pQnPqlQrI=�ix�}iT=9���jLik=L89 Oq OORPRRR mOPRRR OqOPRRR QOUPqRR OQRPRRQDT8=L{ig=LT<=T8;K>H=h=L;K�|L;T8I���@=7<~NLI=<=T8I Oo UqPRRR UqPRRR QPqpoPRRR qmRPqQQ@i;h�rI=�A;f=I Op QPqpRPOOq QPqpRPOOq QPQlpPUpq QPpUlPoon?8w=L��8;8=�|L;T8I���@=7<~NLI=<=T8I Ol OlpPpnq OlpPpnq UpRPplU moUPRpOCiJ;K�|L;T8I���@=7<~NLI=<=T8I On QmUPnqm mRqPRRR omlPnqm QQqPUOo QnoPOlm�N~8i8;K�S�DT8=L{ig=LT<=T8;K�sK7T=I�Oo�8wLN�Ont QR mooPpmn QPqpRPOOq R R mRqPRRR R UPmmOPlom qPmqnPmpm mPRUlPmmo6w;L{=I�xiL�H==I����=Lg7J=>�;8=L�r87K789 QO mPqnmPopQ mPqnmPopQ mPQlQPpll mPQnmPOUO�=y=L�r87K789 QQ qPRnRPRUm qPRnRPRUm mPnOUPOnq mPnonPOooFK=J8L7J�r87K789 QU R R R|;I�r87K789 Qm R R Rj;L�7T{ Qq R R R�7LkiL8 Qo R R RC;Thx7KK�|;L~;{= Qp QPRRpPURR QPRRpPURR R OPmUqPoqOBiIk78;K Ql R R RAL;TI78 Qn R R R6;~K=�A�P�DT8=LT=8���A=K=kwiT= UR R R RBiNI7T{��N8wiL789 UO R R R�8iL<��;8=L�r87K789 UQ QQUPnOo QQUPnOo QOmPoOo QOpPmlp?8w=L�H==I���6w;L{=I�xiL��=Lg7J= UU OPRllPURR OPRllPURR QPQppPoqR mnOPpUl�N~8i8;K�S�6w;L{=I�xiL��=Lg7J=�sK7T=I�QO�8wLN�UUt Um UPRnqPoRR R R R R nPnRlPoQQOUPRRmPQQQ OOPollPQmnOOPmRlPOpU�k=J7;K��II=II<=T8I Uq R R QPOOO}7IJ=KK;T=iNI Uo OnqPoRR OPqRRPRRR oPqRR OPpRQPORR UQOPoRR OPqpOPomp?8w=L�H7T;TJ7T{��iNLJ=I>@={NK;L�?k=L;87T{�AL;TIx=LI�DT Up UPqRoPpUm nmpPpUl qOOPOpn qPRUnPpUoORPRRqPUlp nPnROPQQQORPOQlPqQQDT8=LT;K�ADH�Ci;T�AL;TIx=LI�DT Ul mPQnmPpRm mPQnmPpRm mPqnOPqqp mPqnOPqqp0��������355�[���������2���������4� Un UPqRoPpUm R R qPQmQPmmQ qOOPOpn R qPRUnPpUoOmPURRPRnO OmPmnQPppnOmPpQRPRpnjLiJ==hI�ix�u=~8�sFfJKNh7T{�ADH�DT8=LT;K�EiLLiy7T{t mR OqPQoQPRRR OqPQoQPRRR RORPoQUPQqpjLiJ==hI�ix�6;k78;K��II=8��;K=I mO R R R0�������b[�����Y���������0��������������a��������̀� mQ UPqRoPpUm R R qPQmQPmmQ OqPppUPOpn R qPRUnPpUoQnPqoQPRnO OmPmnQPppnQqPUmUPUUo2�����+���������������������������������������������������a��������ca��c���c��_̀��a���a���a���d��c� mU OpPROUPUUO mPopoPoRl mPpnUPQOq oPpURPQUn OlPRQOPqpn R OmPnnqPlqlooPQURPlUR qRPOlqPRmmoRPRnOPOmnE={7TT7T{�HNTh�E;K;TJ=�MNK9�O mm OUPoplPqln QPoRmPUoQ QPROmPnqo UPRQmPlOR SOlPQQnPUlq R pPmoQPUmpORPqqqPopn OlPRUpPRUoOQPmQUPRqn2[235�+,-,./,0�d�Z,V4.�Z353.X,���������_ �a� mq URPonOPnQR pPQlRPnpR oPlRlPOpO nPpqqPRmn SQRpPlRo R QQPmqlPQRqpoPploPqRn olPQQQPRlRpQPqOmPQRl



��������������	

�����������������������������������������

�������� ��!����"��#��$�#"���%� "��!��� ����&�  '�()�*
����(

+,-./0,�12,30/�4255+6789:;�<=>?@����<ABCD�EFGHBCIJ9KL=M�I?=N�OPM;�QR�STSS�U�OPV?�WTR�STSW 30X06+Y 4.0Z[+Y60\0X204 /[]�4.0Z[+Y60\0X204 ,01/406\[Z0 Z+.[/+Y.6-̂ 0Z/4 .065+X0X/.6-.6[0/+67 12,30/_̀_a 60b04/[5+/0,_̀__ +Z/2+Y_̀_c6dedfgdh�i�-jkdl�]mfnfomfp�4qglodhC=r?K�E?s9?t�uV�vNuw?N:; Q xRyzWRW{W SRTz|RzQT QRyxSR}|} T QSRT|WRxyx QQRWSyR|yTQTR}|}RSTQE?KK@�~VLuMM?L:?t�vNuw?N:;�C=r?KUE?s;�I?=N S T T T T T T T<?:�8PNN?V:�vNuw?N:;�C=r?K W xRyzWRW{W SRTz|RzQT QRyxSR}|} T QSRT|WRxyx QQRWSyR|yTQTR}|}RSTQ�?M9V�P?V:�vNuw?N:;�C=r?K y T T T T T T TCFJ�B?s?VP?K } yR|zWRSQ} yR|zWRSQ} }R{WSRSxy }Rx|SR{TWA:�?N�89:;�C=r?K { yy{RTW} xR}xW }RSSS WyWRyTT xTWRSyT Wy{R{Qx yWTRTyxE9L?VK?K���v?N>9:K | {zzRS}T T T {zzRS}T |T}RxTT |SzR}xS~K?�u���uV?;�=Vt�vNuw?N:; x QQTRTTT T T T T T yQRTTT Q}QRTTT SQWR}TT QSTRTTSFV:?N�us?NV>?V:=M z y{{R|yz SR}|TRQQ} T T yT}RTTT T WRyyQRx{y }Ry}zRy|y yRTWxRyy{8�=N�?K��uN�J??K����?Ns9L? QT WRTz}R{TT T T T T zRzTxR{SSQWRTTyRSSS QQR{xxRSyzQQRyTxRQ|W�w?L9=M��KK?KK>?V:K QQ T T T T T T T SRQQQ�9KL?MM=V?uPK QS Qz}R{TT T T QR}TTRTTT T {R}TT QR|TSRQTT WSQR{TT QR}|QR{y|�P�UCu:=M�B?s?VP?K QW QWR}T{R}z| yR{|{R{Tx yR|zWRSQ} QRyx|R|z| SRSyxRyTT T zRz}{RQSSW{R{{xR|Wz W}R{zSRS{}WyR|y|RxQW-jkdl�]mfnfomfp�4qglodh�/qjn��/lnfh�dlh�[f Qy WR}T{R|Wy T T }RSySRyyS }QQRQ|z T }RTWzR|W{QyRWTTRTzQ QyRyzSR||zQyR|STRT|zvNuL??tK�u���?�: Q} T T T T Q}RS{SRTTT TQ}RS{SRTTT TQTR{SWRS}|vNuL??tK�u��8=w9:=M��KK?:��=M?K Q{ T T T T T T T T T T/qjn��6dedfgdh�nf��-jkdl�4qglodh Q| Q|RTQWRWWQ yR{|{R{Tx yR|zWRSQ} {R|WTRSWz QxRTSQR}|z T QyRzz}Rx}x{{RSWTRxWT }TRQx}RTyy{TRTzQRQyz0��df�mjgldh�i�-jkdl�]mfnfomfp�2hdhvP�M9L��=�?:; Qx }R{yzRTTz T T T }R{yzRTTz yRyx{RTx| }R{}zRy{xvP�M9L��uN�K Qz SRy{QR{QT QR{z|R||T T T yRQ}zRWxT SRx{yRxxx xRTQWRS{QD?=M:��=Vt��uL9=M��?Ns9L?K ST Q}TRTTT T T T Q}TRTTT QS}RTTT QyTRzSz8PM:PN?�=Vt�B?LN?=:9uV SQ }R{|QRWxy T T T }R{|QRWxy }R|QxRWT} yR|WzR}QS8u>>PV9:;�=Vt�HLuVu>9L��?s?Muw>?V: SS QRSyWRxx{ T WzxR}Qy T QR{ySRyTT SRTx{Rz|z QRzzSRyxz�?V?N=M��us?NV>?V: SW SRSzQRQx} T T T SRSzQRQx} QRz||R{y| SRTSyR{|Q�?�:��?Ns9L? Sy T T T {RzSxRQW| T {RzSxRQW| }R|{xR{Q| }Rz{zR{Tx8=w9:=M�vNu�?L:K S} T T T QxR}}SRTTT T QxR}}SRTTT QQR|zzRTTT T/qjn��3qedlf�dfj�+ojmemjmdh�0��df�mjgldh S{ Q|Ry{|RT|y QR{z|R||T WzxR}Qy {RzSxRQW| QxR}}SRTTT T y}RTyWRyz} WyRxS{R}SWSxR}WzRzWxGPK9V?KK�C;w?�vNuwN9?:N=;@�HV:?NwN9K?���F�J S| xRS}yRQz| xRS}yRQz| xRWy|RTzzQQRSQ|RQ}}/qjn��3qe�i�1gh�/��d�0��df�mjgldh Sx Q|Ry{|RT|y QR{z|R||T WzxR}Qy {RzSxRQW| QxR}}SRTTT T xRS}yRQz|}WRSz|R{zS yWRQ|WR{SSWzR|}|RTzW/qjn��/lnfh�dlh�-gj Sz xTxR{TT WRTQyRz{Q yRSzyR|Ty T T T {RQxQRxS{QyRWTTRTzQ QyRyzSR||zQyR|STRT|zCu:=M��EE�Hrw?Vt9:PN?K�JPVt�CN=VK�?NK�AP: WT QxRS|}R{|y yR|QSR|WQ yR{zWRSQx {RzSxRQW| QxR}}SRTTT T QyRyW{RTSW{|R}z|R|xW }|R{{{RyTQ}yRy||RQ|SHrL?KK�B?s?VP?K���A:�?N��uPNL?K�As?N WQ�~Vt?N��Hrw?Vt9:PN?K�CN=VK�?NK�AP: WS UQRS{SRWyW UW{RQSW zzRzz| UQz|Rxzx U}WTRySQ T }}zRxW} UQRW{{Rz}W U|RyxQRW}| }R{QWRz||1dpmffmfp�]gf��1n�nfod�̂g���c WW QWR{|xR}xz SR{TyRW{S SRTQyRz}{ WRTSyRxQT UQxRSSzRWx} T |Ry{SRWy|QTR}}}R{|z QxRTW|RTW{QSRySWRT}z0f�mfp�]gf��1n�nfod�̂gfd�à Wy QSRyQ{RSy{ SR}{xRSWz SRQQyRz}W SRxS{RzQS UQxR|}zRxT{ T xRTSSRQxS zRQxxR|S{ QTR}}}R{|zQxRTW|RTW{



��������������	

�����������������������������������������

�������� ��!����"��#��$�#"���%� "��!��� ����&�  '�()�*
����(

+,-.�/012�304/�567038+0�9�+/�304/:;<=<>?@�AB@C;?DCA=�BA=EFG�DCH�BA=EFG�><I<=J<�BA=EFG�@A?=FG�@<?F<KLJ>MN?F<�L?OP<=DF3QRS�-TUQ VUWXYS�WZ[\\XQ /]̂Q�WZ3QRS,R_̀aTS̀WY 3QRS1Q\W_XS̀WY-XURQb cb̀Yd̀̂ T_3XQ�ef [YSQbQ\S3XQ�ef /WST_,R_̀aTS̀WY3XQ�ef 4WYg�1QahicT]̀Ya�VaQYSeQQ\�3XQ�ef 1QgXdS̀WY\�gXQ�SW1QZ̀YTYd̀Ya�WbcbQ̂T]UQYS�WZ�6QbS̀Z̀Qg3QRS cT̀g�ZbWU�eXYg\�,/701/7V-�6XbbQYS�fQTb�3QRS5Qbj̀dQ�/TkQ\ VUWXYS�cT̀g6XbbQYS�fQTb�3QRS5Qbj̀dQ�+Qj]Flmln�F>H�opqrKMFKqsoptpuKpq�v�w>>qxKppx qqsGsurGsyr=A=K;A opqrKqpp xpuGppp oqsGrqp tooGrqp zxGtxo p tryGuro pFlmln�F>H�oppt�=Mqoz> o xGotqGppp=A=K;A ptKyy zxsGppp zyGqpy xptGqpy xGtox p xqoGyuu pFlmln�F>H�oppy�Mpptz> u uGpzzGppp=A=K;A pyKyu qtqGppp qsGxup qspGxup oGtsp p qsuGuop poppyM�Flmln�>l{l|}l z qGxxpGppp=A=K;A pyKyt qzpGppp rGqrp qzrGqrp rpp p qzrGtrp popqz?�Flmln�>l{l|}l x qGuqxGppp=A=K;A qzKup qoxGppp qpGrou quxGrou rpp p qurGoou pw~�ln�F>H�opqt�HFKxoKqzKEwF>HKpop ropGqxzGprr=A=K;A opqtKqo yppGppp uozGqxx qGqozGqxx zrGupy p qGqtpGzru popqzB�w~�ln�>l{l|}l t qGoqpGppp=A=K;A qzKuq qpxGppp qoGzpu qqtGzpu rpp p qqyGppu popqtM�w~�ln�>l{l|}l y qGqspGppp=A=K;A opqtKus oqpGppp zGtox oqzGtox rpp p oqxGuox popqy?�;A�Jn�~|�>l|lm~� s zGxsxGppp;A opqyKqos urpGppp qpyGpuu zryGpuu rpp p uxqGstp qqrGrruopqx?�;A�Jn�~|�>l|lm~� qp sGsrxGppp;A qxKpx yspGppp tuGtpp sruGtpp rpp p ytoGqxp soGqxpopqtB�;A�Jn�~|�>l|lm~� qq tGsypGppp;A opqtKzy zxxGppp toGqyq xotGqyq rpp p xotGtyq popquM�;A�Jn�~|�>l|lm~� qo uGxzpGppp;A quKqur uyxGppp qyGoru zpuGoru rpp p zpuGyru popqzM�;A�Jn�~|�>l|lm~� qu uGpspGppp;A qzKqqt uoxGppp qsGypp uzzGypp rpp p uzxGzpp popqoB�;A�Jn�~|�>l|lm~� qz qGyqxGppp;A qoKst qsxGppp uGuqx qsyGuqx rpp p qsyGsqx popqt?�;A�Jn��>l|lm~��w~�ln�Flmln�>JD qx zGzuxGppp;A opqtKuy zoxGppp zyGtxp ztuGtxp rpp p uzzGtyy qosGxroopqu�><E@; qr urpGppp=A=K;A quKqx urGppp zGppp zpGppp p p zpGppp popqo?�>JD�>l{l|}l qt qGyqxGppp=A=K;A qoKoo qupGppp qyGrsp qzyGrsp rpp p qzsGosp popqu?�;A qy oGzxpGppp;A quKrt otpGppp xGypx otxGypx rpp p p otrGzpxopquB�;A qs qGzoxGppp;A quKqux qxxGppp tGuoy qroGuoy rpp p p qroGsoyH�nl{ln�nll|�>�~��Ln��l���K�CEAD op xGqxpGppp;A opqyKqxu uoxGppp p uoxGppp p p p uoxGpppopqs?�;A�Jn��>l|lm oq yGpqpGppp;A opqsKyq yupGppp qqsGspp szsGspp rpp p sxpGxpp popop?�;A�Jn��>l|lm ooqpGqrpGppp;A opopKxp yyxGppp qyxGrpp qGptpGrpp rpp p qGpzzGuuu orGyrtopoq?�;A�Jn�~|�>l|lm~� ou tGotpGppp;A opoqKtq zyxGppp yuGupy xryGupy rpp p oqpGryr uxyGooooz K p p p p p pox K p por K p pot K p poy K p pos K p pup K p pDAD?@F yGrrzGpppqGzquGsytqpGpttGsyt qqpGttx p yGtppGsrx qGzytGtst



��������������	

�����������������������������������������

�������� ��!����"��#��$�#"���%� "��!��� ����&�  '�()�*
�+��(

,-./�0123�4150�678149,1�:�/2;.4�0-0;,6<=>=?@A�BCAD<@EDB>�CB>FGH�EDI�CB>FGH�?=J=>K=�CB>FGH�AB@>GH�A=@G=LMK?NO@G=�M@PQ=>EGRSTUVTWXY�4Z[\]�̂_̂` aUb[S[cb�4Z[\]�̂_̂` 0dbXY�-eYTfXbTdU4Z[�\]�̂_̂` 5dUg�2[fhi�RXjTUf�;f[Ub\[[c�4Z[�\]�̂_̂` 2[gZVbTdUc�gZ[�bd�2[kTUXUVTUf�dSRS[WXjl[Ub�dk�7[SbTkT[g�4[eb RXTg�kSdl�6dZSV[c�-0812�08;.�5Zgf[b][XS�4[eb�6[SmTV[�,[mj ;ldZUb�RXTg�5Zgf[b�][XS4[eb�6[SmTV[�,[mj<B�LEBE@A nHopnHqqq rsnHopt uHrtqHopt rHvqq q nHvnqHtpu wHsprHror>B>�<B�LEBE@A vHuroHqqq uupHqqs tHtsrHqqs wqtHnrn q tHsnqHnro q<?@>F�LEBE@A pHuusHqqq wHswtHopr wqHqrrHopr wwqHrrn q pHrqqHoun wHsprHror



��������������	
 �����������������������������������������

�������� ��!����"��#��$�#"���%� "��!��� ����&� '�()�* �(��(

+,-./0�,1�2345./�6078.+9�::�28,2,;0<�43<90-1=>?@A�BC@D�EFAG�HI�JKJJ�:�EFLC�MKI�JKJM/=NG�OPQ���+,8-6�5.408-B-RC�/=NG�/OFL?=A�S=AA�?OLTF?N�@�UFVA=?�RC@D=LW�OL�NRC�UDOUO>CT�4FTWCN�@NQ�����/OFL?=A�/R@XVCD>�M�YF@=A�/DCCZ�/=D?AC�[CCN=LW�<@NCQ����M\]\JKJJ����[CCN=LW-=XCQ����K̂QMK�2[���7N�NRC�UFVA=?�RC@D=LW�@LG�DC>=TCLN�OD�N@_U@GCD�X@G�UDC>CLN�OV̀C?N=OL>�NOI�OD�@DWFXCLN>�=L�P@aOD�OP�I�@LG�U@DN�OP�NRC�UDOUO>CT�VFTWCNb�-R=>�LON=?C�DCUDC>CLN>�@>FXX@DG�OP�NRC�>FUUODN=LW�TCN@=A�OP�DCaCLFC>�@LT�C_UCLT=NFDC>�OL�P=AC�S=NR�NRC�/=NG�/ACDZ�@LT�/OFLNG�7FT=NODb/=NG�VFTWCN>�@DC�>FV̀C?N�NO�UDONC>Nb�.P�UDONC>N�UCN=N=OL�DCcF=DCXCLN>�@DC�XCNI�NRC�;N@NC�7UUC@A�4O@DT�S=AA�ROAT�@�AO?@A�RC@D=LWb�1OD�XODC�=LPODX@N=OLI�?OL>FANRNNU>Q\\TOXb=OS@bWOa\AO?@A:WOa:@UUC@A>b-RC�4FTWCN�0>N=X@NC�;FXX@DG�OP�UDOUO>CT�DC?C=UN>�@LT�C_UCLT=NFDC>�=>�>ROSL�VCAOSb�/OU=C>�OP�NRC�NRC�TCN@=ACT�UDOUO>CT�4FTWCN�X@G�VC�OVN@=LCT�ODa=CSCT�@N�NRC�OPP=?C>�OP�NRC�[@GODI�/=NG�/ACDZI�@LT�@N�NRC�5=VD@DGbdef�fghijkhfl�dmhkn�hko�nfpq�rkhf�sfr�tuvvv�pknwkhimx�mx�rfywnkr�srmsfrhq uuz{u|}vdef�fghijkhfl�hko�nfpq�rkhf�sfr�tuvvv�pknwkhimx�mx�~yri�wnhwrkn�nkxl�ig {zvv{��7N�NRC�UFVA=?�RC@D=LWI�@LG�DC>=TCLN�OD�N@_U@GCD�X@G�UDC>CLN�OV̀C?N=OL>�NOI�OD�@DWFXCLN>�=L�P@aOD�OPI�@LG�U@DN�OP�NRC�UDOUO>CT�VFTWCNb�emxf��wj�fr�{u|���}����vv � �ihq��nfr���ixkx�f����i�fr�g��~��drk�fq��wn�kefq���ihq��nfr�4FTWCN�1B��JKJM 8C:C>N=X@NCT�1B��JKJJ 7?NF@A�1B��JKJH8CaCLFC>���,NRCD�1=L@L?=LW�;OFD?C>dkofg��fpifl�mx��rmsfrhq u u}�v�{���� uu�{}����v uv�����}vu�fgg���x�mnnf�hfl��rmsfrhq�dkofg��fpq��fkr } v v v+CN�/FDDCLN�2DOUCDNG�-@_C> { u}�v�{���� uu�{}����v uv�����}vu�fnix�wfxh��rmsfrhq�dkofg � v v vd����fpfxwfg � ���|{�}u� ���{}�}�� ����}��v{�hefr��ihq�dkofg � �v{�}�v {����u� �{v�v���i�fxgfg����frjihg � �||�}�v �v���vv �}|���}�gf�m���mxfq�kxl��rmsfrhq � u�u�vvv }u{��vv u}v�vv}�xhfrympfrxjfxhkn | {���u���� ����|���� ��v{������ekryfg��mr��ffg����frpi�f uv u{�vv��}}} uu�����}�| uu��v��u�{�sf�ikn�~ggfggjfxhg uu v v }�uuu�ig�fnnkxfmwg u} u��v}�uvv {}u��vv u���u�����hefr��ixkx�ixy��mwr�fg u{ u��}�}�vvv v uv��}{�}��drkxg�frg��x u� u��{vv�v|u u���|}���| u���}v�v�|-ON@A�8CaCLFC>�@LT�,NRCD�;OFD?C> u� ���}{v��{v �v�u���v�� �v�v|u�u�|0_UCLT=NFDC>���,NRCD�1=L@L?=LW�3>C>�w�ni���k�fhq u� ����|�vv| ������v�� ����|�����w�ni�� mr�g u� ��u�|�{�v }�������� ��vu{�}�u¡fknhe�kxl��m�ikn��frpi�fg u� u�v�vvv u}��vvv u�v�|}|�wnhwrf�kxl��f�rfkhimx u| ����u�{�� ���u��{v� ���{|��u}�mjjwxihq�kxl���mxmji���fpfnmsjfxh }v u���}��vv }�v���|�| u�||}���|¢fxfrkn�¢mpfrxjfxh }u }�}|u�u�� u�|������ }�v}����u�f�h��frpi�f }} ��|}��u{� �������u� ��|�|��v��ksihkn��rm£f�hg }{ u����}�vvv uu��||�vvv v-ON@A�9OaCDLXCLN�7?N=a=N=C>�0_UCLT=NFDC> }� ���v�{��|� {���}���}{ }���{|�|{�¤wgixfgg�dqsf����xhfrsrigfg }� ��}���u|� ��{���v|| uu�}u��u��-ON@A�755�0_UCLT=NFDC> }� �{�}|���|} �{�u�{��}} {|�����v|{drkxg�frg��wh }� u��{vv�v|u u���|}���| u���}v�v�|dmhkn�~����osfxlihwrfg�drkxg�frg��wh }� ����|����{ ��������vu �������u�}0_?C>>�8CaCLFC>���,NRCD�;OFD?C>�,aCD���¥3LTCD¦�0_UCLT=NFDC>\-D@L>PCD>�,FN }| �u�{���|�{ �����u�{�� ���u{�|��¤fyixxixy��wxl�¤knkx�f�§wnq�u {v uv�������| u��v{��v{� u}��}{�v�|0LT=LW�1FLT�4@A@L?C�EFLC�MK {u |�u����}� uv�������| u��v{��v{�



For Year Ending June 30, 2023
(Updated January 21, 2022)

Financial Planning Model



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

Public Safety
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Police
  Budget Inflation Rate 8.57% 10.57% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 2,588,729$      2,790,177$        3,060,517$            3,213,543$        3,374,220$        3,542,931$        3,720,078$      
  Services & Commodities 289,627$          375,900$         419,441$                 440,413$          462,434$            485,555$          509,833$         
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                        -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   
  Transfers 98,000$           65,453$            93,236$                 105,000$          158,000$            265,000$         265,000$         

Total 2,976,356$     3,231,530$      3,573,194$           3,758,956$     3,994,654$      4,293,486$    4,494,911$      

Emergency Management
  Budget Inflation Rate 25.14% 4.62% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
  Personnel Services -$                   -$                   -$                        -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   
  Services & Commodities 19,019$               23,800$            24,900$                 25,896$            26,932$               28,009$            29,129$              
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                        -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   
  Transfers -$                   -$                   -$                        -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   

Total 19,019$              23,800$           24,900$                25,896$            26,932$               28,009$           29,129$              
 

Fire
  Budget Inflation Rate 5.62% 20.83% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 693,762$          761,656$           1,002,488$           1,052,612$         1,105,243$           1,160,505$        1,218,530$         
  SAFER Grant -$                   35,000$           35,000$                35,000$           35,000$              35,000$           35,000$           
  Services & Commodities 225,564$          186,300$          174,300$               183,015$            192,166$              201,774$           211,863$            
  Capital Outlay 10,093$             -$                        24,000$           24,000$              24,000$           24,000$           
  Transfers 24,000$           24,000$           4,900$                   100,000$         100,000$           100,000$         100,000$         

Total 953,420$        1,006,956$     1,216,688$            1,394,627$      1,456,409$       1,521,279$        1,589,393$      

Building Inspections
  Budget Inflation Rate 10.93% 5.47% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 367,595$          416,489$          438,843$              460,785$         483,824$            508,016$          533,416$           
  Services & Commodities 66,885$            65,465$            68,466$                 71,889$              75,484$              79,258$             83,221$              
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                        -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   
  Transfers -$                   -$                   1,000$                    -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   

Total 434,480$        481,954$          508,309$             532,674$         559,308$           587,274$         616,637$          

Animal Control
  Budget Inflation Rate 187.43% 327.16% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
  Personnel Services 3,666$               5,100$                6,000$                   6,240$               6,490$                 6,749$               7,019$                
  Services & Commodities 4,406$              18,100$              18,100$                   18,824$              19,577$                20,360$            21,174$               
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                        -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   
  Transfers -$                   -$                   75,000$                 -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   

Total 8,072$               23,200$            99,100$                  25,064$            26,067$              27,109$             28,194$             

Traffic Safety
  Budget Inflation Rate 70.04% 13.97% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 22,136$              37,641$              42,899$                 45,044$            47,296$               49,661$             52,144$              
  Services & Commodities -$                   -$                   -$                        -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                        -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   
  Transfers -$                   -$                   -$                        -$                   -$                     -$                   -$                   

Total 22,136$              37,641$             42,899$                 45,044$           47,296$              49,661$             52,144$             

Total Expenditures 4,413,482$     4,805,081$     5,465,090$         5,782,262$     6,110,665$         6,506,818$     6,810,408$     

A Breakdown of Public Safety
% of General Fund Budget 34.06% 31.70% 32.14% 32.02% 32.26% 33.03% 33.01%
Cost/Capita 234.21$              247.83$             274.16$                   282.35$             290.65$              301.67$              307.97$            
Total Personnel Costs 3,675,888$      4,011,063$        4,550,747$           4,778,224$      5,017,073$         5,267,862$      5,531,188$         
% of Public Safety Expenditures 83.29% 83.48% 83.27% 82.64% 82.10% 80.96% 81.22%

REPLACE 
investigations
vehicle 
($32K),  
patrol car 
($58K) & 
technology 

ACCOUNT 
FOR
new full time 
employee; 
expanded 
weekend 
staffing 
(may be 
covered by 
grant)

REPLACE
technology 
($4.9K)

REPLACE
technology 
($1K)

REPLACE
animal 
control truck 
($75K)

ACCOUNT 
FOR
new 
lieutenant 

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 General Fund



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

Fire Capital Fund
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Revenues
  Transfer from General Fund 24,000$              -$                      -$                      124,000$             124,000$             124,000$             124,000$             
  Transfer from Reserves -$                      292,000$            -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
  Other Revenue 4,628$                  -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
  General Obligation Bond Proceeds -$                      370,000$           -$                      -$                      6,000,000$       1,500,000$         850,000$           

Total Revenues 28,628$               662,000$           -$                      124,000$            6,124,000$        1,624,000$        974,000$           

Equipment*
  Personal Protective Gear & Equip 18,253$                 24,000$              
  Outfitting New Engine & Tanker 123,512$                
  Off-Road Brush Fire Truck 270,000$           
  Fire Station Alert System 62,000$              
  Training Tower Conex boxes 42,000$              
  SCBA Compressor & Fill Station 75,000$              
  Staff Vehicle 65,000$              
  Fire Station #2 6,000,000$       
  Platform Ladder Truck 1500000
  Fire Station #2 Pumper Truck 850,000$           

Total Expenditures 141,765$              332,000$           141,000$             65,000$              6,000,000$      1,500,000$       850,000$           

Net Change in Fund Balance (113,137)$              330,000$           (141,000)$           59,000$              124,000$            124,000$            124,000$            

Beginning Fund Balance 235,448$            122,311$                 452,311$                311,311$                  370,311$               494,311$               618,311$                 
Ending Fund Balance 122,311$                452,311$               311,311$                 370,311$              494,311$              618,311$                742,311$               

Equipment* See Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) for equipment details.

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 Fire Capital Fund



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

Public Works
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Solid Waste Collection
  Budget Inflation Rate 7.06% 31.42% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
  Personnel Services -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
  Services & Commodities 1,437,573$         1,539,000$       2,022,500$      2,103,400$       2,187,536$        2,275,037$       2,366,039$      
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
  Transfers -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Total 1,437,573$       1,539,000$      2,022,500$     2,103,400$      2,187,536$       2,275,037$      2,366,039$     

Transit
  Budget Inflation Rate 41.97% 0.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
  Personnel Services -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
  Services & Commodities 123,266$            175,000$           175,000$           182,000$           189,280$           196,851$             204,725$           
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
  Transfers -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Total 123,266$           175,000$          175,000$          182,000$          189,280$           196,851$            204,725$          

Streets
  Budget Inflation Rate 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
  Personnel Services -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
  Services & Commodities 7,266$                -$                   -$                   99,500$            -$                   -$                   -$                   
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
  Transfers -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Total 7,266$                -$                    -$                    99,500$            -$                    -$                    -$                    

Total Expenditures 1,568,105$        1,714,000$       2,197,500$      2,384,900$    2,376,816$       2,471,889$      2,570,764$     

A Breakdown of Public Works
% of General Fund Budget 12.10% 11.31% 12.92% 13.21% 12.55% 12.55% 12.46%
Cost/Capita 83.22$                88.40$               110.24$                116.46$                113.05$                114.60$               116.25$                
Total Personnel Costs -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
% of Public Works Expenditures 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

FYI
expenses 
has an 
offsetting 
revenue

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 General Fund



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

Health & Social Services
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Social Services
  Budget Inflation Rate -4.21% 11.11% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
  Personnel Services -$                     -$                        -$                        -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Services & Commodities 140,929$             135,000$               150,000$               154,500$             159,135$               163,909$             168,826$             
  Capital Outlay -$                     -$                        -$                        -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
  Transfers -$                     -$                        -$                        -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Total 140,929$            135,000$               150,000$               154,500$            159,135$              163,909$            168,826$            

Total Expenditures 140,929$            135,000$               150,000$               154,500$            159,135$              163,909$            168,826$            

A Breakdown of Social Services
% of General Fund Budget 1.09% 0.89% 0.88% 0.86% 0.84% 0.83% 0.82%
Cost/Capita 7.48$                    6.96$                       7.52$                        7.54$                    7.57$                    7.60$                    7.63$                    
Total Personnel Costs -$                     -$                        -$                        -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
% of Health & Social Services Expenditures 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Discretionary Fund Applicants FY21 Award FY22 Award FY23 Request FY23 Actual
  Any Given Child 3,500$                 -$                        -$                        -$                     
  Arc of Southeast Iowa -$                     1,000$                     -$                        -$                     
  Big Brothers/Big Sisters 4,000$                4,375$                     -$                        -$                     
  Center for Worker Justice of Eastern Iowa -$                     5,000$                   -$                        -$                     
  CommUnity Crisis Services & Food Bank 7,500$                 10,500$                  -$                        -$                     
  Corridor Community Action Network -$                     2,000$                    -$                        -$                     
  Domestic Violence Intervention Program 6,600$                7,000$                    -$                        -$                     
  Horizons, A Family Service Alliance 10,000$               10,000$                  -$                        -$                     
  Friends of the Center 5,000$                8,000$                   -$                        -$                     
  Girls on the Run of Eastern Iowa 1,000$                  3,200$                    -$                        -$                     
  Houses into Homes 3,500$                 8,000$                   -$                        -$                     
  Housing Trust Fund of Johnson Co 15,000$               20,000$                -$                        -$                     
  Iowa City Free Medical & Dental Clinic 2,500$                 3,050$                    -$                        -$                     
  Iowa Legal Aid -$                     5,000$                   -$                        -$                     
  Journey Above Poverty -$                     -$                        -$                        -$                     
  NL Family Resource Center - ICCSD 35,000$              5,000$                   -$                        -$                     
  NL Food & Clothing Pantry 18,000$               20,000$                -$                        -$                     
  Rape Victim Advocacy Program 3,000$                3,000$                   -$                        -$                     
  Shelter House Community Shelter 5,000$                8,500$                    -$                        -$                     
  Table to Table -$                     6,375$                     -$                        -$                     
  United Action for Youth 4,000$                5,000$                   -$                        -$                     

Total 123,600$            135,000$               -$                         150,000$           

ACCOUNT 
FOR
increase 
from FY22, 
based on 
City Council 
consensus 
at budget 
planning 
session

PROPOSE
using ARPA 
funds

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 General Fund



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

Culture & Recreation
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Library
  Budget Inflation Rate 9.64% 16.83% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 879,348$         944,209$         1,032,198$        1,083,808$      1,137,998$         1,194,898$        1,254,643$       
  Services & Commodities 232,024$          274,340$         284,270$          298,484$         313,408$           329,078$         345,532$          
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
  Transfers -$                   -$                   107,200$          -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Total 1,111,373$          1,218,549$       1,423,668$      1,382,291$        1,451,406$      1,523,976$      1,600,175$       

Parks, Buildings & Grounds
  Budget Inflation Rate 7.10% 6.78% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 637,606$         737,140$           824,408$         865,628$         908,910$          954,355$          1,002,073$       
  Services & Commodities 235,658$          199,850$          209,840$         220,332$          231,349$           242,916$           255,062$          
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
  Transfers 80,000$           84,000$           56,000$           221,750$           317,500$           105,000$          105,000$          

Total 953,263$         1,020,990$     1,090,248$     1,307,710$       1,457,758$      1,302,271$       1,362,135$       

Recreation
  Budget Inflation Rate 37.17% 5.52% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 987,115$             1,268,825$        1,317,153$           1,383,011$          1,452,161$          1,524,769$        1,601,008$        
  Services & Commodities 231,908$           424,100$          463,250$         486,413$           510,733$           536,270$          563,083$         
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
  Transfers 48,000$           45,000$           53,400$            50,000$           50,000$           50,000$           50,000$           

Total 1,267,024$      1,737,925$      1,833,803$     1,919,423$       2,012,894$      2,111,039$        2,214,091$       

Community Center
  Budget Inflation Rate 18.62% 17.24% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
  Services & Commodities 143,112$              232,000$         237,000$         248,850$         261,293$           274,357$          288,075$          
  Capital Outlay 15,464$              -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
  Transfers 37,000$            -$                   35,000$           50,000$           50,000$           50,000$           50,000$           

Total 195,576$          232,000$        272,000$        298,850$         311,293$            324,357$         338,075$         

Cemetery
  Budget Inflation Rate 42.79% 0.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
  Personnel Services -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
  Services & Commodities 28,014$             40,000$           40,000$           42,400$            44,944$            47,641$              50,499$            
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
  Transfers -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Total 28,014$             40,000$          40,000$          42,400$           44,944$           47,641$             50,499$           

Aquatic Center
  Budget Inflation Rate 122.72% 6.36% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 295,952$          630,477$         674,100$          707,805$         743,195$           780,355$          819,373$           
  Services & Commodities 139,733$           339,900$         358,000$         375,900$         394,695$         414,430$          435,151$             
  Capital Outlay -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
  Transfers -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Total 435,684$        970,377$         1,032,100$      1,083,705$     1,137,890$       1,194,785$       1,254,524$      

Total Expenditures 3,990,933$    5,219,841$       5,691,819$       6,034,380$   6,416,185$       6,504,069$   6,819,499$     

A Breakdown of Culture & Recreation
% of General Fund Budget 30.80% 34.43% 33.47% 33.42% 33.88% 33.02% 33.05%
Cost/Capita 211.79$               269.22$             285.53$             294.66$            305.18$             301.55$              308.38$            
Total Personnel Costs 2,800,021$       3,580,651$       3,847,859$      4,040,252$      4,242,265$      4,454,378$      4,677,097$      
% of C & R Expenditures 70.16% 68.60% 67.60% 66.95% 66.12% 68.49% 68.58%

REPLACE 
gator 
($17.5); & 
lawn tractor 
($13.5)

ADD 
aerator 
($25K)

REPLACE
exercise 
equipment 
($50K) & 
technology 
($3.4K)

REMODEL
Circ Desk 
area  
($105K) & 
technology 
($2.2K)

ADD
acoustical 
panels 
($35K)

ACCOUNT
FOR
full time 
laborer

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 General Fund



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

Community & Economic Development
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Community Beautification
  Budget Inflation Rate 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
  Personnel Services -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Services & Commodities -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Capital Outlay -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Transfers -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Total -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Economic Development
  Budget Inflation Rate 11.11% 12.50% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
  Personnel Services -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Services & Commodities 108,000$         120,000$         135,000$         139,050$         143,222$           147,518$            151,944$           
  Capital Outlay -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Transfers -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Total 108,000$        120,000$        135,000$        139,050$        143,222$          147,518$          151,944$          

Planning & Zoning
  Budget Inflation Rate 28.14% 6.31% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 162,031$           227,535$         230,417$          241,938$          254,035$         266,736$         280,073$        
  Services & Commodities 244,597$         293,500$        323,500$        339,675$         356,659$         374,492$         393,216$          
  Capital Outlay -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Transfers -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Total 406,628$       521,035$         553,917$         581,613$          610,693$        641,228$         673,290$        

Communications
  Budget Inflation Rate 28.32% 15.42% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 292,944$         383,865$        444,393$        466,613$          489,943$        514,440$         540,162$          
  Services & Commodities 47,073$           65,272$            72,111$                75,717$             79,502$           83,477$            87,651$             
  Capital Outlay -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Transfers 10,000$           -$                  1,900$               20,000$          -$                  -$                  -$                  

Total 350,017$         449,137$         518,404$        562,329$        569,446$       597,918$         627,814$         

Total Expenditures 864,645$       1,090,172$      1,207,321$      1,282,992$     1,323,361$      1,386,664$    1,453,047$    

A Breakdown of Community & Economic Development
% of General Fund Budget 6.67% 7.19% 7.10% 7.11% 6.99% 7.04% 7.04%
Cost/Capita 45.88$              56.23$              60.57$              62.65$              62.95$              64.29$              65.71$                
Total Personnel Costs 454,976$        611,400$           674,810$          708,551$          743,978$         781,177$            820,236$        
% of C & ED Expenditures 52.62% 56.08% 55.89% 55.23% 56.22% 56.33% 56.45%

REPLACE
technology 
($1.9K)

SUPPORT
ICAD 
($75K),
Blues & 
BBQ 
($30K),
UNESCO 
($10K),
Entrepren'l 
Dev't 
Center 
($10K)

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 General Fund



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

General Government
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Mayor & Council
  Budget Inflation Rate 108.62% -2.93% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 11,999$               24,636$            23,899$            25,094$            26,349$            27,666$            29,049$            
  Services & Commodities 50$                     500$                  500$                  500$                  500$                  500$                  500$                  
  Capital Outlay -$                  -$                  -$                  6,000$              6,000$              6,000$              6,000$              
  Transfers -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Total 12,049$            25,136$             24,399$           31,594$             32,849$           34,166$            35,549$           

Administration
  Budget Inflation Rate 9.44% 4.43% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 1,012,637$        1,169,868$        1,212,061$          1,272,664$       1,336,297$       1,403,112$          1,473,268$       
  Services & Commodities 667,211$            668,518$          703,500$         738,675$          775,609$         814,389$          855,109$          
  Capital Outlay -$                  -$                  4,300$              10,000$            10,000$            10,000$            10,000$            
  Transfers -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Total 1,679,848$     1,838,386$     1,919,861$        2,021,339$      2,121,906$       2,227,501$      2,338,376$    

Elections
  Budget Inflation Rate
  Personnel Services -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Services & Commodities -$                  3,000$              -$                  -$                  15,000$             -$                  15,000$             
  Capital Outlay -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Transfers -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Total -$                   3,000$              -$                   -$                   15,000$            -$                   15,000$            

Legal & Tort Liability
  Budget Inflation Rate 6.17% 5.26% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 214,483$           234,662$         243,733$          255,920$         268,716$           282,151$             296,259$         
  Services & Commodities 26,330$            21,000$             25,367$            26,635$            27,967$            29,365$            30,834$            
  Capital Outlay -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Transfers -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Total 240,814$         255,662$         269,100$         282,555$         296,683$        311,517$             327,093$        

Personnel
  Budget Inflation Rate 52.54% 7.07% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 29,035$            49,500$           50,700$           53,235$             55,897$            58,692$            61,626$             
  Services & Commodities 19,149$               24,000$           28,000$           29,400$           30,870$           32,414$             34,034$            
  Capital Outlay -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Transfers -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Total 48,184$            73,500$           78,700$           82,635$            86,767$           91,105$              95,660$           

Information Technology
  Budget Inflation Rate 0.00% 100.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Services & Commodities -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Capital Outlay -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  
  Transfers -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  

Total -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Total Expenditures 1,980,894$     2,195,684$     2,292,060$    2,418,123$       2,553,204$    2,664,289$    2,811,679$       

A Breakdown of General Government
% of General Fund Budget 15.29% 14.48% 13.48% 13.39% 13.48% 13.53% 13.63%
Cost/Capita 105.12$               113.24$               114.98$               118.08$              121.44$               123.52$              127.14$               
Total Personnel Costs 1,268,153$         1,478,666$       1,530,393$       1,606,913$        1,687,258$       1,771,621$          1,860,202$       
% of General Gov't Expenditures 64.02% 67.34% 66.77% 66.45% 66.08% 66.50% 66.16%

REPLACE
technology 
($4.3K)

NEW
WILL BEGIN 
USING IN 
FY24

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 General Fund



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

General Fund Revenues
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Taxable Value
Inflationary Rate 6.93% 6.11% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
  Regular 923,395,112$           987,468,370$       1,047,708,166$      1,068,662,329$     1,090,035,576$     1,111,836,287$          1,134,073,013$        
  Agriculture 2,012,343$              2,038,647$             2,306,058$            2,352,179$               2,399,223$             2,447,207$             2,496,151$                

Tax Rates
  General $8.10000 $8.10000 $8.10000 $8.10000 $8.10000 $8.10000 $8.10000
  Insurance $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000
  Transit $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000
  Emergency $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000
  Other $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000 $0.00000

Total $8.10000 $8.10000 $8.10000 $8.10000 $8.10000 $8.10000 $8.10000

  Trust & Agency $2.00238 $2.00238 $2.00238 $2.00238 $2.00238 $2.00238 $2.00238
  Agriculture $3.00375 $3.00375 $3.00375 $3.00375 $3.00375 $3.00375 $3.00375

Tax Rate Revenues
  General 7,776,627$              7,998,494$             8,486,436$            8,656,165$              8,829,288$             9,005,874$            9,185,991$                
  Insurance -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          
  Transit -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          
  Emergency -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          
  Other 318,224$                  300,000$               320,000$                300,000$               300,000$               300,000$               300,000$               
  Trust & Agency 1,932,926$               1,985,591$                2,097,910$              2,139,868$              2,182,665$               2,226,319$               2,270,845$             
  Agriculture 6,249$                      6,045$                      6,927$                      7,065$                      7,207$                      7,351$                        7,498$                      
  Utility Excise Tax 22,270$                    33,583$                    34,735$                    35,430$                   36,138$                     36,861$                     37,598$                    
  Mobile Home Taxes 28,662$                   25,000$                   25,000$                   25,500$                   26,010$                    26,530$                   27,061$                     

Total 10,084,958$         10,348,713$           10,971,008$           11,164,028$             11,381,309$             11,602,935$            11,828,993$            

Inflationary Rate -9.49% 6.44% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
  Licenses & Permits 725,808$                 656,950$                699,250$                706,243$                 713,305$                  720,438$                 727,642$                 

Inflationary Rate 0.58% 17.02% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
  Use of Money 93,459$                   94,000$                  110,000$                  111,100$                      112,211$                       113,333$                    114,466$                   

Inflationary Rate -68.05% 6.83% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
  Intergovernmental 817,364$                  261,123$                    278,954$                 281,744$                  284,561$                  287,407$                 290,281$                  

Inflationary Rate 48.55% 8.30% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
  Charges for Services 1,915,466$                2,845,400$            3,081,600$             3,174,048$              3,269,269$             3,367,348$             3,468,368$             

Inflationary Rate -87.21% 290.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
  Miscellaneous 390,781$                  50,000$                  195,000$                 198,900$                 202,878$                 206,936$                211,074$                   

Inflationary Rate -12.19% -1.67% -6.67% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
  Utility Accounting & Collection 577,379$                 507,017$                  498,541$                  465,294$                 465,294$                 465,294$                 465,294$                 

Inflationary Rate 100% of backfill 80% of backfill 60% of backfill 40% of backfill 20% of backfill
  State Property Tax Backfill 318,224$                  302,489$                244,313$                  180,000$                 120,000$                 60,000$                  

Total 14,923,439$          15,065,692$          16,078,666$          16,281,356$            16,548,827$          16,823,689$          17,106,119$              

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 General Fund 



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27
Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Revenues
  Property Taxes 10,084,958$       10,348,713$         10,971,008$        11,164,028$          11,381,309$          11,602,935$         11,828,993$         
  Licenses & Permits 725,808$             656,950$            699,250$             706,243$             713,305$              720,438$             727,642$             
  Use of Money 93,459$               94,000$              110,000$              111,100$                  112,211$                   113,333$                114,466$               
  Intergovernmental 817,364$              261,123$                278,954$             281,744$              284,561$              287,407$             290,281$              
  Charges for Services 1,915,466$            2,845,400$         3,081,600$          3,174,048$          3,269,269$         3,367,348$         3,468,368$         
  Miscellaneous 390,781$              50,000$              195,000$             198,900$             202,878$             206,936$            211,074$                
  Utility Accounting & Collection 577,379$             507,017$              498,541$              465,294$             465,294$             465,294$             465,294$             
  State Funded Property Tax Backfill 318,224$               302,489$            244,313$              180,000$             120,000$             60,000$              -$                      

Total General Fund Revenues 14,923,439$      15,065,692$       16,078,666$      16,281,356$        16,548,827$       16,823,689$       17,106,119$          

Expenditures
  Public Safety 4,413,482$           4,805,081$          5,465,090$         5,782,262$          6,110,665$            6,506,818$          6,810,408$          
  Public Works 1,568,105$            1,714,000$           2,197,500$          2,384,900$         2,376,816$           2,471,889$           2,570,764$         
  Health & Social Services 140,929$              135,000$             150,000$             154,500$              159,135$                163,909$              168,826$              
  Culture & Recreation 3,990,933$         5,219,841$            5,691,819$            6,034,380$        6,416,185$            6,504,069$        6,819,499$          
  Community & Economic Dev't 864,645$            1,090,172$            1,207,321$            1,282,992$           1,323,361$            1,386,664$          1,453,047$          
  General Government 1,980,894$          2,195,684$           2,292,060$         2,418,123$            2,553,204$          2,664,289$         2,811,679$            

Total General Fund Expenditures 12,958,988$       15,159,778$        17,003,790$      18,057,157$        18,939,366$      19,697,639$      20,634,224$     

Revenues - Expenditures = 1,964,452$           (94,086)$             (925,124)$             (1,775,801)$          (2,390,540)$       (2,873,949)$        (3,528,105)$         

Fund Balance Allocation GF operating -$                      -$                      364,124$              -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
Fund Balance Allocation GF capital -$                      1,169,258$            411,000$               -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
ARPA Funds -$                      125,000$              150,000$             -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Net Change in Fund Balance (0)$                         

Beginning Fund Balance 5,539,500$         7,065,726$         5,896,467$         5,896,467$         4,120,667$          1,730,127$            (1,143,822)$           
Ending Fund Balance 7,065,726$        5,896,467$        5,896,467$        4,120,667$         1,730,127$           (1,143,822)$         (4,671,927)$        

% Reserved 47.35% 39.14% 36.67% 25.31% 10.45% -6.80% -27.31%

Total Revenues/Capita 792$                       777$                       807$                      795$                       787$                       780$                      774$                       

Expenditures/Capita
  Public Safety 234$                      248$                      274$                      282$                      291$                       302$                      308$                     
  Public Works 83$                        88$                        110$                        116$                        113$                         115$                         116$                        
  Health & Social Services 7$                           7$                           8$                           8$                           8$                           8$                           8$                           
  Culture & Recreation 212$                        269$                      286$                      295$                      305$                      302$                      308$                     
  Community & Economic Dev't 46$                        56$                        61$                          63$                        63$                        64$                        66$                        
  General Government 105$                       113$                         115$                         118$                        121$                         124$                       127$                        

Total GF Expenditures/Capita 688$                      782$                       853$                       882$                       901$                        913$                        933$                       

Personnel Expenditures
  Public Safety 3,675,888$         4,011,063$           4,550,747$         4,778,224$          5,017,073$           5,267,862$          5,531,188$            
  Public Works -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
  Health & Social Services -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
  Culture & Recreation 2,800,021$          3,580,651$          3,847,859$         4,040,252$         4,242,265$          4,454,378$         4,677,097$         
  Community & Economic Dev't 454,976$             611,400$               674,810$              708,551$              743,978$             781,177$                820,236$             
  General Government 1,268,153$            1,478,666$          1,530,393$          1,606,913$           1,687,258$           1,771,621$              1,860,202$          

Total Personnel Expenditures 8,199,038$         9,681,780$         10,603,809$      11,133,939$         11,690,574$       12,275,038$       12,888,722$       

% of General Fund Expenditures 63.27% 63.86% 62.36% 61.66% 61.73% 62.32% 62.46%

General Fund Summary

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 General Fund



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

General Fund Balance Policy Allocation
FY20 Balance FY21 Balance FY22 Balance

FY22 Allocated FY23 Allocated FY24 Allocated

Unassigned General Fund Balance 5,097,238$             5,896,467$             -$                          
General Fund Revenues 13,463,370$           14,923,439$            -$                          
Fund Balance as a Percentage of Revenues 37.86% 39.51% 0.00%

Fund Balance Policy (30% of Revenues) 4,039,011$               4,477,032$             -$                          
Balance Required to be Assigned 1,058,227$              1,419,436$              -$                           
Prior FY Remaining to be Assigned 81,036$                    146,177$                   15,488$                    

Total Available to Allocate 1,139,263$               1,565,612$               15,488$                     

Projects Funded FY22 FY23 FY24
1.  FY22 General Fund  operating deficit 94,086$                   

FY22 General Fund capital deficit
2.  Administration Transfers: Civic Campus design 300,000$               
3.  Parks Transfers: tennis court overlay 100,000$                
4.  Planning Services: Comprehensive Plan update 100,000$                
5.  Administration Services: technology updates 75,000$                   
6.  Aquatic Transfers: pool lights, heaters, ceiling tiles 65,000$                  *remaining funds allocated from pool capital reserve
7.  Comm Center Transfers: bldg control system & paint 47,000$                  

Fire Capital
8.  Fire Station Alert System 62,000$                  
9. Fire Department Bruch Truck 150,000$                 

Total 993,086$                
1. FY23 General Fund  operating deficit 364,124$                  

FY23 General Fund capital deficit
2. Police Transfers: replace investigations vehicle ($32K)& patrol car ($58K) 90,000$                  
3. Library Transfers: replace information desk 105,000$                 
4. Parks Transfers: replace gator ($17.5) & lawn tractor ($13.5) add aerator ($25K) 56,000$                  
5. Recreation Transfers: replace exercise equipment 50,000$                  
6. Community Center Transfers: add acoustical panels 35,000$                   
7. Animal Control Transfers: replace truck 75,000$                   
8. City Hall project 300,000$               
9. Centennial Park project 250,000$                
10. Community Center fund 75,000$                   

Fire Capital
11. Fire Station #2 land 150,000$                 

Total 1,550,124$               

Included in the budget

Potential options to fund

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 General Fund



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

America Rescue Plan Act Allocation

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 2,906,110$               
Remainder (275,000)$              

Projects Funded FY22 FY23 FY TBD
1.  Domestic Violence Intervention Program 25,000$                   
2.  North Liberty Community Pantry 100,000$                
3. City Social Services Grants 150,000$                 
4.  Storm Water GIS 200,000$               
5.  Affordable Housing Program 350,000$               
6.  Workforce Housing Program 100,000$                
7.  Social Service Support 300,000$               
8.  Water/Sewer/Storm Water Projects 1,500,000$             
9.  Centennial Park Splash Pad 456,110$                   

Total 125,000$                 350,000$               2,706,110$              

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 General Fund



$7,065,726 

$5,896,467 $5,896,467 

$4,120,667 

$1,730,127 

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

 $8,000,000

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25

General Fund Balance Projection

 $-
 $2,000,000
 $4,000,000
 $6,000,000
 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000
 $12,000,000
 $14,000,000
 $16,000,000
 $18,000,000

 $20,000,000

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25

General Fund Revenue/Expense Projections

Revenues Expenditures

32%

13%33%

7%
14%

General Fund FY21 Expenditure Breakdown

  Public Safety

  Public Works

  Health & Social Services

  Culture & Recreation

  Community & Economic
Dev't

  General Government

68%
4%

19%

3%

General Fund FY21 Revenue Breakdown

  Property Taxes

  Licenses & Permits

  Use of Money

  Intergovernmental

  Charges for Services

  Miscellaneous



 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $14,000,000

 $16,000,000

 $18,000,000

 $20,000,000

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

History & Forecast of General Fund Revenues

  Property Taxes

  Charges for Services

  Utility Accounting & Collection

  Licenses & Permits

  State Funded Property Tax Backfill

  Intergovernmental

  Use of Money

  Miscellaneous

 $-

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $14,000,000

 $16,000,000

 $18,000,000

 $20,000,000

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

History & Forecast of General Fund Expenditures

  Culture & Recreation

  Public Safety

  General Government

  Public Works

  Community & Economic Dev't

  Health & Social Services

 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Population 5,376 5,954 6,266 6,866 7,224 8,806 9,992 10,982 11,300 11,700 13,374 14,036 14,698 15,360 16,022 16,684 18,299 18,844 19,389 19,934 20,479 21,024 21,569 22,114 22,659 23,204

North Liberty Census History and Forecast



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

Hotel/Motel Tax
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated
Revenues
Budget Inflation Rate 6.75% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
  Taxes Collected 60,892$          65,000$         66,300$         67,626$          68,979$          70,358$          71,765$            

Total Revenues 60,892$         65,000$         66,300$         67,626$          68,979$         70,358$         71,765$           

Expenditures
CVB Contribution 12,387$            16,250$            16,575$            16,907$           17,245$            17,590$            17,941$             
Services & Commodities 3,145$              6,755$             6,890$            7,028$             7,168$              7,312$               7,458$             

Projects*
FY21 Projects 60,000$         
Concrete border & ADA ramp at Penn Meadows playground 15,000$           
Holiday Décor 10,000$          
Blues & BBQ, Summer Slate & Beat the Bitter 15,000$           15,000$           15,000$           20,000$         20,000$         
Babe Ruth Field concessions Phase 1 25,000$          
Babe Ruth Field concessions Phase 2 25,000$          
Liberty Centre Park repainting 25,000$          
Concrete border & ADA ramp at Deerfield playground 55,000$         
Fox Run Neighborhood Park trail connection 19,000$           
Frisbee Golf 20,000$         

Total Expenditures 75,532$          48,005$         63,465$         88,934$         94,413$          63,901$          65,399$         

Net Change in Fund Balance (14,640)$        16,995$           2,835$             (21,308)$         (25,434)$       6,457$             6,366$            

Beginning Fund Balance 47,393$          32,753$           49,748$          52,583$           31,275$            5,840$             12,297$            
Ending Fund Balance 32,753$          49,748$         52,583$          31,275$           5,840$            12,297$           18,663$           

% Reserved 43.36% 103.63% 82.85% 35.17% 6.19% 19.24% 28.54%

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 Hotel/Motel Tax



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

Franchise Fee Fund
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Revenues
  Alliant Energy -$                   200,000$        202,000$         204,020$         206,060$           208,121$            210,202$              
  Linn County REC -$                   60,000$           60,600$           61,206$             61,818$                  62,436$            63,061$                
  MidAmerican Energy -$                   80,000$           80,800$           81,608$             82,424$               83,248$            84,081$                

Total Revenues -$                   340,000$       343,400$        346,834$        350,302$            353,805$         357,343$            

Projects*
Babe Ruth Field backstop 60,000$           
Babe Ruth Field concessions Phase 1 25,000$            
Centennial Park ADA playground 120,000$          
Penn Meadows parking repair/resurface 250,000$         
Penn Meadows parking expansion 130,000$          
Centennial Park shelters 250,000$         
Fox Run Pond Park playground 175,000$          
Quail Ridge Park parking expansion 60,000$           
Centennial Park honorarium && gazebo 350,000$           
Fox Run Neighborhood Park playground 70,000$              
Fox Valley playground 200,000$           
Ranshaw House outdoor fitness equipment 60,000$              
Red Fern Dog Park agility equipment 65,000$              

Total Expenditures -$                   -$                   585,000$        485,000$        420,000$           -$                   325,000$           

Net Change in Fund Balance -$                   340,000$       (241,600)$       (138,166)$         (69,698)$            353,805$         32,343$               

Beginning Fund Balance -$                   -$                   340,000$        98,400$           (39,766)$             (109,464)$        244,342$             
Ending Fund Balance -$                   340,000$       98,400$           (39,766)$          (109,464)$          244,342$         276,685$            

Projects* See Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) for project details.

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 Street Repair Program



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27
Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Population 18,299                18,299                20,479               20,479               20,479               20,479               20,479               
RUT Formula Funding/Capita 124.22$              103.75$              104.17$               104.17$               104.17$               104.17$                104.17$               
2015 Gas Tax Funding/Capita 25.44$               21.25$                 21.34$                 21.34$                 21.34$                 21.34$                 21.34$                 

Revenues
RUT Formula Funding/Capita 2,273,095$      1,898,521$         2,133,195$         2,133,195$         2,133,195$         2,133,195$          2,133,195$         
2015 Gas Tax Funding/Capita 465,574$          388,854$         436,919$           436,919$           436,919$           436,919$           436,919$           

Total Revenues 2,738,669$     2,287,375$     2,570,115$       2,570,115$       2,570,115$       2,570,115$        2,570,115$       

Expenditures
Budget Inflation Rate 4.73% 12.47% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 733,467$          766,800$         851,260$           893,823$          938,514$           985,440$          1,034,712$         
  Services & Commodities 327,835$          383,660$         406,510$          426,836$         448,177$           470,586$          494,115$            
  Snow & Ice Removal 193,953$           145,000$          160,000$          168,000$          176,400$          185,220$            194,481$            
  Traffic Safety 115,689$            130,000$          143,000$          150,150$            157,658$           165,540$           173,817$             
  Street Lighting 62,406$            74,000$           77,000$            80,850$            84,893$            89,137$              93,594$            
  Transfers
    Equipment Revolving 245,000$         282,500$         320,000$        295,000$         280,000$        295,000$         230,000$        
    Capital 1,429$                -$                   52,300$            54,915$              57,661$              60,544$            63,571$              
    Debt 144,440$          147,040$          149,290$           149,190$            146,070$          147,690$           149,950$          
    Street Repair Program 388,854$         388,854$         436,919$           436,919$           436,919$           436,919$           436,919$           
    Billing & Accounting -$                   -$                   10,699$             -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Total Expenditures 2,213,074$      2,317,854$      2,606,978$    2,655,683$     2,726,292$     2,836,077$     2,871,160$       

Net Change in Fund Balance 525,596$         (30,479)$         (36,863)$          (85,568)$          (156,177)$          (265,962)$        (301,046)$       

Beginning Fund Balance 1,839,929$       2,365,525$       2,335,046$      2,298,182$        2,212,614$         2,056,437$       1,790,474$       
Ending Fund Balance 2,365,525$     2,335,046$    2,298,182$      2,212,614$        2,056,437$    1,790,474$      1,489,429$     

% Reserved 106.89% 100.74% 88.16% 83.32% 75.43% 63.13% 51.88%

A Breakdown of Road Use Tax (RUT) Fund
Total Personnel Costs 733,467$          766,800$         851,260$           893,823$          938,514$           985,440$          1,034,712$         
% of RUT Fund Expenditures 33.14% 33.08% 32.65% 33.66% 34.42% 34.75% 36.04%

Road Use Tax (RUT) Fund

ADD
dump truck 
w/snow 
equipment 
($260K) & 
sign 
equipment 

REPLACE
technology 
($2.3K)

IMPROVE
storage area 
($50K) 

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 Road Use Tax Fund



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

Street Repair Program
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Revenues
  Transfer from RUT Fund 388,854$         388,854$         436,919$           436,919$           436,919$             436,919$           436,919$             
  Other Transfers -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                      -$                   -$                      

Total Revenues 388,854$        388,854$        436,919$          436,919$          436,919$             436,919$          436,919$             

Projects*
Ranshaw Way Shoulders 300,000$        
Commercial Drive 151,000$            
Stewart Street 1,508,000$         

Total Expenditures -$                   -$                   300,000$       151,000$           1,508,000$        -$                   -$                      

Net Change in Fund Balance 388,854$        388,854$        136,919$           285,919$          (1,071,081)$         436,919$          436,919$             

Beginning Fund Balance (671,317)$           (282,463)$        106,391$            243,310$           529,230$             (541,851)$           (104,931)$             
Ending Fund Balance (282,463)$       106,391$           243,310$          529,230$         (541,851)$            (104,931)$         331,988$             

Projects* See Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) for project details.

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 Street Repair Program



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

Storm Water Utility
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Budget Inflation Rate 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
  Number of Accounts 9,056                 9,192                   9,330                 9,470                 9,612                   9,756                 9,902                  
  Base Rate 2.00$                 2.00$                 2.00$                 2.00$                 2.00$                 2.00$                 2.00$                  

Revenues
  Storm Water Fees 217,347$           220,607$         223,916$           227,275$          230,684$         234,144$          237,657$           
  Sales Tax -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                    
  Connection Fees/Permits -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                    
  Use of Money 450$                  1,000$               1,000$               1,000$               1,000$               1,000$               1,000$                
  Miscellaneous 131$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                    
  Transfers 12,505$             179,000$          -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                    
  Accounts Receivable/Payable -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                    

Total Revenues 230,433$        400,607$        224,916$          228,275$         231,684$          235,144$          238,657$          

Expenditures
Budget Inflation Rate -45.96% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 99,456$            109,554$          115,237$             120,999$          127,049$          133,401$            140,071$             
  Services & Commodities 64,629$            90,100$            103,300$          108,465$          113,888$            119,583$            125,562$             
  Capital -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                    
  Transfers
    Equipment Revolving 70,000$           12,500$             50,000$           3,250$               185,000$          82,500$            190,000$           
    Capital Reserve 179,000$          -$                  95,000$           81,000$            104,000$         133,000$          -$                    
    Debt -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                    
    Billing & Accounting 28,869$            26,685$            24,392$            25,791$              22,157$              23,265$            24,428$             

Total Expenditures 441,954$         238,839$         387,929$         339,505$        552,094$        491,749$         480,061$          

Net Change in Fund Balance (211,521)$           161,768$           (163,013)$         (111,230)$           (320,410)$       (256,604)$      (241,405)$         

Beginning Fund Balance 177,575$           (33,946)$          127,822$           (35,190)$           (146,420)$        (466,830)$       (723,435)$         
Ending Fund Balance (33,946)$         127,822$           (35,190)$           (146,420)$       (466,830)$      (723,435)$       (964,839)$        

% Reserved -7.68% 53.52% -9.07% -43.13% -84.56% -147.11% -200.98%

A Breakdown of Storm Water Utility
Total Personnel Costs 99,456$            109,554$          115,237$             120,999$          127,049$          133,401$            140,071$             
% of Storm Water Utility Expenditures 22.50% 45.87% 29.71% 35.64% 23.01% 27.13% 29.18%

REPLACE 
SW coord's 
truck 
($50K) 

ACCOUNT 
FOR
Liberty 
Centre 
Pond 
dredge & 
stone 
($60K) &
Muddy 
Creek 
flood 
control 
($35K)

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 Storm Water Utility



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33
Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Budget Inflation Rate 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
  Number of Accounts 8,948                   9,045                   9,181                      9,318                    9,458                   9,600                  9,744                   9,890                  10,039                 10,189                   10,342                  10,497                 10,655                  
  Gallons Sold 395,722,000     401,657,830      407,682,697     413,797,938      420,004,907    426,304,981      432,699,555     439,190,049     445,777,899     452,464,568     459,251,536      466,140,309     473,132,414        
  Proposed Rate Increase 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 2% 2% 0%
  Base Rate 31.24$                  31.24$                  31.24$                  31.24$                  31.24$                  31.24$                  31.24$                  31.24$                  31.24$                  31.24$                  31.86$                  32.50$                32.50$                
  Rate/1000 Gallons 5.63$                   5.63$                   5.63$                   5.63$                   5.63$                   5.63$                   5.63$                   5.63$                   5.63$                   5.63$                   5.74$                   5.86$                   5.86$                   

Revenues
  Waste Water Sales 4,934,726$        4,990,181$          5,065,034$       5,141,009$          5,218,125$           5,296,396$        5,375,842$        5,456,480$       5,538,327$        5,621,402$         5,819,838$         6,025,278$        6,115,657$           
  Sales Tax -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
  Connection Fees/Permits 21,750$               35,000$             25,000$             25,000$             25,000$             25,000$             25,000$             25,000$             25,000$             25,000$             25,000$             25,000$             25,000$             
  Use of Money 14,667$               20,000$             300$                   300$                   300$                   300$                   300$                   300$                   300$                   300$                   300$                   300$                   300$                   
  Miscellaneous 29,627$              6,000$                6,000$                6,000$                6,000$                6,000$                6,000$                6,000$                6,000$                6,000$                6,000$                6,000$                6,000$                
  Transfers -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
  Accounts Receivable/Payable -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Total Revenues 5,000,770$     5,051,181$          5,096,334$      5,172,309$        5,249,425$      5,327,696$       5,407,142$       5,487,780$      5,569,627$       5,652,702$       5,851,138$         6,056,578$      6,146,957$        

Expenditures
Budget Inflation Rate 4.61% 9.93% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 632,261$             777,103$             800,112$             840,118$             882,123$             926,230$           972,541$             1,021,168$           1,072,227$          1,125,838$          1,182,130$            1,241,236$           1,303,298$         
  Services & Commodities 841,070$            1,074,975$         1,097,580$         1,152,459$           1,210,082$          1,270,586$         1,334,115$            1,400,821$          1,470,862$         1,544,405$         1,621,626$          1,702,707$         1,787,842$         
  Capital -$                    -$                    4,300$                4,515$                  4,741$                  4,978$                5,227$                 5,488$                5,762$                 6,051$                  6,353$                6,671$                  7,004$                
  Transfers
    Equipment Revolving -$                    12,500$               125,000$            50,000$             65,000$             65,000$             505,000$          65,000$             65,000$             65,000$             65,000$             65,000$             65,000$             
    Capital Reserve 782,634$           475,000$           440,000$          290,000$          290,000$          290,000$          290,000$          290,000$          290,000$          290,000$          290,000$          290,000$          290,000$          
    Revenue Debt 1,667,795$         1,741,808$          1,752,322$          1,765,229$         1,778,560$         1,781,351$            1,459,729$         1,391,175$            1,183,624$          1,315,120$            1,643,470$         1,639,908$        1,639,086$        
    GO Debt 473,550$           565,290$           559,840$           554,265$           548,565$           547,765$            551,715$              550,315$             548,715$             411,665$              83,515$               81,915$                -$                    
    Billing & Accounting 274,255$            240,166$            231,725$             243,311$              255,477$            268,251$             281,663$            295,746$           310,534$            326,060$           342,363$           359,482$           377,456$           
    Upcoming Projects
      SW Growth Utilities -$                    -$                    361,453$            361,461$              363,686$           365,816$            362,189$            364,065$           365,581$             366,627$           361,559$             361,784$            361,645$            
      Mid/Long Term Projects -$                    -$                    -$                    206,438$           206,438$           206,438$           206,438$           206,438$           206,438$           206,438$           206,550$           206,550$           206,550$           

Total Expenditures 4,671,565$        4,886,842$      5,372,332$       5,467,796$      5,604,672$      5,726,414$        5,968,617$        5,590,217$        5,518,743$        5,657,204$      5,802,566$      5,955,252$       6,037,881$       

Net Change in Fund Balance 329,205$           164,339$            (275,998)$         (295,486)$         (355,247)$         (398,718)$          (561,475)$          (102,437)$          50,884$             (4,502)$              48,572$              101,325$             109,076$           

Beginning Fund Balance 4,673,945$        5,003,150$        5,167,489$         4,891,491$          4,596,005$       4,240,757$        3,842,039$       3,280,564$       3,178,128$           3,229,012$         3,224,510$         3,273,082$        3,374,407$        
Ending Fund Balance 5,003,150$       5,167,489$        4,891,491$        4,596,005$     4,240,757$      3,842,039$      3,280,564$      3,178,128$         3,229,012$        3,224,510$        3,273,082$       3,374,407$      3,483,483$      

% Reserved 107.10% 105.74% 91.05% 84.06% 75.66% 67.09% 54.96% 56.85% 58.51% 57.00% 56.41% 56.66% 57.69%

Total Personnel Costs 632,261$             777,103$             800,112$             840,118$             882,123$             926,230$           972,541$             1,021,168$           1,072,227$          1,125,838$          1,182,130$            1,241,236$           1,303,298$         
% of Waste Water Utility Expenditures 13.53% 15.90% 14.89% 15.36% 15.74% 16.17% 16.29% 18.27% 19.43% 19.90% 20.37% 20.84% 21.59%

Debt Service Coverage
  Net Revenue/All Revenue Debt 2.12                       1.84                       1.82                       1.80                       1.77                       1.75                       2.12                       2.20                      2.55                      2.26                      1.85                       1.89                       1.86                       
  Required Coverage 1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       
  Desired Coverage 1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       
  Difference (Actual vs. Required) 0.92                       0.64                      0.62                       0.60                      0.57                       0.55                      0.92                       1.00                       1.35                        1.06                        0.65                      0.69                      0.66                      

Waste Water Utility Budget & Forecast

REFURB 
manholes 
($70K); 
Ranshaw 
Way sewer 
($100K); 
phosphorus 
reduction 
($50K)   

REPLACE
membranes 
($220K) 
[note: 
membrane 
replacement 
of five (5) 
cassettes is 
taking place 
during 
FY23]

REPLACE
crane truck 
($125K) 

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 Waste Water Utility



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33
3,000          42.50$             42.50$             42.50$             42.50$             42.50$             42.50$             42.50$             42.50$             42.50$             42.50$             43.35$             44.22$             44.22$                 
5,000          53.76$             53.76$             53.76$             53.76$             53.76$             53.76$             53.76$             53.76$             53.76$             53.76$             54.84$             55.93$             55.93$                 
8,000          70.65$             70.65$             70.65$             70.65$             70.65$             70.65$             70.65$             70.65$             70.65$             70.65$             72.06$             73.50$             73.50$                 
11,000          87.54$             87.54$             87.54$             87.54$             87.54$             87.54$             87.54$             87.54$             87.54$             87.54$             89.29$             91.08$              91.08$                  

15,000        110.06$            110.06$            110.06$            110.06$            110.06$            110.06$            110.06$            110.06$            110.06$            110.06$            112.26$             114.51$               114.51$                   

3,000          -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 0.85$               0.87$               -$                     
5,000          -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 1.08$                 1.10$                  -$                     
8,000          -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 1.41$                  1.44$                 -$                     
11,000          -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 1.75$                 1.79$                 -$                     

15,000        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 2.20$                2.25$                -$                     

3,000          -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 10.20$              10.40$              -$                     
5,000          -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 12.90$              13.16$                -$                     
8,000          -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 16.96$              17.30$              -$                     
11,000          -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 21.01$                21.43$               -$                     

15,000        -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 26.41$              26.94$             -$                     

Waste Water Utility Budget & Forecast
C

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

in
 G

al
lo

ns

Monthly Waste Water Costs Based on Usage
A

dd
iti

on
al

 
W

as
te

 W
at

er
 

C
os

t/
M

on
th

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

W
as

te
 W

at
er

 
C

os
t/

Ye
ar

Waste Water Rate Increase Analysis

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 Waste Water Utility Rate Analysis



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33
Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Budget Inflation Rate 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
  Number of Accounts 9,187                    9,286                   9,425                   9,567                   9,710                    9,856                   10,004                 10,154                   10,306                 10,461                   10,618                   10,777                  10,938                 
  Gallons Sold 399,194,000     405,181,910        411,259,639        417,428,533      423,689,961      430,045,311       436,495,990    443,043,430    449,689,082    456,434,418      463,280,934    470,230,148      477,283,600     
  Proposed Rate Increase 3.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 2.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 0.0%
  Base Rate 17.10$                   17.44$                  17.79$                  18.14$                   18.14$                   18.14$                   18.14$                   18.51$                   19.06$                 19.63$                  20.22$                 20.83$                20.83$                
  Rate/1000 Gallons 6.87$                   7.01$                    7.15$                     7.29$                   7.29$                   7.29$                   7.29$                   7.44$                   7.66$                   7.89$                   8.13$                    8.37$                   8.37$                   

Revenues
  Water Sales 3,935,753$        4,001,823$        4,143,087$         4,289,338$       4,353,678$        4,418,983$         4,485,268$       4,643,598$       4,854,649$       5,075,293$        5,305,965$       5,547,122$          5,630,328$       
  Sales Tax 246,931$            240,109$            248,585$           257,360$           261,221$              265,139$             269,116$              278,616$             291,279$             304,518$            318,358$            332,827$            337,820$           
  Connection Fees/Permits 80,830$             103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           
  Use of Money 10,521$                 20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             
  Miscellaneous 13,427$               500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    
  Transfers -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
  Accounts Receivable/Payable -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Total Revenues 4,287,462$      4,365,432$      4,515,172$         4,670,198$       4,738,399$      4,807,622$      4,877,884$      5,045,714$       5,269,428$       5,503,311$         5,747,823$       6,003,449$     6,091,648$       

Expenditures
Budget Inflation Rate -1.14% -1.29% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 666,105$            739,051$            777,762$            816,650$            857,483$           900,357$           945,375$           992,643$           1,042,275$         1,094,389$        1,149,109$           1,206,564$         1,266,892$         
  Services & Commodities 1,112,158$             1,179,695$          1,240,492$         1,302,517$           1,367,642$         1,436,025$         1,507,826$         1,583,217$           1,662,378$         1,745,497$         1,832,772$          1,924,410$          2,020,631$         
  Capital 2,153$                  75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             
  Transfers
    Equipment Revolving 35,000$             62,500$             -$                    155,000$            -$                    -$                    180,000$           75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             
    Capital Reserve 200,000$          145,000$            120,000$            150,000$            305,000$          300,000$          80,000$             200,000$          200,000$          200,000$          200,000$          200,000$          200,000$          
    Revenue Debt 1,727,505$         1,526,878$         1,503,791$          1,274,841$          1,271,871$            1,625,168$          1,503,240$         1,500,000$        1,497,340$         1,494,240$         1,490,700$        1,487,720$         1,487,200$         
    GO Debt 320,600$          319,950$            244,050$           249,550$           249,850$           250,050$           -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
    Billing & Accounting 274,255$            240,166$            231,725$             243,311$              255,477$            268,251$             281,663$            295,746$           310,534$            326,060$           342,363$           359,482$           377,456$           
    Upcoming Projects

SW Growth Utilities -$                    -$                    40,161$                40,162$               40,410$              40,646$             40,243$              40,452$              40,620$             40,736$              40,173$               40,198$               40,183$               
Maintenance Facility Addition -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    136,683$            137,341$              137,864$            138,262$             138,485$            135,304$            135,304$            135,304$            
Control Bldgs & Generators (4&5) -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    159,671$              159,114$               160,715$              159,880$            159,880$            159,880$            
Plant Expansion & Well(s) -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    308,296$           307,221$             310,311$               310,311$               310,311$               

Total Expenditures 4,337,776$       4,288,240$      4,232,981$        4,307,031$       4,422,733$       5,032,179$        4,750,688$      5,059,594$      5,483,819$       5,632,343$       5,785,612$        5,948,869$      6,122,857$        

Net Change in Fund Balance (50,314)$             77,192$                282,191$              363,167$            315,666$            (224,557)$         127,197$              (13,880)$             (214,391)$           (129,032)$          (37,788)$            54,580$             (31,209)$             

Beginning Fund Balance 1,375,814$          1,325,500$         1,402,692$         1,684,883$         2,048,051$         2,363,717$         2,139,160$          2,266,356$        2,252,477$         2,038,086$       1,909,054$        1,871,265$           1,925,845$         
Ending Fund Balance 1,325,500$       1,402,692$        1,684,883$       2,048,051$       2,363,717$        2,139,160$         2,266,356$       2,252,477$       2,038,086$      1,909,054$       1,871,265$         1,925,845$        1,894,636$       

% Reserved 30.56% 32.71% 39.80% 47.55% 53.44% 42.51% 47.71% 44.52% 37.17% 33.89% 32.34% 32.37% 30.94%

Total Personnel Costs 666,105$            739,051$            777,762$            816,650$            857,483$           900,357$           945,375$           992,643$           1,042,275$         1,094,389$        1,149,109$           1,206,564$         1,266,892$         
% of Water Utility Expenditures 15.36% 17.23% 18.37% 18.96% 19.39% 17.89% 19.90% 19.62% 19.01% 19.43% 19.86% 20.28% 20.69%

Debt Service Coverage
  Net Revenue/All Revenue Debt 1.45                       1.55                       1.61                        1.94                       1.92                       1.47                       1.56                       1.60                       1.68                       1.75                       1.82                       1.90                       1.85                       
  Required Coverage 1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       
  Desired Coverage 1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       
  Difference (Actual vs. Required) 0.25                       0.35                      0.41                       0.74                      0.72                       0.27                       0.36                      0.40                      0.48                      0.55                      0.62                       0.70                      0.65                      

Water Utility Budget & Forecast

REPLACE
membranes 
($80K); 
previous 
Water Plant 
roof ($40K)

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 Water Utility



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33
Actual Budget Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Budget Inflation Rate 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
  Number of Accounts 9,187                    9,286                   9,425                   9,567                   9,710                    9,856                   10,004                 10,154                   10,306                 10,461                   10,618                   10,777                  10,938                 
  Gallons Sold 399,194,000     405,181,910        411,259,639        417,428,533      423,689,961      430,045,311       436,495,990    443,043,430    449,689,082    456,434,418      463,280,934    470,230,148      477,283,600     
  Proposed Rate Increase 3.0% 2.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 2.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 0.0%
  Base Rate 17.10$                   17.44$                  17.44$                  17.44$                  17.44$                  17.44$                  17.44$                  17.79$                  18.32$                  18.87$                  19.44$                  20.02$                20.02$                
  Rate/1000 Gallons 6.87$                   7.01$                    7.01$                    7.01$                    7.01$                    7.01$                    7.01$                    7.15$                     7.36$                   7.58$                   7.81$                     8.04$                   8.04$                   

Revenues
  Water Sales 3,935,753$        4,001,823$        4,061,850$        4,122,778$          4,184,619$          4,247,389$        4,311,100$           4,463,281$         4,666,138$         4,878,213$         5,099,928$       5,331,720$         5,411,696$          
  Sales Tax 246,931$            240,109$            243,711$              247,367$            251,077$             254,843$           258,666$           267,797$            279,968$           292,693$           305,996$           319,903$            324,702$           
  Connection Fees/Permits 80,830$             103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           103,000$           
  Use of Money 10,521$                 20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             20,000$             
  Miscellaneous 13,427$               500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    500$                    
  Transfers -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
  Accounts Receivable/Payable -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

Total Revenues 4,287,462$      4,365,432$      4,429,061$       4,493,644$     4,559,197$        4,625,732$       4,693,266$      4,854,578$      5,069,606$      5,294,406$      5,529,424$      5,775,123$        5,859,898$      

Expenditures
Budget Inflation Rate -1.14% -1.29% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
  Personnel Services 666,105$            739,051$            777,762$            816,650$            857,483$           900,357$           945,375$           992,643$           1,042,275$         1,094,389$        1,149,109$           1,206,564$         1,266,892$         
  Services & Commodities 1,112,158$             1,179,695$          1,240,492$         1,302,517$           1,367,642$         1,436,025$         1,507,826$         1,583,217$           1,662,378$         1,745,497$         1,832,772$          1,924,410$          2,020,631$         
  Capital 2,153$                  75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             50,000$             
  Transfers
    Equipment Revolving 35,000$             62,500$             -$                    155,000$            -$                    -$                    180,000$           75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             75,000$             
    Capital Reserve 200,000$          145,000$            120,000$            150,000$            305,000$          300,000$          80,000$             200,000$          200,000$          200,000$          200,000$          200,000$          200,000$          
    Revenue Debt 1,727,505$         1,526,878$         1,503,791$          1,274,841$          1,271,871$            1,625,168$          1,503,240$         1,500,000$        1,497,340$         1,494,240$         1,490,700$        1,487,720$         1,487,200$         
    GO Debt 320,600$          319,950$            244,050$           249,550$           249,850$           250,050$           -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    
    Billing & Accounting 274,255$            240,166$            231,725$             243,311$              255,477$            268,251$             281,663$            295,746$           310,534$            326,060$           342,363$           359,482$           377,456$           
    Upcoming Projects

SW Growth Utilities -$                    -$                    40,161$                40,162$               40,410$              40,646$             40,243$              40,452$              40,620$             40,736$              40,173$               40,198$               40,183$               
Maintenance Facility Addition -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    136,683$            137,341$              137,864$            138,262$             138,485$            135,304$            135,304$            135,304$            
Control Bldgs & Generators (4&5) -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    159,671$              159,114$               160,715$              159,880$            159,880$            159,880$            
Plant Expansion & Well(s) -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    308,296$           307,221$             310,311$               310,311$               310,311$               

Total Expenditures 4,337,776$       4,288,240$      4,232,981$        4,307,031$       4,422,733$       5,032,179$        4,750,688$      5,059,594$      5,483,819$       5,632,343$       5,785,612$        5,948,869$      6,122,857$        

Net Change in Fund Balance (50,314)$             77,192$                196,080$           186,614$             136,464$           (406,447)$        (57,422)$            (205,015)$          (414,213)$           (337,937)$         (256,188)$          (173,746)$          (262,959)$         

Beginning Fund Balance 1,375,814$          1,325,500$         1,402,692$         1,598,772$         1,785,386$         1,921,849$          1,515,403$          1,457,981$          1,252,965$         838,752$           500,815$            244,627$           70,881$               
Ending Fund Balance 1,325,500$       1,402,692$        1,598,772$        1,785,386$        1,921,849$         1,515,403$         1,457,981$         1,252,965$        838,752$           500,815$           244,627$           70,881$               (192,078)$          

% Reserved 30.56% 32.71% 37.77% 41.45% 43.45% 30.11% 30.69% 24.76% 15.30% 8.89% 4.23% 1.19% -3.14%

Total Personnel Costs 666,105$            739,051$            777,762$            816,650$            857,483$           900,357$           945,375$           992,643$           1,042,275$         1,094,389$        1,149,109$           1,206,564$         1,266,892$         
% of Water Utility Expenditures 15.36% 17.23% 18.37% 18.96% 19.39% 17.89% 19.90% 19.62% 19.01% 19.43% 19.86% 20.28% 20.69%

Debt Service Coverage
  Net Revenue/All Revenue Debt 1.45                       1.55                       1.55                       1.80                       1.78                       1.36                       1.44                       1.47                       1.55                       1.61                        1.68                       1.74                       1.70                       
  Required Coverage 1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       1.20                       
  Desired Coverage 1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       1.25                       
  Difference (Actual vs. Required) 0.25                       0.35                      0.35                      0.60                      0.58                      0.16                        0.24                      0.27                       0.35                      0.41                       0.48                      0.54                      0.50                      

Water Utility Budget & Forecast #2

REPLACE
membranes 
($80K); 
previous 
Water Plant 
roof ($40K)

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 Water Utility



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 FY31 FY32 FY33
3,000          30.84$            31.45$              32.08$             32.73$             32.73$             32.73$             32.73$             33.38$             34.38$             35.41$              36.48$             37.57$              37.57$                  
5,000          44.58$             45.47$             46.38$             47.31$               47.31$               47.31$               47.31$               48.25$             49.70$             51.19$                52.73$              54.31$              54.31$                   
8,000          65.19$              66.49$             67.82$             69.18$              69.18$              69.18$              69.18$              70.56$             72.68$             74.86$             77.11$                79.42$             79.42$                 
11,000          85.80$             87.51$               89.27$             91.05$              91.05$              91.05$              91.05$              92.87$             95.66$             98.53$             101.48$             104.53$           104.53$                

15,000        113.28$             115.54$             117.86$             120.21$             120.21$             120.21$             120.21$             122.62$            126.30$           130.08$           133.99$            138.01$             138.01$                 

3,000          0.62$               0.63$               0.64$               -$                 -$                 -$                 0.65$               1.00$                1.03$                 1.06$                 1.09$                 -$                     
5,000          0.89$               0.91$                 0.93$               -$                 -$                 -$                 0.95$               1.45$                 1.49$                 1.54$                 1.58$                 -$                     
8,000          1.30$                 1.33$                 1.36$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 1.38$                 2.12$                  2.18$                 2.25$                2.31$                 -$                     
11,000          1.72$                  1.75$                 1.79$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 1.82$                 2.79$                2.87$                2.96$                3.04$               -$                     

15,000        2.27$                2.31$                 2.36$                -$                 -$                 -$                 2.40$               3.68$                3.79$                3.90$               4.02$               -$                     

3,000          7.40$               7.55$                7.70$                -$                 -$                 -$                 7.85$                12.02$              12.38$               12.75$               13.13$                -$                     
5,000          10.70$              10.91$               11.13$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 11.35$                17.37$               17.89$              18.43$              18.98$              -$                     
8,000          15.65$               15.96$              16.28$              -$                 -$                 -$                 16.60$              25.40$             26.16$              26.95$             27.76$             -$                     
11,000          20.59$             21.00$              21.42$               -$                 -$                 -$                 21.85$               33.43$             34.44$             35.47$             36.53$             -$                     

15,000        27.19$               27.73$              28.29$             -$                 -$                 -$                 28.85$             44.14$              45.47$             46.83$             48.24$             -$                     

Water Utility Budget & Forecast
C

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

in
 G

al
lo

ns

Monthly Water Costs Based on Usage
A

dd
iti

on
al

 
W

at
er

 
C

os
t/

M
on

th

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

W
at

er
 

C
os

t/
Ye

ar

Water Rate Increase Analysis

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 Water Utility Rate Analysis



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

FY22 FY23 Difference FY22 FY23 Difference
Base Rate 31.24$               31.24$               -$             Base Rate 17.44$              17.79$               0.35$             
Rate/1000 gallons 5.63$                5.63$                -$             Rate/1000 gallons 7.01$                 7.15$                 0.14$              

Consumption 
(in gallons)

FY22 FY23 % $
Consumption 

(in gallons)
FY22 FY23 % $

3,000                                42.50$             42.50$             0% -$          3,000                                31.45$              32.08$             2% 0.63$        
5,000                                53.76$             53.76$             0% -$          5,000                                45.47$             46.38$             2% 0.91$          
8,000                               70.65$             70.65$             0% -$          8,000                               66.49$             67.82$             2% 1.33$          
11,000                                87.54$             87.54$             0% -$          11,000                                87.51$               89.27$             2% 1.75$          

FY22 FY23 Difference
Base Rate 2.00$               2.00$               -$             
Rate/1000 gallons -$                 -$                 -$             

Consumption 
(in gallons)

FY22 FY23 % $

3,000                                2.00$               2.00$               0% -$          
5,000                                2.00$               2.00$               0% -$          
8,000                               2.00$               2.00$               0% -$          
11,000                                2.00$               2.00$               0% -$          

Consumption 
(in gallons)

FY22 FY23 % $

3,000                                75.95$             76.58$             1% 0.63$        
5,000                                101.23$             102.14$             1% 0.91$          
8,000                               139.14$             140.47$           1% 1.33$          
11,000                                177.05$            178.81$             1% 1.75$          

Utility Rates Increase Analysis

Cost per Month FY23 Increase

Cost per Month FY23 Increase

Waste Water Rate Increase Analysis Water Rate Increase Analysis

Storm Water Rate Increase Analysis

Utility Rate Analysis

Cost per Month FY23 Increase Cost per Month FY23 Increase

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 Utility Rate Analysis



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY21

Fiscal 
Year TIF Valuation TIF Revenue TIF Rebates

Repayment 
of Fund 2012B 2012 2013C 2014C 2015A 2017A 2017B 2018A

FGR 
Agreement 2019A 2020A  2021A 2021 Projects

2022 
Projects

2023 
Projects

2024 
Projects

2025 
Projects

2026 
Projects

2027 
Projects

Total Debt 
Transfers

Holdover 
Funds

Beginning 
Cash

Surplus/ 
(Deficit) Ending Cash

2021 209,426,140$      5,632,284$       846,983$        194,358$  40,000$  393,938$   337,700$   293,350$   135,650$  1,285,281$  609,603$  325,000$   976,678$   5,438,541$     -$                 1,681,764$      193,743$         1,875,507$     
2022 197,218,456$        5,280,820$       1,042,037$      100,000$    196,760$  40,000$  401,638$    336,500$  293,150$     142,050$  526,681$    354,620$   325,000$   946,700$  575,648$   5,280,784$    -$                 1,875,507$     36$                   1,875,543$      
2023 170,693,182$        4,792,931$         398,512$          100,000$    198,815$   40,000$  403,763$   345,300$  297,850$   138,150$    527,781$     351,970$    325,000$   950,500$  484,300$  230,990$  4,792,931$     -$                 1,875,543$      -$                 1,875,543$      
2024 166,365,555$       4,575,053$       600,000$       100,000$    409,600$  343,300$  297,200$   139,050$  523,081$    348,570$   948,900$  481,300$   213,640$    420,412$           4,825,053$    250,000$      1,875,543$      (250,000)$     1,625,543$      
2025 165,747,983$       4,558,070$      600,000$       341,700$    296,600$  523,881$    350,320$   957,000$  478,200$  211,740$      420,421$           553,208$       4,733,070$    175,000$        1,625,543$      (175,000)$      1,450,543$     
2026 165,266,862$       4,544,839$       600,000$       300,900$  524,481$    346,770$   949,600$  475,000$  209,840$  423,008$         551,705$        413,535$        4,794,839$    250,000$      1,450,543$     (250,000)$     1,200,543$     
2027 160,182,380$       4,405,015$        600,000$       529,881$    348,070$  462,000$  466,700$  207,940$  425,487$          554,364$       413,544$        397,030$      4,405,015$     -$                 1,200,543$     -$                 1,200,543$     
2028 159,853,337$       4,395,967$       600,000$       529,363$   344,070$  458,800$  463,400$  211,040$     421,268$           549,318$        416,089$       397,039$      280,580$      4,670,967$   275,000$       1,200,543$     (275,000)$     925,543$        
2029 160,311,548$         4,408,568$      600,000$       533,000$  460,500$  465,000$  209,090$  423,450$         551,758$         418,527$         399,482$       280,586$       467,175$        4,808,568$   400,000$      925,543$        (400,000)$    525,543$        
2030 161,665,066$       4,445,789$       600,000$       457,000$  461,400$   212,140$      425,213$            553,927$       414,377$        401,823$        282,313$         467,185$        420,412$        4,695,789$    250,000$      525,543$        (250,000)$     275,543$        
2031 161,617,754$          4,444,488$      600,000$       458,400$  457,700$   215,140$      426,430$         548,008$      416,523$        397,839$       283,967$       470,060$      420,421$        4,694,488$   250,000$      275,543$        (250,000)$     25,543$           

2032 161,496,469$       4,441,153$          600,000$       459,600$  453,900$  212,885$     420,535$          549,102$        418,257$         399,899$      281,151$           472,815$         423,008$      4,691,153$       250,000$      25,543$           (250,000)$     (224,457)$      
2033 137,566,668$       3,783,083$       600,000$       215,528$     420,797$          549,519$        419,454$        401,564$        282,608$       468,126$        425,487$       3,783,083$    -$                 (224,457)$      -$                 (224,457)$      
2034 137,448,992$       3,779,847$       600,000$       217,903$    420,634$         549,337$       413,656$        402,714$        283,784$       470,551$        421,268$        3,779,847$    -$                 (224,457)$      -$                 (224,457)$      

Term
2021 Projects 12
2022 Projects 15
2023 Projects 12

2024 Projects 10
2025 Projects 12
2026 Projects 12
2027 Projects 12
TOTAL

Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Summary of Existing & Forecasted Debt 
Current TIF Bond Payments

3,000,000$                                   

4,500,000$                                   

Summary of Proposed Debt

Upcoming Projected TIF Bond Payments

Project completed or in progress, 
money not borrowed & payment 

schedule estimated.

Projects completed, money borrowed & actual payment schedule finalized. Projects not completed, money not borrowed & payment 
schedule estimated.

For additional information about projects, refer to CIP.
32,800,000$                                  

Amount
4,500,000$                                   

7,125,000$                                      
4,425,000$                                    

4,250,000$                                   

5,000,000$                                   

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 Debt Summary



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY21

Fiscal 
Year

Debt Service 
Valuation

Valuation 
Growth 2013A 2013B 2015A 2017A 2018A

FGR 
Agreement 2020A 2021A 2021 Projects 2022 Projects 2023 Projects 2024 Projects 2025 Projects 2026 Projects 2027 Projects

Total 
Payments

Holdover 
Funds State Backfill Tax Rate Increase

2021 1,136,909,944$   275,990$     158,978$      90,350$       207,300$    116,763$        325,000$    85,372$        1,259,753$      100,670$        15,793$            0.93$                
2022 1,181,789,276$      3.95% 276,440$    161,078$       88,750$       202,050$    114,213$         325,000$    505,115$       1,672,646$     -$                 -$                 1.42$                  0.49$               
2023 1,217,242,954$    3.00% 276,405$     162,928$      92,150$         196,800$     116,663$       325,000$    501,915$       358,222$     2,030,083$   475,000$       67,238$           1.22$                  (0.19)$               
2024 1,253,760,243$   3.00% 164,440$     90,450$       201,550$      113,963$       493,615$      355,222$      11,462$              1,430,702$     -$                 20,000$         1.13$                   (0.10)$               
2025 1,291,373,050$    3.00% 93,750$       126,100$       111,263$         490,315$      357,222$      11,462$              1,190,112$         -$                 14,000$          0.91$                 (0.21)$               
2026 1,330,114,242$     3.00% 91,950$        127,650$      113,563$        486,915$      354,172$      11,532$              450,212$          1,635,994$     -$                 7,000$            1.22$                  0.31$                 
2027 1,370,017,669$   3.00% 129,050$      110,713$         483,415$      356,122$       11,600$             450,222$         504,311$           2,045,432$    400,000$      -$                 1.20$                  (0.02)$             
2028 1,411,118,199$         3.00% 112,863$        479,815$      358,022$     11,485$              452,992$         504,322$         343,390$        2,262,889$    350,000$      -$                 1.36$                  0.15$                 
2029 1,453,451,745$    3.00% 109,863$      476,115$        359,872$     11,544$              455,647$        507,425$         343,397$        441,501$           2,705,365$    400,000$      -$                 1.59$                  0.23$                
2030 1,497,055,297$   3.00% 111,863$         472,315$      356,672$     11,593$              451,129$           510,398$         345,510$          441,511$            79,773$           2,780,764$    -$                 -$                 1.86$                  0.27$                
2031 1,541,966,956$    3.00% 108,608$     468,415$      363,472$     11,626$              453,465$        505,338$        347,535$         444,228$        79,775$           2,782,461$      -$                 -$                 1.80$                 (0.05)$             

2032 1,588,225,965$   3.00% 464,415$      364,842$    11,465$              455,353$         507,955$        344,089$        446,831$         80,265$           2,675,215$      -$                 -$                 1.68$                  (0.12)$               
2033 1,588,225,965$   0.00% 365,989$     11,472$              456,657$        510,070$         345,871$          442,400$        80,736$           2,213,195$       -$                 -$                 1.39$                  (0.29)$              
2034 1,588,225,965$   0.00% 366,739$     11,468$              450,344$        511,530$           347,311$           444,691$         79,935$           2,212,018$       -$                 -$                 1.39$                  -$                 
2035 1,588,225,965$   0.00% 367,081$      11,453$              450,624$        504,458$        348,305$        446,543$        80,349$          2,208,814$     -$                 -$                 1.39$                  -$                 
2036 1,588,225,965$   0.00% 372,007$     450,450$        504,773$        343,490$        447,821$          80,684$          2,199,225$      -$                 -$                 1.38$                  (0.01)$               
2037 1,588,225,965$   0.00% 371,427$       449,854$        504,578$        343,704$        441,630$         80,915$            2,192,109$       -$                 -$                 1.38$                  -$                 

.

Term

2021 Projects 12

2022 Projects 0

2023 Projects 12

2024 Projects 12

2025 Projects 12

2026 Projects 12
2027 Projects 12

TOTAL

General Obligation (GO) Summary of Existing & Forecasted Debt 
Current GO Bond Payments Upcoming Projected GO Bond Payments

Projects not completed, money not borrowed & payment 
schedule estimated.

Projects completed or in progress, 
money not borrowed & payment 

schedule estimated.

Projects completed, money borrowed & actual payment schedule finalized.

4,725,000$                                    
850,000$                                       

For additional information about projects, refer to CIP.
19,590,000$                                   

Summary of Proposed Debt
Amount

120,000$                                        

-$                                                 

4,820,000$                                   

5,400,000$                                   

3,675,000$                                    

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 Debt Summary



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27
Actual Budget Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

Taxable Valuation 1,136,909,944$    1,181,789,276$      1,217,242,954$     1,253,760,243$   1,291,373,050$    1,330,114,242$      1,370,017,669$   
TIF Valuation 209,426,140$      197,218,456$        170,693,182$        166,365,555$       165,747,983$       165,266,862$       160,182,380$      
General Fund Valuation 927,483,804$     984,570,820$     1,046,549,772$   1,087,394,688$  1,125,625,067$     1,164,847,380$    1,209,835,289$  

General Fund Revenues 
Generated by the $8.10 
Levy

7,512,619$              7,975,024$           8,477,053$           8,807,897$          9,117,563$              9,435,264$           9,799,666$         

98,882$                 214,855$                35,054$                 5,002$                    3,897$                    41,184$                  
Additional General Fund 
Revenue Generated by 
the $8.10 Levy

General Fund Revenue Projections ($8.10 Levy)

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 General Fund 



North Liberty Financial Planning Model FY23

Annual Property Tax Rate Projections & Comparisons

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27
General Fund 8.10$                8.10$                8.10$                8.10$                8.10$                8.10$                8.10$                
Special Reserves 2.00$               2.00$               2.00$               2.00$               2.00$               2.00$               2.00$               
Debt Service 0.93$               1.42$                 1.22$                 1.13$                  0.91$                1.22$                 1.20$                 

Total 11.03$               11.52$               11.32$               11.23$               11.01$                11.33$               11.30$               

$ Adjustment -$                (0.19)$               (0.10)$              (0.21)$               0.31$                 (0.02)$             
% Adjustment 0.00% -1.68% -0.86% -1.91% 2.85% -0.21%

Residential Property Tax Projections & Comparisons

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Annual 
Average 
Increase

Home Value
  $100,000 607.60$         649.67$          613.01$            607.75$          596.14$           613.14$             611.86$            
  Annual Adjustment 42.07$             (36.67)$           (5.26)$              (11.61)$               16.99$              (1.28)$               0.71$                 

  $200,000 1,215.20$         1,299.35$        1,226.02$        1,215.50$         1,192.29$         1,226.27$        1,223.71$          
  Annual Adjustment 84.15$              (73.33)$           (10.52)$            (23.21)$             33.99$             (2.56)$              1.42$                 

  $300,000 1,822.80$        1,949.02$       1,839.02$       1,823.25$        1,788.43$        1,839.41$         1,835.57$        
  Annual Adjustment 126.22$            (110.00)$          (15.77)$             (34.82)$           50.98$            (3.84)$             2.13$                 

Rollback 55.07% 56.41% 54.13% 54.13% 54.13% 54.13% 54.13%

Commercial Property Tax Projections & Comparisons

FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 FY25 FY26 FY27

Annual 
Average 
Increase

Building Value
  $100,000 992.91$           1,036.60$       1,019.22$         1,010.48$        991.18$            1,019.44$        1,017.31$          
  Annual Adjustment 43.68$            (17.37)$             (8.74)$              (19.30)$            28.26$             (2.13)$               4.07$               

  $300,000 2,978.74$       3,109.79$       3,057.67$      3,031.44$       2,973.54$       3,058.31$       3,051.92$        
  Annual Adjustment 131.04$            (52.12)$             (26.23)$           (57.90)$           84.77$             (6.39)$             12.20$              

  $500,000 4,964.57$      5,182.98$        5,096.11$         5,052.40$      4,955.91$        5,097.19$       5,086.53$      
  Annual Adjustment 218.41$             (86.87)$           (43.71)$            (96.49)$          141.28$             (10.65)$            20.33$             

Rollback 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00% 90.00%

Property Tax Rate Analysis

NL Planning Model FY23 v 2022_01_21 Property Tax Rate Analysis



FY 2023 - FY 2027
updated January 21, 2022



Department Project ID# Category Project Type Project Name

Phase or 

Frequency

Referenced 

Plan Project Description  TOTALS General Fund Sewer Fund

Storm Sewer 

Fund Water Fund

General 

Obligation (GO) 

Bond

Tax Increment 

Financing (TIF) 

Bond Revenue Bond

Hotel/Motel 

Fund

Road Use Tax 

Fund Franchise Fees State Funds Federal Funds Other Sources

19,305,000$        411,000$          565,000$          145,000$          120,000$          9,157,000$       5,405,000$       -$                  25,000$            370,000$          585,000$          -$                  -$                  2,522,000$       

Administration 23ADMN01 FACILITY New Construction Administrative Campus
Phase 2 - City 

Hall Addition

Design & construct a new City Hall to 

accommodate administration, billing, building, 

communications, planning, human resources & City 

Council chambers. Includes addition to Police 

Headquarters.

9,000,000$          9,000,000$       

Community Center 23CCTR01 FACILITY Improvement Acoustical Panels One-time

Design & install acoustical panels in Library main 

hallway to buffer noise pollution created in the 

Community Center.

35,000$               35,000$            

23FIRE01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Air Compressor/SCBA Fill Station One-time
Replace 1998 air compressor used to fill SCBA 

cylinders.
75,000$               Fire Department Capital Reserve Fund = 75,000$            

23FIRE02 FACILITY New Construction Fire Training Project One-time
Fire Strategic 

Plan

Purchase Conex boxes to be configured for live fire 

training, stacked to simulate both main level & 

basement fires. Boxes would be placed at the 

Wastewater Plant training area.

42,000$               Fire Department Capital Reserve Fund = 42,000$            

Library 23LIBR01 FACILITY Improvement Information Desk One-time
Update & renovate Library information desk for 

more effective & efficient workflow & service.
105,000$             105,000$          

23PARK01 EQUIPMENT New Purchase Deep Tine Aerator Attachment One-time Purchase deep tine aerator attachment for tractor. 25,000$               25,000$            

23PARK02 FLEET Replacement Gator Utility Vehicle One-time
Replace 2014 John Deere XUV 825i Gator Utility 

Vehicle with new utility vehicle.
17,500$               17,500$            

23PARK03 FLEET Replacement Lawn Tractor - Ballfield One-time
Replace 2012 John Deere X748 lawn tractor used 

for ballfield maintenance with new lawn tractor.
13,500$               13,500$            

23PARK04 PARK Improvement Babe Ruth Field - Backstop One-time
Improve ballfield backstop due to the orientation of 

the new parking lot.
60,000$               60,000$            

23PARK05 PARK Improvement Babe Ruth Field - Restrooms/Concessions 1 of 2
Park 2018 

Priority 1

Upgrade or replace restrooms/concessions/ 

storage building (possible joint project with field 

users).

50,000$               25,000$            25,000$            

23PARK06 PARK New Construction Centennial Park One-time
Park 2018 

Priority 2

Construct pavilion, outdoor performance venue & 

5,000 sqft splash pad.
3,500,000$          2,750,000$       Fundraising & Grants = 750,000$          

23PARK07 PARK New Construction Centennial Park - ADA Playground One-time
Park 2018 

Priority 1

Construct a special needs playground with pour-in-

place rubber surface.
120,000$             120,000$          

23PARK08 PARK Maintenance/Cleaning Penn Meadows Park - Parking One-time
Park 2018 

Priority 3
Repair & resurface existing north parking lot. 250,000$             250,000$          

23PARK09 PARK New Construction Penn Meadows Park - Parking One-time
Park 2018 

Priority 3
Expand the existing north parking lot. 130,000$             130,000$          

23PARK10 TRAIL Improvement Widen Segment - Trails Plan Ongoing
Trails Plan 

Priority 3

Widen 1,448' segment from a 4' sidewalk to an 8' 

trail on North Kansas Avenue from North Madison 

Avenue to West Lake Road.

157,000$             157,000$          

23POLC01 FLEET New Purchase Investigations Vehicle One-time Add vehicle for Second Investigator (215). 32,000$               32,000$            

23POLC02 FLEET Replacement Patrol Car Ongoing
Replace a patrol car (203), including related 

equipment.
58,000$               58,000$            

Recreation & Aquatics 23RECR01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Recreation - Exercise Ongoing
Annual designation of funds to replace cardio & 

weight exercise equipment at Community Center.
50,000$               50,000$            

23STOR01 FLEET Replacement Storm Water Coordinator Vehicle One-time Replace 2012 Ford F150 truck. 50,000$               50,000$            

23STOR02 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Liberty Centre Pond - Dredge One-time Dredge north point. 20,000$               20,000$            

23STOR03 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Liberty Centre Pond - Stone One-time Repair pond stone. 40,000$               40,000$            

23STOR04 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Muddy Creek Flood Control Section 2
Remove silted-in debris & vegetation under-and-

around South Front Street Bridge.
8,000$                 8,000$              

23STOR05 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Muddy Creek Flood Control Section 3
Remove silted-in debris & vegetation under-and-

around Rachael Street Bridge.
27,000$               27,000$            

23STRE01 EQUIPMENT New Purchase Sign Production Equipment One-time
Purchase sign production equipment to make street 

signs.
60,000$               60,000$            

23STRE02 FLEET Replacement Animal Control Pickup Truck One-time Replace 2003 F-250 animal control unit. 75,000$               75,000$            

23STRE03 FLEET New Purchase Dump Truck & Snow Equipment One-time
Add new single axle dump truck & snow 

equipment.
260,000$             260,000$          

23STRE04 STREET New Construction North Jones Boulevard One-time
Construct North Jones Blvd (a collector), from Penn 

Street to 240th Street.
3,000,000$          2,250,000$       Development Funded = 750,000$          

23STRE05 STREET Improvement Ranshaw Way (HWY 965) shoulders Phase 2B HWY 965
Pave shoulders of Ranshaw Way, 4' edge of road, 

from 240th Street to north corporate limits. 
300,000$             Street Repair Program Fund = 300,000$          

23STRE06 STREET Improvement West Penn Street Phase 4 Penn Street
Reconstruct West Penn Street, from Herky Street 

to west city limits.
810,000$             405,000$          Cost Sharing with Johnson County = 405,000$          

City of North Liberty, Iowa

Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan FY23-FY27 (July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2027)

PROJECT SCHEDULE FOR FY23:  JULY 1, 2022 - JUNE 30, 2023

Fire

Storm Water

Parks

Police

Streets



Department Project ID# Category Project Type Project Name

Phase or 

Frequency

Referenced 

Plan Project Description  TOTALS General Fund Sewer Fund

Storm Sewer 

Fund Water Fund

General 

Obligation (GO) 

Bond

Tax Increment 

Financing (TIF) 

Bond Revenue Bond

Hotel/Motel 

Fund

Road Use Tax 

Fund Franchise Fees State Funds Federal Funds Other Sources

19,305,000$        411,000$          565,000$          145,000$          120,000$          9,157,000$       5,405,000$       -$                  25,000$            370,000$          585,000$          -$                  -$                  2,522,000$       

PROJECT SCHEDULE FOR FY23:  JULY 1, 2022 - JUNE 30, 2023

23WAST01 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Cassettes Ongoing
Savings set aside for future membrane 

cassette/module replacements.
220,000$             220,000$          

23WAST02 FACILITY Improvement Phosphorus Reduction Treatment One-time

Install chemical treatment equipment at the Waste 

Water Treatment Plant for total phosphorus 

reduction.

50,000$               50,000$            

23WAST03 FLEET Replacement Crane Truck One-time

Replace Ford F-450 service truck with 4X4 truck 

with accessories such as crane, utility box, lights & 

other equipment as needed.

125,000$             125,000$          

23WAST04 SYSTEM Maintenance/Cleaning Manhole Rehabilitation Ongoing
Rehabilitate aging & deteriorated manholes as 

needed to avoid infiltration of ground water.
70,000$               70,000$            

23WAST05 SYSTEM Maintenance/Cleaning Ranshaw Way Sewer Repair Phase 1
Pipe lining of 8", 10", 12" ductile iron sewer main 

crossings of Ranshaw Way.
100,000$             100,000$          

23WATR01 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Modules Ongoing
Annual designation of funds to replace the Harn 

membrane train modules in the water plant.
80,000$               80,000$            

23WATR02 FACILITY Replacement Old Water Treatment Plant - Roof One-time
Replace roof of the former Water Treatment Plant 

building.  
40,000$               40,000$            

23WORK01 FACILITY
Improvement - water, 

parks & streets
Public Works Storage Area Ongoing

Continued improvements to the fleet & equipment 

storage capacity at the Public Works Campus. 
50,000$               50,000$            

23WORK02 SYSTEM
New Purchase - sewer, 

streets, waste & water
GIS Mapping of Systems - Storm Sewer 3 of 3

Set aside for new utility GIS mapping application 

for sanitary sewer, storm sewer & water networks.
200,000$             American Rescue Plan Act = 200,000$          

Combination Public 

Works

Water

Waste Water



Department Project ID# Category Project Type Project Name

Phase or 

Frequency

Referenced 

Plan Project Description  TOTALS General Fund Sewer Fund

Storm Sewer 

Fund Water Fund

General 

Obligation (GO) 

Bond

Tax Increment 

Financing (TIF) 

Bond Revenue Bond

Hotel/Motel 

Fund

Road Use Tax 

Fund Franchise Fees State Funds Federal Funds Other Sources

27,128,500$        488,250$          290,000$          84,250$            325,000$          1,152,800$       6,500,000$       -$                  68,000$            840,000$          485,000$          14,000,000$     -$                  2,895,200$       

Fire 24FIRE01 FLEET Replacement Command/EMS Vehicle One-time

Moving current EMS vehicle to training to replace 

used (hand me down squad car) vehicle. This 

purchase will be used for a new command/EMS 

vehicle.

80,000$               Fire Department Capital Reserve Fund = 80,000$            

24PARK01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Sprayer/Fertilizer One-time
Replace 2006 PermaGreen sprayer/fertilizer 

machine with new Z-Spray Z-Max machine.
11,500$               11,500$            

24PARK02 FACILITY Improvement Parks Shop - Driveway 1 of 2
Park 2018 

Priority 3

Improve Parks Shop access by adding a concrete 

driveway connection. West side addition in future 

year.

80,000$               40,000$            20,000$            20,000$            

24PARK03 FLEET Replacement Dump Truck One-time

Replace 2006 Ford F350 dump truck with new Ford 

F450 dump truck with stainless steel dump box and 

sander & snowplow attachments.

70,000$               70,000$            

24PARK04 FLEET Replacement Gator Utility Vehicle One-time
Replace 2016 John Deere XUV 825i Gator Utility 

Vehicle with new utility vehicle.
17,500$               17,500$            

24PARK05 FLEET Replacement Pickup Truck One-time
Replace 2016 Chevy Silverado 1500 pickup truck 

with new pickup.
27,000$               27,000$            

24PARK06 FLEET Replacement Zero-Turn Mower One-time
Replace 2019 Toro Z-Master 7500-D zero-turn 

mower.
28,000$               28,000$            

24PARK07 FLEET Replacement Zero-Turn Mower & Stand-On Zero-Turn Mower One-time

Replace 2015 Gravely Pro-Turn 260 zero-turn 

mower & 2015 Gravely Pro-Stance 48 stand-on 

zero-turn mower with new mowers.

10,500$               7,250$              3,250$              

24PARK08 FLEET Replacement Zero-Turn Mowers (3) One-time

Replace three (3) 2020 John Deere Z997R zero-

turn mowers with three (3) new John Deere Z997R 

zero-turn mowers.

50,000$               50,000$            

24PARK09 PARK Improvement Babe Ruth Field - Restrooms/Concessions 2 of 2
Park 2018 

Priority 1

Upgrade or replace restrooms/concessions/ 

storage building (possible joint project with field 

users).

25,000$               25,000$            

24PARK10 PARK New Construction Centennial Park - Shelters (3) One-time
Park 2018 

Priority 1
Construct three shelters. 250,000$             250,000$          

24PARK11 PARK New Construction Fox Run Pond Park One-time
Park 2018 

Priority 3

Construct playground & add concrete border 

around playground with ADA ramp..
175,000$             175,000$          

24PARK12 PARK Maintenance/Cleaning Liberty Centre Park One-time
Repaint the 29 trail lighting poles and bridge & pier 

handrail guards a black color.
25,000$               25,000$            

24PARK13 PARK New Purchase Park Land Acquisition One-time Park 2018 Acquire park land as identified in the Park Plan. 2,500,000$          2,500,000$       

24PARK14 PARK New Construction Quail Ridge Park - Parking One-time Expand the existing parking lot. 60,000$               60,000$            

24PARK15 TRAIL New Construction New Segment - Broadmoor Park Ongoing
Trails Plan 

Priority 4
Add a 6' wide park walk at Broadmoor Park & pond. 102,000$             102,000$          

24PARK16 TRAIL New Construction New Segment - Fox Run Park Ongoing
Trails Plan 

Priority 8
Add a 6' wide park walk at Fox Run Park & pond. 201,000$             201,000$          

24PARK17 TRAIL New Construction New Segment - North Liberty Road Trail One-time
Trails Plan 

Priority 1

Construct trail in front of Penn Meadows Park 

where trail segment is missing.
157,000$             157,000$          

24PARK18 TRAIL New Construction New Segment - North Liberty Road Trail One-time
Trails Plan 

Priority 5

Construct trail along North Liberty Road & Penn 

Street from Abraham Road to Molly Street.
1,107,000$          442,800$          Iowa Transportation Alternatives Program = 664,200$          

24POLC01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Body-Worn Cameras & In-Car Camera Ongoing
Replace Axon Body-Worn Cameras (lease expires) 

and in car camera.
65,000$               65,000$            

24POLC02 FLEET Replacement Canine Vehicle Ongoing
Replace canine vehicle (214), including related 

equipment (if over 120,000 miles).
58,000$               58,000$            

24POLC03 FLEET Replacement Lieutenant's Truck Ongoing
Replace Lieutenant's 2010 truck (211) with new 

truck, but do not trade in (maintain in fleet).
34,000$               34,000$            

24RECR01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Recreation - Exercise Ongoing
Annual designation of funds to replace cardio & 

weight exercise equipment at Community Center.
50,000$               50,000$            

24RECR02 FACILITY Improvement Aquatic - Bathrooms One-time Remodel Aquatic bathrooms. 250,000$             250,000$          

24RECR03 FACILITY Improvement Aquatic - Slides One-time Refurbish outdoor pool slides. 18,000$               18,000$            

24RECR04 FLEET Replacement BASP - Van Phased Replace BASP van(s) per fleet management. 30,000$               30,000$            

24STOR01 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Goose Lake Flood Control Section 6
Remove silted-in debris & vegetation under-and-

around Alexander Way Bridge.
16,000$               16,000$            

24STOR02 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Muddy Creek Flood Control Section 1
Remove silted-in debris & vegetation under-and-

around Golfview Drive Bridge.
27,000$               27,000$            

24STOR03 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Muddy Creek Flood Control Section 4
Remove silted-in debris & vegetation under-and-

around West Zeller Street Bridge.
5,000$                 5,000$              

24STOR04 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Muddy Creek Flood Control Section 5
Remove silted-in debris & vegetation under-and-

around West Cherry Street Bridge.
5,000$                 5,000$              

24STOR05 CREEK/POND Improvement Penn Meadows Park Bio Cell Repair One-time
Install cleanouts, repair bad tile sections & replant 

dead/damaged plants.
28,000$               28,000$            

City of North Liberty, Iowa

Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan FY23-FY27 (July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2027)

PROJECT SCHEDULE FOR FY24:  JULY 1, 2023 - JUNE 30, 2024

Police

Recreation & Aquatics

Storm Water

Parks



Department Project ID# Category Project Type Project Name

Phase or 

Frequency

Referenced 

Plan Project Description  TOTALS General Fund Sewer Fund

Storm Sewer 

Fund Water Fund

General 

Obligation (GO) 

Bond

Tax Increment 

Financing (TIF) 

Bond Revenue Bond

Hotel/Motel 

Fund

Road Use Tax 

Fund Franchise Fees State Funds Federal Funds Other Sources

27,128,500$        488,250$          290,000$          84,250$            325,000$          1,152,800$       6,500,000$       -$                  68,000$            840,000$          485,000$          14,000,000$     -$                  2,895,200$       

PROJECT SCHEDULE FOR FY24:  JULY 1, 2023 - JUNE 30, 2024

24STRE01 FACILITY Improvement Facility Use Renovations One-time
Convert two storage bays at Streets facility to office 

& general employee space.
500,000$             500,000$          

24STRE02 FLEET Replacement Dump Truck & Snow Equipment One-time
Replace 2012 single axle dump truck & snow 

equipment.
260,000$             260,000$          

24STRE03 FLEET New Purchase Off Road Utility Vehicle One-time
Add off road utility vehicle with attachment 

capabilities.
60,000$               60,000$            

24STRE04 STREET New Construction Commercial Drive One-time

Construct Commercial Drive extension (a local 

street) from the terminus of current Commercial 

Drive to West Zeller Street.

151,000$             Street Repair Program Fund = 151,000$          

24STRE05 STREET New Construction
West Forevergreen Road/South Jasper 

Ave/North Park Road Roundabout
One-time

Trails Plan 

Priorities 11 & 

12

Joint Project with Tiffin & Coralville to construct a 

roundabout and related improvements at the 

intersection, including new trail segments from 

Covered Bridge Blvd to Tiffin.

5,000,000$          3,000,000$       Developer Fees & Cost Sharing with Tiffin & Coralville = 2,000,000$       

24STRE06 STREET Improvement I-380 Penn Street Bridge - Replacement Phase 5A Penn Street

Replace or widen Penn Street bridge that crosses 

I380 (IDOT project). Repair concrete (full & partial 

depth) east & west of Penn Street Bridge over I-

380.

15,000,000$        1,000,000$       IDOT = 14,000,000$     

24WAST01 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Cassettes Ongoing
Savings set aside for future membrane 

cassette/module replacements.
220,000$             220,000$          

24WAST02 SYSTEM Maintenance/Cleaning Manhole Rehabilitation Ongoing
Rehabilitate aging & deteriorated manholes as 

needed to avoid infiltration of ground water.
70,000$               70,000$            

24WATR01 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Modules Ongoing
Annual designation of funds to replace the Harn 

membrane train modules in the water plant.
80,000$               80,000$            

24WATR02 FLEET Replacement Cargo Van One-time Replace 2017 1-ton cargo van. 50,000$               50,000$            

24WATR03 FLEET Replacement John Deere Tractor One-time Replace 2007 John Deere 3720 tractor. 55,000$               55,000$            

24WATR04 FLEET Replacement Truck One-time Replace 2008 half-ton truck 50,000$               50,000$            

24WATR05 SYSTEM Replacement Hydrants (20) Ongoing
Annual designation (final) of funds to replace 

twenty (20) fire hydrants.
70,000$               70,000$            

Water

Waste Water

Streets



Department Project ID# Category Project Type Project Name

Phase or 

Frequency

Referenced 

Plan Project Description  TOTALS General Fund Sewer Fund

Storm Sewer 

Fund Water Fund

General 

Obligation (GO) 

Bond

Tax Increment 

Financing (TIF) 

Bond Revenue Bond

Hotel/Motel 

Fund

Road Use Tax 

Fund Franchise Fees State Funds Federal Funds Other Sources

12,948,000$        360,000$          290,000$          289,000$          305,000$          6,961,000$       700,000$          1,100,000$       55,000$            210,000$          420,000$          -$                  -$                  2,258,000$       

Communications 25COMM01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Digital Signage One-time
Replaces monitors, other hardware & software 

used for internal, aging digital signage. 
20,000$               20,000$            

25CCTR01 FACILITY Replacement HVAC Ongoing Replace SE chiller/rooftop units. 250,000$             250,000$          

25CCTR02 FACILITY Replacement Variable Frequency Drives One-time Replace variable frequency drives in building. 50,000$               50,000$            

Fire 25FIRE01 FACILITY New Construction North Liberty Fire Station #2 One-time
Fire Strategic 

Plan
Construct west side Fire Station #2. 6,000,000$          6,000,000$       

25PARK01 FACILITY New Construction Parks Shop - West Side Addition 2 of 2
Park 2018 

Priority 3

Construct addition to west side of current Parks 

Shop. Continued project from FY23 driveway.
300,000$             300,000$          

25PARK02 FLEET Replacement Pickup Truck One-time
Replace 2010 Nissan Titan pickup truck with new 

pickup.
30,000$               30,000$            

25PARK03 FLEET Replacement Skid Steer One-time
Replace 2008 Case 450 skid steer with new skid 

steer.
45,000$               22,500$            22,500$            

25PARK04 FLEET Replacement Wide-Area Mower One-time

Replace 2020 Jacobsen HR800 (or HR700) wide-

area mower with new Jacobsen HR800 (or HR700) 

wide-area mower.

75,000$               37,500$            37,500$            

25PARK05 PARK New Construction Centennial Park One-time
Park 2018 

Priority 2

Construct honorarium for service women and men, 

gazebo, and sculpture & flower gardens.
500,000$             350,000$          Fundraising & Grants = 150,000$          

25PARK06 PARK Improvement Fox Run Neighborhood Park One-time
Park 2018 

Priority 2

Replace playground equipment & add concrete 

border around Fox Run Park playground with ADA 

ramp.

70,000$               70,000$            

25PARK07 PARK New Construction Penn Meadows Park & Babe Ruth Field One-time
Park 2018 

Priority 3

Add ballfield lighting to Babe Ruth Park, plus 

remaining lighting needs for north and/or south 

4plex.

1,200,000$          600,000$          Partner with NLYBS = 600,000$          

25PARK08 PARK New Construction Penn Meadows Park - Lighting One-time
Park 2018 

Priority 3
Add lighting to north parking lot. 100,000$             100,000$          

25PARK09 TRAIL New Construction New Segment - Deerfield Park One-time
Add concrete border around Deerfield Park 

playground & connecting 6' wide sidewalk.
55,000$               55,000$            

25PARK10 TRAIL New Construction New Segment - Quail Ridge Park One-time
Park 2018 

Priority 7
Add a 6' wide park walk at Quail Ridge Park. 179,000$             179,000$          

25PARK11 TRAIL New Construction New Segment - Freedom Park One-time
Trails Plan 

Priority 6
Add a 6' wide park walk at Freedom Park & pond. 82,000$               82,000$            

25PARK12 TRAIL New Construction Trail Lighting Ongoing
Park 2018 

Priority 1
Install LED trail lighting at various locations. 100,000$             100,000$          

Police 25POLC01 FLEET Replacement Patrol Cars (3) Ongoing

Replace three (3) patrol cars (201, 206 & 207), 

including related equipment. One of the 

replacements is due to an unplanned totaled 

vehicle.

170,000$             170,000$          

25RECR01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Recreation - Exercise Ongoing
Annual designation of funds to replace cardio & 

weight exercise equipment at Community Center.
50,000$               50,000$            

25RECR02 FLEET Replacement BASP - Van Phased Replace BASP van(s) per fleet management. 30,000$               30,000$            

25STOR01 CREEK/POND Improvement West Lake Wetland Restoration One-time Restore stream & vegetative buffer. 26,000$               26,000$            

25STOR02 SYSTEM Improvement Sunset Street Drainage One-time Install storm pipe to increase drainage capacity. 78,000$               78,000$            

25STRE01 FLEET Replacement Leaf Collector Truck One-time Replace 1998 leaf vacuum trailer with truck unit. 275,000$             125,000$          150,000$          

25STRE02 FLEET New Purchase Wheeled Skid Steer One-time Add wheeled skid steer. 60,000$               60,000$            

25STRE03 STREET Improvement North Stewart Street OT4
Old Town 

Projects

Reconstruct North Stewart Street from Penn Street 

to Cherry Street.
1,508,000$          Street Repair Program Fund = 1,508,000$       

25WAST01 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Cassettes Ongoing
Savings set aside for future membrane 

cassette/module replacements.
220,000$             220,000$          

25WAST02 SYSTEM Maintenance/Cleaning Manhole Rehabilitation Ongoing
Rehabilitate aging & deteriorated manholes as 

needed to avoid infiltration of ground water.
70,000$               70,000$            

25WATR01 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Modules Ongoing
Annual designation of funds to replace the Harn 

membrane train modules in the water plant.
80,000$               80,000$            

25WATR02 FACILITY New Construction Water Treatment Facility Addition One-time Add four (4) bays to Water Treatment Facility 1,100,000$          1,100,000$       

25WATR03 SYSTEM Maintenance/Cleaning Water Tower #3 One-time Sandblast & paint interior of Water Tower #3. 225,000$             225,000$          

Water

Storm Water

Recreation & Aquatics

Waste Water

Streets

City of North Liberty, Iowa

Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan FY23-FY27 (July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2027)

PROJECT SCHEDULE FOR FY25:  JULY 1, 2024 - JUNE 30, 2025

Parks

Community Center



Department Project ID# Category Project Type Project Name

Phase or 

Frequency

Referenced 

Plan Project Description  TOTALS General Fund Sewer Fund

Storm Sewer 

Fund Water Fund

General 

Obligation (GO) 

Bond

Tax Increment 

Financing (TIF) 

Bond Revenue Bond

Hotel/Motel 

Fund

Road Use Tax 

Fund Franchise Fees State Funds Federal Funds Other Sources

14,047,000$        428,500$          290,000$          215,500$          300,000$          1,813,000$       8,212,000$       -$                  19,000$            269,000$          -$                  -$                  2,500,000$       -$                  

Community Center 26CCTR01 FACILITY Replacement Water Heaters One-time Replace water heaters throughout facility. 50,000$               50,000$            

Fire 26FIRE01 FLEET Replacement Platform Ladder Truck One-time
Fire Strategic 

Plan

Replace 2003 75' aerial with a 100' platform ladder 

truck.
1,500,000$          1,500,000$       

26PARK01 FACILITY Improvement Meade Barn One-time
Park 2018 

Priority 4

Remodel inside of Meade Barn, including refurbish 

concrete floor, remove loft, & reconfigure dividing 

walls.

70,000$               70,000$            

26PARK02 FLEET Replacement Tractor One-time
Replace 2015 Aebi Terratrac TT280 tractor with 

new tractor.
165,000$             82,500$            82,500$            

26PARK03 FLEET Replacement Pickup Truck One-time
Replace 2015 Ford F-250 pickup truck with new 

pickup.
30,000$               30,000$            

26PARK04 TRAIL New Construction New Segment - Fox Run Neighborhood Park Ongoing
Trails Plan 

Priority 9

Add a 6' wide park walk at Fox Run Neighborhood 

Park.
19,000$               19,000$            

26PARK05 TRAIL New Construction New Segment - Trails Plan Ongoing
Trails Plan 

Priority 10

Construct trail on south side of West Zeller Street 

from Quail Ridge Park east to Ranshaw Way/HWY 

965.

213,000$             213,000$          

Police 26POLC01 FLEET Replacement Patrol Cars (2) Ongoing
Replace two (2) patrol cars (202 & 204), including 

related equipment.
116,000$             116,000$          

26RECR01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Recreation - Exercise Ongoing
Annual designation of funds to replace cardio & 

weight exercise equipment at Community Center.
50,000$               50,000$            

26RECR02 FACILITY Improvement Aquatics Enhancements One-time

Replace inside pool starting blocks, inside & 

outside pool diving boards, eight floatables & inside 

pool basketball hoop. Add outside pool basketball 

hoop.

100,000$             100,000$          

26RECR03 FLEET Replacement BASP - Van Phased Replace BASP van(s) per fleet management. 30,000$               30,000$            

26STOR01 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning Muddy Creek Flood Control Section 7
Remove silted-in debris & vegetation under-and-

around Penn Street Bridge.
5,000$                 5,000$              

26STOR02 CREEK/POND Maintenance/Cleaning West Lake Drainage One-time Repair 54" FES drainage pipe structure. 8,000$                 8,000$              

26STOR03 SYSTEM New Construction Penn Street Drainage One-time
Construct detention basin to help with Penn Street 

flash flooding.
120,000$             120,000$          

26STRE01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Crack Seal Machine One-time Replace 2010 crack seal machine. 60,000$               60,000$            

26STRE02 EQUIPMENT New Purchase Flatbed Equipment Trailer One-time Add new trailer to haul JLG lift. 60,000$               60,000$            

26STRE03 EQUIPMENT New Purchase Hot Patch Trailer One-time
Add new hot patch trailer, which heats asphalt 

material for street repairs.
41,000$               41,000$            

26STRE04 EQUIPMENT New Purchase Patch Machine One-time
Add new patching machine for potholes & large 

cracks.
78,000$               78,000$            

26STRE05 FLEET New Purchase Mini Track Loader One-time Add mini track loader to be used in small areas. 30,000$               30,000$            

26STRE06 STREET Improvement Ranshaw Way (HWY 965) Phase 6 HWY 965

Widen Ranshaw Way (HWY 965) with full build out 

between Hawkeye Drive & Forevergreen Road, 

including trails, curb/gutter & landscaping. 

10,712,000$        8,212,000$       2,500,000$       

26WAST01 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Cassettes Ongoing
Savings set aside for future membrane 

cassette/module replacements.
220,000$             220,000$          

26WAST02 SYSTEM Maintenance/Cleaning Manhole Rehabilitation Ongoing
Rehabilitate aging & deteriorated manholes as 

needed to avoid infiltration of ground water.
70,000$               70,000$            

26WATR01 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Modules Ongoing
Annual designation of funds to replace the Harn 

membrane train modules in the water plant.
80,000$               80,000$            

26WATR02 SYSTEM Maintenance/Cleaning Jordan Well Cleaning One-time Acidize well #8 & #9 220,000$             220,000$          

Water

Waste Water

Recreation & Aquatics

Storm Water

Streets

City of North Liberty, Iowa

Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan FY23-FY27 (July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2027)

PROJECT SCHEDULE FOR FY26:  JULY 1, 2025 - JUNE 30, 2026

Parks



Department Project ID# Category Project Type Project Name

Phase or 

Frequency

Referenced 

Plan Project Description  TOTALS General Fund Sewer Fund

Storm Sewer 

Fund Water Fund

General 

Obligation (GO) 

Bond

Tax Increment 

Financing (TIF) 

Bond Revenue Bond

Hotel/Motel 

Fund

Road Use Tax 

Fund Franchise Fees State Funds Federal Funds Other Sources

7,072,000$          352,000$          795,000$          190,000$          260,000$          1,100,000$       -$                  3,500,000$       20,000$            405,000$          325,000$          -$                  -$                  125,000$          

27CCTR01 FACILITY Maintenance/Cleaning Circulation Pumps One-time Re-insulate chilled water circulation pumps. 50,000$               50,000$            

27CCTR02 FACILITY Maintenance/Cleaning Gerdin HVAC Zoning One-time Rework room-by-room HVAC zoning. 100,000$             100,000$          

Fire 27FIRE01 FLEET New Purchase Fire Station #2 Pumper Truck One-time
Fire Strategic 

Plan
Add new pumper truck. 850,000$             850,000$          

27PARK01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Snow Blower One-time Replace 2010 Erskine 2410 snow blower. 15,000$               15,000$            

27PARK02 FLEET Replacement Pickup Truck One-time
Replace 2007 Nissan Titan pickup truck with new 

pickup.
30,000$               15,000$            15,000$            

27PARK03 PARK New Construction Fox Valley Subdivision - Playground One-time

Install new playground & add concrete border 

around playground with ADA ramp (after 

subdivision is developed).

200,000$             200,000$          

27PARK04 PARK New Construction Park TBD - Frisbee Golf One-time
Park 2018 

Priority 3

Construct frisbee golf course, location to be 

determined.
20,000$               20,000$            

27PARK05 PARK New Construction Ranshaw House - Fitness Equipment One-time Install senior outdoor fitness equipment. 120,000$             60,000$            Fundraising & Grants = 60,000$            

27PARK06 PARK New Construction Red Fern Dog Park - Agility Equipment One-time
Install dog equipment & obstacles in northeastern 

yard.
130,000$             65,000$            Fundraising & Grants = 65,000$            

27PARK07 TRAIL New Construction Trail Lighting Ongoing
Park 2018 

Priority 1
Install LED trail lighting at various locations. 100,000$             100,000$          

27POLC01 FLEET Replacement Administrative Vehicles (2) Ongoing
Replace administrative vehicle (205) & DTF (208), 

including related equipment.
68,000$               68,000$            

27POLC02 FLEET Replacement Patrol Cars (3) Ongoing

Replace three (3) patrol cars (203, 209 & 213), 

including related equipment. One of the 

replacements is due to an unplanned totaled 

vehicle.

174,000$             174,000$          

27RECR01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Recreation - Exercise Ongoing
Annual designation of funds to replace cardio & 

weight exercise equipment at Community Center.
50,000$               50,000$            

27RECR02 FLEET Replacement BASP - Van Phased Replace BASP van(s) per fleet management. 30,000$               30,000$            

27STRE01 EQUIPMENT Replacement Tree Chipper Trailer One-time Replace 2007 woodchipper trailer machine. 80,000$               80,000$            

27STRE02 FLEET Replacement Dump Truck (Small) and Plow One-time
Replace 2014 Ford F-550 dump truck & snow 

equipment.
150,000$             150,000$          

27STRE03 FLEET Replacement Street Sweeper One-time
Replace 2014 street sweeper with double-sided 

gutter broom model.
350,000$             175,000$          175,000$          

27WAST01 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Cassettes Ongoing
Savings set aside for future membrane 

cassette/module replacements.
220,000$             220,000$          

27WAST02 FLEET Replacement Jet/Vac Truck One-time

Replace 2016 Jet/Vac truck with new tandem axel 

truck with hydraulic snorkel outfitted on Vac 

system.

505,000$             505,000$          

27WAST03 SYSTEM Improvement Gravity Sewer Phased Phase 1
Upsize 2,600' of 12" sewer main along Jordon 

Street and Ashley Court.
2,000,000$          2,000,000$       

27WAST04 SYSTEM Maintenance/Cleaning Manhole Rehabilitation Ongoing
Rehabilitate aging & deteriorated manholes as 

needed to avoid infiltration of ground water.
70,000$               70,000$            

27WATR01 EQUIPMENT New Purchase Portable Dirt Screener & Pulverizer One-time Purchase new portable dirt screener/pulverizer. 65,000$               65,000$            

27WATR02 FLEET Replacement Dump Truck One-time Replace 2002 International dump truck.0 115,000$             115,000$          

27WATR03 FACILITY Replacement Membrane Train Modules Ongoing
Annual designation of funds to replace the Harn 

membrane train modules in the water plant.
80,000$               80,000$            

27WATR04 SYSTEM New Construction Electric Control Building & Generator (2) One-time
Construct two electric control building & generator 

to service wells #4 & #6.
1,500,000$          1,500,000$       

Water

Parks

Recreation & Aquatics

Streets

Police

Waste Water

Community Center

City of North Liberty, Iowa

Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan FY23-FY27 (July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2027)

PROJECT SCHEDULE FOR FY27:  JULY 1, 2026 - JUNE 30, 2027



Total Project Cost General Fund Sewer Revenue
Storm Sewer 
Revenue Water Revenue

General Obligation 
(GO) Bond

Tax Increment 
Financing (TIF) 
Bond Revenue Bond Hotel/Motel Funds

Road Use Tax 
Funds Franchise Fees State Funds Federal Funds Other

FY23 19,305,000$             411,000$                       565,000$                    145,000$                     120,000$                     9,157,000$                  5,405,000$                -$                              25,000$                       370,000$                    585,000$                    -$                              -$                              2,522,000$                 
FY24 27,128,500$               488,250$                     290,000$                    84,250$                        325,000$                    1,152,800$                    6,500,000$                -$                              68,000$                       840,000$                   485,000$                    14,000,000$              -$                              2,895,200$                 
FY25 12,948,000$             360,000$                    290,000$                    289,000$                    305,000$                    6,961,000$                 700,000$                    1,100,000$                   55,000$                       210,000$                     420,000$                    -$                              -$                              2,258,000$                 
FY26 14,047,000$             428,500$                    290,000$                    215,500$                      300,000$                   1,813,000$                   8,212,000$                  -$                              19,000$                        269,000$                    -$                              -$                              2,500,000$                -$                              
FY27 7,072,000$               352,000$                    795,000$                    190,000$                     260,000$                    1,100,000$                   -$                              3,500,000$                20,000$                       405,000$                    325,000$                    -$                              -$                              125,000$                      
Five Year Total 80,500,500$           2,039,750$                2,230,000$                923,750$                    1,310,000$                  20,183,800$              20,817,000$              4,600,000$               187,000$                     2,094,000$               1,815,000$                  14,000,000$             2,500,000$               7,800,200$               

City of North Liberty, Iowa

Five-Year Capital Improvements Plan FY23-FY27 (July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2027)

SUMMARY TOTALS



North Liberty – 2022  Resolution Number 2022-21 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2022-21 
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE ANNUAL BUDGET AND 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
ENDING JUNE 30, 2023 FOR THE CITY OF NORTH 
LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 

IOWA: 
 
WHEREAS, the North Liberty City Council has reviewed the proposed budget for 

the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, as set forth in the Resources Detail and 
Requirements schedules and the detailed worksheets in support of those documents;  
 

WHEREAS, the North Liberty City Council has reviewed the proposed Capital 
Improvements Plan for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023;   
 

WHEREAS, the proposed Budget Estimate was published in The Gazette on 
February 23, 2022, along with a Notice of Public Hearing;   

 
WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held on the proposed budget and Capital 

Improvements Plan on March 8, 2022;  
 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk is hereby authorized to transfer the following funds as 

provided for in the certified budget:  
 

From Fund To Fund Description Amount 
General Equipment Revolving Police Car Purchases 90,000 
General  Computer Revolving Computer purchases 22,600 
General   Equipment Revolving Animal Control Truck  75,000 

General  Library Capital 
Library Circulation 
Desk Modifications 

105,000 

General   Equipment Revolving 
Park Maintenance 
Equipment 

56,000 

General  
Recreation/Aquatic 
Capital 

Exercise Equipment 
Replacement 

50,000 

General  
Recreation/Aquatic 
Capital 

Acoustical Panels 35,000 

Hotel/Motel Tax  Park Capital 
Babe Ruth Field 
Concessions Phase 1 

25,000 

ARPA  General  
Social Services 
Grants 

150,000 



North Liberty – 2022  Resolution Number 2022-21 
Page 2 

ARPA  Storm Water Capital Storm Water GIS 200,000 

Road Use Tax General  
General Fund 
employee wage 
reimbursement 

10,699 

Road Use Tax Equipment Revolving 
Equipment 
Purchases 

260,000 

Road Use Tax Debt Service Bond Payments 149,290 

Road Use Tax Capital Projects 
Set aside for street 
projects 

486,179 

Road Use Tax  Computer Revolving Computer Purchases 2,300 

Trust & Agency General 
Employee benefits 
and fringe levy 

2,106,493 

TIF Debt Service TIF Bond payments 4,294,704 

Water Operating General Fund 
General Fund 
employee wage 
reimbursement 

231,725 

Water Operating Water Capital 

Reserve for 
membranes and 
water plant roof 
replacement 

120,000 

Water Operating Water Sinking Debt service 1,747,841 
Water Operating Computer Revolving Computer Purchases 1,500 

Water Sinking Debt Service 
Water debt paid from 
general debt fund 

244,050 

Wastewater 
Operating 

General 
General Fund 
employee wage 
reimbursement 

231,725 

Wastewater 
Operating 

Equipment Revolving Crane Truck 125,000 

Wastewater 
Operating 

Wastewater Capital 
Reserve for 
membranes and 
capital projects 

440,000 

Wastewater 
Operating 

Wastewater Sinking Debt service 2,311,895 

Wastewater 
Operating 

Computer Revolving Computer Purchases 4,300 

Wastewater Sinking Debt Service 
Wastewater debt 
paid from general 
debt fund 

554,398 

Stormwater Utility General 
General Fund 
employee wage 
reimbursement 

24,392 



North Liberty – 2022  Resolution Number 2022-21 
Page 3 

Stormwater Utility Equipment Revolving 
Storm Water 
Coordinator Truck 
replacement 

50,000 

Stormwater Utility Capital Projects 
Storm water practice 
maintenance 

95,000 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of North Liberty, Iowa, 
that the budget as set forth in the Notice of Public Hearing and Adopted Budget Summary 
and the Capital Improvements Plan is hereby adopted. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby directed to file the 
adopted budget with the Johnson County Auditor and the Iowa Department of 
Management. 
 
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of March, 2022. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the 
above was adopted. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK  
 



 

Solomon Holdings, LLC 
Zoning Map Amendment 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 



 



 

 

 

 



 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 





 



 

 

 

 

 



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-06 
Page 1 

 

Ordinance No. 2022-06 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 167 OF THE NORTH 
LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING THE USE 
REGULATIONS ON PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE NORTH 
SIDE OF WEST PENN STREET WEST OF NORTH JONES 
BOULEVARD AS EXTENDED NORTHERLY FROM WEST PENN 
STREET TO 240TH STREET LOCATED IN NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA TO THOSE SET FORTH IN THE MUNICIPAL CODE FOR 
THE RS-9 SINGLE-UNIT RESIDENCE DISTRICT, RM-21 
MULTIPLE-UNIT RESIDENCE DISTRICT AND C-2-A HIGHWAY 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT  
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  Chapter 167 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances (2013) is 
hereby amended by amending the zoning for 71.48 acres, more or less, of property located on the 
north side of West Penn Street west of North Jones Boulevard as extended northerly from West 
Penn Street to 240th Street.  The property is more particularly described as follows:  
 
A. ID Interim Development District to RS-9 Single-Unit Residence District on 34.56 acres. The 

property is more particularly described as follows: 
THAT PART OF AUDITOR’S PARCEL 2021009 ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF SURVEY 
RECORDED IN BOOK 64, PAGE 285 AT JOHNSON COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
COMMENCING AS A POINT OF REFERENCE AT THE EAST QUARTER CORNER OF 
SECTION 11, TOWNSHIP 80 NORTH, RANGE 7 WEST OF THE 5TH P.M.; THENCE NORTH 
89° 34’ 14” WEST 20.00 FEET (ASSUMED BEARING FOR THIS DESCRIPTION ONLY) 
ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S PARCEL; THENCE NORTH 0° 02’ 23” 
WEST 132.00 FEET ALONG A EAST LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S PARCEL; THENCE SOUTH 
89° 22’ 53” WEST 20.00 FEET ALONG A LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S PARCEL; THENCE 
NORTH 0° 02’ 23” WEST 1,186.76 FEET ALONG A EAST LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S PARCEL 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 89° 57' 37" WEST 515.00 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 80° 55' 04" WEST 101.46 FEET; THENCE NORTH 68° 08' 49" WEST 51.76 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 18° 07' 42" WEST 88.07 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 83° 29' 06" WEST 646.39 
FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S PARCEL; THENCE NORTH 00° 04' 56" 
WEST 1,443.20 FEET ALONG SAID WEST LINE TO THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF 240TH 
STREET; THENCE SOUTH 89° 16' 53" EAST 499.72 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-
WAY OF 240TH STREET; THENCE SOUTH 58° 32' 35" EAST 151.33 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
34° 13' 05" EAST 151.44 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00° 05' 52" WEST 141.00 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 89° 58' 00" EAST 100.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00° 02' 00" EAST 130.00 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 89° 57' 36" EAST 520.57 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S 
PARCEL; THENCE SOUTH 00° 02' 23" EAST 840.05 FEET ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 34.56 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-06 
Page 2 

 

 
B. ID Interim Development District to RM-21 Multi-Unit Residence District on 26.85 acres. The 

property is more particularly described as follows: 
THAT PART OF AUDITOR’S PARCEL 2021009 ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF SURVEY 
RECORDED IN BOOK 64, PAGE 285 AT JOHNSON COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AS A POINT OF REFERENCE AT THE EAST 
QUARTER CORNER OF SECTION 11, TOWNSHIP 80 NORTH, RANGE 7 WEST OF THE 5TH 
P.M.; THENCE NORTH 89° 34’ 14” WEST 20.00 FEET (ASSUMED BEARING FOR THIS 
DESCRIPTION ONLY) ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S PARCEL; THENCE 
NORTH 0° 02’ 23” WEST 132.00 FEET ALONG A EAST LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S PARCEL; 
THENCE SOUTH 89° 22’ 53” WEST 20.00 FEET ALONG A LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S 
PARCEL; THENCE NORTH 0° 02’ 23” WEST 263.49 FEET ALONG A EAST LINE OF SAID 
AUDITOR’S PARCEL TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 89° 30' 05" WEST 
1,332.41 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S PARCEL; THENCE NORTH 00° 04' 
56" WEST 789.57 FEET ALONG SAID WEST LINE; 
THENCE NORTH 83° 29' 06" EAST 646.39 FEET; THENCE NORTH 18° 07' 42" EAST 88.07 
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 68° 08' 49" EAST 51.76 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 80° 55' 04" EAST 
101.46 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 89° 57' 37" EAST 515.00 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S 
PARCEL; THENCE SOUTH 00° 02' 23" EAST 923.27 FEET ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 26.85 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

 
C. ID Interim Development District to C-2-A Highway Commercial District on 24.87 acres. The 

property is more particularly described as follows: 
THAT PART OF AUDITOR’S PARCEL 2021009 ACCORDING TO THE PLAT OF SURVEY 
RECORDED IN BOOK 64, PAGE 285 AT JOHNSON COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE, 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AS A POINT OF REFERENCE AT THE EAST 
QUARTER CORNER OF SECTION 11, TOWNSHIP 80 NORTH, RANGE 7 WEST OF THE 5TH 
P.M.; THENCE NORTH 89° 34’ 14” WEST 20.00 FEET (ASSUMED BEARING FOR THIS 
DESCRIPTION ONLY) ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S PARCEL; THENCE 
NORTH 0° 02’ 23” WEST 65.03 FEET ALONG A EAST LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S PARCEL 
TO THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF PENN STREET, SAID POINT BEING THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 89° 29' 08" WEST 1,312.17 FEET ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-
OF-WAY OF PENN STREET TO THE WEST LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S PARCEL; THENCE 
NORTH 00° 04' 56" WEST 330.05 FEET ALONG SAID WEST LINE; THENCE SOUTH 89° 30' 
05" EAST 1,332.41 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S PARCEL; THENCE SOUTH 
00° 02' 23" EAST 263.49 FEET ALONG SAID EAST LINE; THENCE NORTH 89° 22' 53" WEST 
20.00 FEET ALONG A LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S PARCEL; THENCE SOUTH 00° 02' 23" 
EAST 66.97 FEET ALONG A EAST LINE OF SAID AUDITOR’S PARCEL TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 10.07 ACRES MORE OR LESS. 

 
SECTION 2.  CONDITIONS IMPOSED.  At the March 1, 2022 meeting the Planning 
Commission accepted the two listed findings (1. That the preliminary plat be approved at 
the time of the rezoning and 2. The preliminary site plan for the RM-21 portion of the 



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-06 
Page 3 

 

development be approved at the time of rezoning.) and forwards the request for a zoning 
map amendment to the City Council with a recommendation for approval with no 
conditions.  
 
SECTION 3.  ZONING MAP.  It is hereby authorized and directed that the Zoning Map of the City 
of North Liberty, Iowa, be changed to conform to this amendment upon final passage, approval 
and publication of this ordinance as provided by law. 
 
SECTION 4.  RECORDATION.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to record this 
ordinance at the Johnson County Recorder’s office upon final passage and approval. 
 
SECTION 5.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 6.  SCRIVENER’S ERROR.  The correction of typographical errors which do not affect 
the intent of the ordinance may be authorized by the City Clerk or the Clerk’s designee without 
further public hearing. 
 
SECTION 7.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as a 
whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 8. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on ________. 
Second reading on ___________. 
Third and final reading on ___________. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-06 
Page 4 

 

ATTEST: 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2022-06 in The Gazette on the ____ of 
_____, 2022.   
 
 
_______________________________________       
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

Smoke Free Places 
Ordinance 



From: Kelly Sittig
To: City Council
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Tobacco- and nicotine-free parks and trails
Date: Tuesday, February 22, 2022 7:49:36 PM

WARNING: This email originated from outside of this organization. Do not
click links or open attachments unless you know the contents are safe. Never

provide your user ID or password to anyone.

Please consider Iowa’s Open Meetings laws, and contact other council
members by means other than email. Remember to use discretion when

receiving emails from outside the City, and to never share personal or business
information with an unknown source. Thank you.

Hi, Councilors,

Reaching out today to express my support and enthusiasm for a comprehensive tobacco- and
nicotine-free policy for our city parks and our trails. As I’m sure you know, cigarette smoking
is the leading cause of preventable death in the U.S. If we also consider the alarming rates at
which young people use e-cigarettes/vape products and the risks associated, it’s pretty clear
that establishing a comprehensive (tobacco- AND nicotine-free for parks AND trails) policy is
the right thing to do for North Libertarians. 

Thank you so much! 

Kelly W. Sittig
Call or text: 319-321-9390

mailto:kellysittig@gmail.com
mailto:council@northlibertyiowa.org
https://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/fact_sheets/health_effects/effects_cig_smoking/index.htm#:~:text=Cigarette%20smoking%20is%20the%20leading,death%20in%20the%20United%20States.&text=Cigarette%20smoking%20causes%20more%20than,nearly%20one%20in%20five%20deaths
https://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/data_statistics/fact_sheets/health_effects/effects_cig_smoking/index.htm#:~:text=Cigarette%20smoking%20is%20the%20leading,death%20in%20the%20United%20States.&text=Cigarette%20smoking%20causes%20more%20than,nearly%20one%20in%20five%20deaths
https://www.fda.gov/tobacco-products/youth-and-tobacco/results-annual-national-youth-tobacco-survey
https://www.fda.gov/tobacco-products/youth-and-tobacco/results-annual-national-youth-tobacco-survey
https://www.cdc.gov/tobacco/basic_information/e-cigarettes/Quick-Facts-on-the-Risks-of-E-cigarettes-for-Kids-Teens-and-Young-Adults.html#:~:text=The%20use%20of%20e-cigarettes,the%20early%20to%20mid-20s.&text=E-cigarettes%20can%20contain%20other%20harmful%20substances%20besides%20nicotine


ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

AMENDING CHAPTER 49 OF THE NORTH LIBERTY CODE OF  
ORDINANCES TO PROHIBIT SMOKING IN PARKS AND ON TRAILS 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT. Chapter 49.03 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances is 
amended to read as follows: 
 

49.03    DEFINITIONS. 
For the purposes of this chapter: 
1. 1.   All definitions set out in Section 142D.2, Code of Iowa are incorporated herein. 
2. “Park” means any City-owned property primarily adapted for public recreation, 

including, but not limited to, any area identified as a park in the City of North 
Liberty Parks Plan, as adopted by the City Council.  

1.3. “Trail” means any off-road trail or wide sidewalk dedicated for public use and 
maintained by the City of North Liberty, measuring 8 feet or wider, including, 
but not limited to, trails and 8-foot sidewalks identified in the City of North 
Liberty Trails Network Plan, as adopted by the City Council. 

24.   "Vapor product" means any noncombustible product, which may or may not 
contain nicotine, that employs a heating element, power source, electronic circuit, 
or other electrical, chemical or mechanical means, regardless of shape or size, that 
can be used to produce vapor from a solution of other substance.  "Vapor Product" 
includes any electronic cigarette, electronic cigar, electronic cigarillo, electronic 
pipe, or similar product or device, and any cartridge or other container of a solution 
or other substance, which may or may not contain nicotine, that is intended to be 
used with or in an electronic cigarette, electronic cigar, electronic cigarillo, 
electronic pipe or similar product or device.  "Vapor Product" does not include any 
product regulated as a drug or device by the United States Food and Drug 
Administration, under Chapter V of the federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act. 

 
SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT. Chapter 49.04 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances is 
amended to read as follows: 
 

49.04    PROHIBITION.  



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-07 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-07 
 

AMENDING CHAPTER 49 OF THE NORTH LIBERTY CODE OF 
ORDINANCES TO PROHIBIT SMOKING IN PARKS AND ON TRAILS 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT. Chapter 49.03 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances is 
amended to read as follows: 
 

49.03    DEFINITIONS. 
For the purposes of this chapter: 
1. All definitions set out in Section 142D.2, Code of Iowa are incorporated herein. 
2. “Park” means any City-owned property primarily adapted for public recreation, 

including, but not limited to, any area identified as a park in the City of North 
Liberty Parks Plan, as adopted by the City Council.  

3. “Trail” means any off-road trail or wide sidewalk dedicated for public use and 
maintained by the City of North Liberty, measuring 8 feet or wider, including, 
but not limited to, trails and 8-foot sidewalks identified in the City of North 
Liberty Trails Network Plan, as adopted by the City Council. 

4.   "Vapor product" means any noncombustible product, which may or may not 
contain nicotine, that employs a heating element, power source, electronic 
circuit, or other electrical, chemical or mechanical means, regardless of shape 
or size, that can be used to produce vapor from a solution of other substance.  
"Vapor Product" includes any electronic cigarette, electronic cigar, electronic 
cigarillo, electronic pipe, or similar product or device, and any cartridge or other 
container of a solution or other substance, which may or may not contain 
nicotine, that is intended to be used with or in an electronic cigarette, electronic 
cigar, electronic cigarillo, electronic pipe or similar product or device.  "Vapor 
Product" does not include any product regulated as a drug or device by the 
United States Food and Drug Administration, under Chapter V of the federal 
Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act. 

 
SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT. Chapter 49.04 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances is 
amended to read as follows: 
 

49.04    PROHIBITION.  



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-07 
Page 2 

 

It shall be unlawful for any person to use any vapor product in any place where 
smoking is prohibited pursuant to Chapter 142D of the Smokefree Air Act, Code of 
Iowa. 

 
SECTION 3.  NEW SECTION. Chapter 49.06 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances is 
enacted as follows: 
 

49.06    PARKS AND TRAILS PROTECTED.  
It shall be unlawful for any person to smoke or use any vapor product on the 
grounds of any City park or trail. 

 
SECTION 4.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 5.  SCRIVENER’S ERROR.  The correction of typographical errors which do not affect 
the intent of the ordinance may be authorized by the City Clerk or the Clerk’s designee without 
further public hearing. 
 
SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 7. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on ____________________, 2022. 
Second reading on ____________________, 2022. 
Third and final reading on ____________________, 2022. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
_______________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR    
 
 
 
 
 



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-07 
Page 3 

 

ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
_______________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2022-07  in The Gazette on the _____ 
day of _________________, 2022.   
 
_______________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



It shall be unlawful for any person to use any vapor product in any place where 
cigarettes aresmoking is prohibited to be used pursuant to Section Chapter 142D.2  
of the Smokefree Air Act, Code of Iowa. 

 
SECTION 3.  NEW SECTION. Chapter 49.06 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances is 
enacted as follows: 
 

49.06    PARKS AND TRAILS PROTECTED.  
It shall be unlawful for any person to smoke or use any vapor product on the 
grounds of any City park or trail. 

 
SECTION 4.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 5.  SCRIVENER’S ERROR.  The correction of typographical errors which do not affect 
the intent of the ordinance may be authorized by the City Clerk or the Clerk’s designee without 
further public hearing. 
 
SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 7. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on ____________________, 2022. 
Second reading on ____________________, 2022. 
Third and final reading on ____________________, 2022. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
_______________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR    
 
ATTEST: 
 



I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
_______________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No.                    in the North Liberty Leader 
on the _____ day of _________________, 2022.   
 
_______________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

Vintage Estates PAD 
Amendment 



 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 





 

 

 

 

 

 



S 
JO

N
ES

 B
LV

D

R
AN

SH
AW

W
AY

W ZELLER ST

ST ANDREWS DR

ID: Interim
Development
Agriculture

Country Pines
Subdivision

RS-4: Residential
Single-Unit

ID: Interim Development
Agriculture

Harvest Estates Part One

R - Residential

Quail Ridge -
Part Two

RS-6:
Residential
Single-Unit

ID: Interim Development
Agriculture

Quail Ridge Ninth Addition

R - Residential

Liberty Centre - Part Seven

R - Residential

C-1-B:
Commercial,
General
Residential

CORY CT

PAD SITE PLAN
FOR

VINTAGE ESTATES
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, JOHNSON COUNTY, IOWA

PROJECT LOCATION

BY
DA

TE

|

1"
 =

Sh
ee

t

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

JA
L

R
M

M

LM
W

3-
27

-2
02

0

SC
AL

E

11
9.

10
37

C
10

0

119.1037

C100

VI
N

TA
G

E 
ES

TA
TE

S
TI

TL
E 

SH
EE

T
N

O
R

TH
 L

IB
ER

TY
, I

O
W

A
R

EV
IS

ED
 T

O
 M

AT
C

H
 T

IL
E 

EX
H

IB
IT

AS
 P

ER
 D

N
R

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

SI
D

EW
AL

K 
N

O
TE

 R
EV

IS
IO

N
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K 
R

EV
IS

IO
N

08
/0

4/
20

09
/1

7/
20

10
/1

3/
20

12
/2

8/
21

R
M

M
R

M
M

 L
M

W
 L

M
W

6789

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

Index of Sheets
Sheet Number Sheet Title

C100 TITLE SHEET

C101 PROJECT INFORMATION

C200 DEMOLITION PLAN

C300 DIMENSION PLAN

C400 UTILITY PLAN

C500 STORM SEWER PLAN

C600 GRADING AND EROSION CONTROL PLAN

C700 PLANTING PLAN

C800 INTERSECTION DETAILS

I hereby certify that this engineering document
was prepared by me or under my direct personal
supervision and that I am a duly licensed
Professional Engineer under the laws of the
State of Iowa.

Jason A. Ledden, P.E. Date 

License Number P24117
My License Renewal Date is December 31, 2020

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:
SHEETS C100-C600
SHEET C800

SHEET C700



   10

   12

   11

BM500

S 
Jo

ne
s 

Bl
vd

.
C

on
cr

et
e

S 
Jo

ne
s 

Bl
vd

.
C

on
cr

et
e

Gravel

Gravel

Cory Court
Concrete

Concrete

BuildingBuilding

Rim=784.97
Inv=774.62 PVC N
Inv=774.60 PVC E
Inv=774.62 PVC S

Intake=785.93
F.L.=783.63 4" TILE N
F.L.=783.63 4" TILE S
F.L.=783.03 8" PVC TILE W
F.L.=782.68 15" RCP E

Intake=784.52
F.L.=782.94 8" PVC E

Intake=785.92
F.L.=N/A 15" RCP N
F.L.=782.81 8" PVC TILE E
F.L.=782.64 15" RCP W
F.L.=782.52 15" RCP S

Intake=778.72
F.L.=775.91 4" TILE N
F.L.=775.91 4" TILE S
F.L.=774.86 15" RCP W

Intake=778.67
F.L.=775.17 4" TILE N
F.L.=774.53 15" RCP E
F.L.=774.17 15" RCP W

Intake=776.41
F.L.=774.22 4" TILE N
F.L.=772.89 8" TILE SE
F.L.=772.89 15" RCP NE
F.L.=772.01 15" RCP W
F.L.=771.32 24" RCP S

Intake=776.99
F.L.=774.68 4" TILE N
F.L.=773.43 8" PVC TILE W
F.L.=772.40 15" RCP N
F.L.=772.40 15" RCP E

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

G 6"
PVC

82.80
ION)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

Gravel

Gravel

76=T.O.P. WHITE
RRUGATED PVC

O.P. WHITE
GATED PVC

O.P. WHITE
ATED PVC

O.P. WHITE 6"
UGATED PVC

TED PVC
V=783.72

OCATION)

EDGE OF
D BEANS

N
01

° 1
0'

 1
9"

W
   

58
3.

51
'

S89° 01' 06"W   634.35'

S0
1°

 1
0'

 5
4"

E 
  5

85
.7

2'

50' Proposed Ingress/Egress
and Utility Easement

50' Proposed Ingress/Egress
and Utility Easement

10' Existing Utiltiy Easement

10' Proposed Private Water
Main Easement

7' Proposed PUE

7' Proposed PUE

50' Proposed Ingress/Egress
and Utility Easement

Private Storm Water Easement

Water Easement

Private Storm Water Easement

N88° 49' 06"E   634.25'

8" SAN
8" SAN

8"
 S

AN

8"
 S

AN

8" SAN

8" S
AN

8"
 S

AN

8" SAN

8"W

8"W

8"
W

8"
W

8"W

8"
W

8"W

8"W

12
" R

C
P

12" RCP

12
" R

C
P

12" RCP

12
" R

C
P

12
" R

C
P

12"  RCP

12" RCP

12
" H

DPE

12"  R
CP

12" RCP

12" RCP

10" HDPE

12
"  

R
C

P

12" RCP
12" R

CP

18
" R

C
P

18
" R

CP

15" HDPE

15" HDPE

18
" R

CP

24" RCP

18" R
CP

18" RCP

18
" R

C
P

12
" H

D
PE

12
" H

D
PE

12
" H

D
PE

12" HDPE

12
" H

D
PE

12" HDPE

8" HDPE 8" HDPE

8" HDPE

8" HDPE
15" RCP

24" RCP

12
" H

D
PE

PROPOSED 6" PERFORATED HDPE EXISTING 6" SOLID WALL HDPE

NORMAL POOL = 775.67
PROPOSED 100-YEAR ELEV. = 780.38
AS-BUILT 100-YEAR ELEV. = 780.2114

15
16 17 18

19

20

21

22

23

2425

26

27

28
2930

13

12

11

10

9

8

7
6 5 4 3 2 1

25
.0

'
TY

P
25

.5
'

18
.0

'
TY

P
10

.4
'

64
.7

' T
YP

42
.0

'
TY

P

25.0'

5.0' 5.0'

26.0'
B/B

9.0'
TYP

19.0' 5.0'

9.0'
TYP

73.0' Existing ROW

80' Proposed ROW

42.0' TYP

1B

1B

1B

1B

1B

1D
1D

1C

1E

2A

2A

2A

28
.5

'

59.5'

20.0'
TYP

20.0'
TYP

2B

2B

2B

2B

2C

2C

2C

2C

57.5'
2D

2D

2D

2D
2D

2D

2D

2D

2E

2I

2E

1A

2F
TYP

2F
TYP2F

TYP

2F
TYP

3A

3A

TYP

TYP

3C

4A

5

1E

30.2'

10.0' 15.0'

10.0'

12
.0

'

12.0'
12.0'

10
.0

'

25.0'

18.9'

15.0'

64.7' TYP

45.5'

1.0'
5.0'

1.0'

25.5'

97.2'

15.0'

10.0'

10
.0

'

10
.0

'

14.0'
10.0'

15.0'

3B

4B

4B

4B

4B

4B

4B

4B

4B

30.7'

2G2.5'

15.0'

1A

1B
7

7
1B

1A

2E

2H

2H

2I

2I2I 2I

2E

PATIO WITH
FIRE PIT

10.0'

14.0'

40.0'

10.0'

15.0' 15.0'15.0'

10.0'

15.0'

86.2'

15.0'

15.0'

7

7

5.0'

10.0' Existing Public Utility Easement

1F

1F

1F

1F

1F

1F

1F

1F

1F

8

2J

2G

12.5'

4.0'

12.5'

20.0'

VINTAGE LANE

VINTAGE LANE

6

2H 2G

2F
TYP

2E 2E

6.0'

DETAIL A

25.7'

C

9.67'
BD

6.67' 5.67'
BD BD

BD BD BD

C C

L-
1

L-
1

L-
1

L-
1

4.0'

10
'

10
'

FEET

0 40

BY
DA

TE

|

1"
 =

Sh
ee

t

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

JA
L

R
M

M

LM
W

3-
27

-2
02

0

40
'

11
9.

10
37

C
30

0

119.1037

C300

VI
N

TA
G

E 
ES

TA
TE

S
D

IM
EN

SI
O

N
 P

LA
N

N
O

R
TH

 L
IB

ER
TY

, I
O

W
A

R
EV

IS
ED

 T
O

 M
AT

C
H

 T
IL

E 
EX

H
IB

IT
AS

 P
ER

 D
N

R
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
SI

D
EW

AL
K 

N
O

TE
 U

PD
AT

ES
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K 
R

EV
IS

IO
N

08
/0

4/
20

09
/1

7/
20

10
/1

3/
20

12
/2

8/
21

R
M

M
R

M
M

LM
W

LM
W

6789

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

LEGEND

1
C300

3" PCC ROLLED CURB 
NOT TO SCALE

3
C300 NOT TO SCALE

INTEGRAL SIDEWALK AND CURB DETAIL

2
C300 NOT TO SCALE

TYPICAL PAVEMENT CROSS SECTIONS 

DIMENSION PLAN CONSTRUCTION NOTES

NOTE:
A GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER HIRED BY DEVELOPER SHALL INSPECT
THE SUBGRADE PRIOR TO CONCRETE PLACEMENT TO VERIFY
SUBGRADE COMPACTION, MOISTURE CONTENT, AND DEPTH.

4
C300 NOT TO SCALE

TYPICAL PRIVATE STREET CROSS SECTION 

5
C300 NOT TO SCALE

6' HT CEDAR FENCE DETAIL

2"R
1"R

10.5"

2.5"

VA
R

IE
S

3"

6
C300 NOT TO SCALE

MAXIMUM BUILDING FOOTPRINT

42.0'

64
.7

'

25
'

5'
5'

26
'

25
'

64
.7

'

42'

DETAIL A
1" = 20'

PROVIDE 6" MINIMUM
CLEARANCE BETWEEN

BOTTOM OF FENCE
AND GROUND



N
01

° 1
0'

 1
9"

W
   

58
3.

51
'

S89° 01' 06"W   634.35'

S0
1°

 1
0'

 5
4"

E 
  5

85
.7

2'

50' Proposed Ingress/Egress
and Utility Easement

50' Proposed Ingress/Egress
and Utility Easement

10' Existing Utiltiy Easement

10' Proposed Private Water
Main Easement

7' Proposed PUE

7' Proposed PUE

50' Proposed Ingress/Egress
and Utility Easement

Private Storm Water Easement

Water Easement

Private Storm Water Easement

N88° 49' 06"E   634.25'

8"W

8"W

8"
W

8"
W

8"W

8"
W

8"W

8"W

PROPOSED 6" PERFORATED HDPE EXISTING 6" SOLID WALL HDPE

15 16 17 18

12

11

10

9

   10

   12

   11

BM500

S 
Jo

ne
s 

Bl
vd

.
C

on
cr

et
e

S 
Jo

ne
s 

Bl
vd

.
C

on
cr

et
e

Gravel

Gravel

Cory Court
Concrete

Concrete

BuildingBuilding

Rim=784.97
Inv=774.62 PVC N
Inv=774.60 PVC E
Inv=774.62 PVC S

Intake=785.93
F.L.=783.63 4" TILE N
F.L.=783.63 4" TILE S
F.L.=783.03 8" PVC TILE W
F.L.=782.68 15" RCP E

Intake=784.52
F.L.=782.94 8" PVC E

Intake=785.92
F.L.=N/A 15" RCP N
F.L.=782.81 8" PVC TILE E
F.L.=782.64 15" RCP W
F.L.=782.52 15" RCP S

Intake=778.72
F.L.=775.91 4" TILE N
F.L.=775.91 4" TILE S
F.L.=774.86 15" RCP W

Intake=778.67
F.L.=775.17 4" TILE N
F.L.=774.53 15" RCP E
F.L.=774.17 15" RCP W

Intake=776.41
F.L.=774.22 4" TILE N
F.L.=772.89 8" TILE SE
F.L.=772.89 15" RCP NE
F.L.=772.01 15" RCP W
F.L.=771.32 24" RCP S

Intake=776.99
F.L.=774.68 4" TILE N
F.L.=773.43 8" PVC TILE W
F.L.=772.40 15" RCP N
F.L.=772.40 15" RCP E

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

NG 6"
PVC

82.80
ION)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

Gravel

Gravel

76=T.O.P. WHITE
RRUGATED PVC

.O.P. WHITE
GATED PVC

O.P. WHITE
GATED PVC

O.P. WHITE 6"
UGATED PVC

ATED PVC
V=783.72

OCATION)

EDGE OF
D BEANS

MANHOLE NO. 1, SW-301
RIM: 784.75

INV: 778.47 N

ST-6A, MANHOLE, SW-301
RIM: 784.40

INV: 775.60 E
INV: 775.75 W
INV: 775.70 S

MANHOLE NO. 8, SW-301
RIM: 783.85
INV: 775.24 W
INV: 775.14 NE

F.L.=772.65 15" RCP NW

14 19

20

21

22

23

2425

26

27

28
2930

13

8

7

6 5 4 3 2 1

2B
INV=774.70 (W)

3
MANHOLE NO. 3, SW-301

RIM: 785.98
INV: 777.02 E

INV: 777.12 SW

MANHOLE NO. 2, SW-301
RIM: 785.33
INV: 777.56 NE
INV: 777.66 S

MANHOLE NO. 4, SW-301
RIM: 785.04

INV: 778.42 E

MANHOLE NO. 5, SW-301
RIM: 781.77

INV: 777.47 W
INV: 777.37 NE

MANHOLE NO. 6, SW-301
RIM: 781.56
INV: 776.94 SW
INV: 776.84 N

80 LF OF 8" SAN @ 0.45%

282 LF OF 8" SAN @ 0.45%

98
 LF

 O
F

8"
 S

AN
 @

 0.
45

%

17
9 

LF
 O

F 
8"

 S
AN

 @
 0

.4
5%

209 LF OF 8" SAN @ 0.45% 95 LF OF 8" S
AN @

 0.45%

25
5 

LF
 O

F 
8"

 S
AN

 @
 0

.4
5%

96 LF OF 8" SAN @ 0.46%

1F
1A

1B

1I

1E

1G

1B

1B

1H

1H

1H

2A

2A

1E

2C

2C

1G

2C

2A

2A

2A

2A
1E

1G

2C

2C

1B

1B

1E

2A

2A

2C
BP=979.95(ST)
TP=976.99(SAN)

BP=778.40(ST)
TP=777.04(SAN)

BP=777.05(SAN)
TP=776.78(ST)

BP=778.85(ST)
TP=778.43(SAN)

BP=780.94(ST)
TP=777.68(SAN)

2C
BP=979.31(ST)
TP=976.11(SAN)

2C
BP=977.94(ST)
TP=976.43(SAN)

BP=781.50(ST)
TP=778.22(SAN)

1G
VINTAGE LANE

VINTAGE LANE

BP=779.43(ST)
TP=777.93(WAT)

BP=780.56(ST)
TP=779.06(WAT)

BP=779.07(ST)
TP=777.17(WAT)

FEET

0 40

BY
DA

TE

|

1"
 =

Sh
ee

t

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

JA
L

R
M

M

LM
W

3-
27

-2
02

0

40
'

11
9.

10
37

C
40

0

119.1037

C400

VI
N

TA
G

E 
ES

TA
TE

S
U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

N
O

R
TH

 L
IB

ER
TY

, I
O

W
A

R
EV

IS
ED

 T
O

 M
AT

C
H

 T
IL

E 
EX

H
IB

IT
AS

 P
ER

 D
N

R
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
SI

D
EW

AL
K 

N
O

TE
 R

EV
IS

IO
N

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K 

R
EV

IS
IO

N

08
/0

4/
20

09
/1

7/
20

10
/1

3/
20

12
/2

8/
21

R
M

M
R

M
M

LM
W

 L
M

W

6789

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

UTILITY PLAN CONSTRUCTION NOTES

SERVICE LOCATION DETAIL



N
01

° 1
0'

 1
9"

W
   

58
3.

51
'

S89° 01' 06"W   634.35'

S0
1°

 1
0'

 5
4"

E 
  5

85
.7

2'

50' Proposed Ingress/Egress
and Utility Easement

50' Proposed Ingress/Egress
and Utility Easement

10' Existing Utiltiy Easement

10' Proposed Private Water
Main Easement

7' Proposed PUE

7' Proposed PUE

50' Proposed Ingress/Egress
and Utility Easement

Private Storm Water Easement

Private Storm Water Easement

Private Storm Water Easement

N88° 49' 06"E   634.25'

8" SAN
8" SAN

8"
 S

AN

8"
 S

AN

8" SAN

8" S
AN

8"
 S

AN

8" SAN

8"W

8"W

8"
W

8"
W

8"W

8"
W

8"W

8"W

EXISTING 6" SOLID WALL HDPE

15 16 17 18

12

11

10

9

   10

   12

   11

BM500

S 
Jo

ne
s 

Bl
vd

.
C

on
cr

et
e

S 
Jo

ne
s 

Bl
vd

.
C

on
cr

et
e

Gravel

Gravel

Cory Court
Concrete

Concrete

BuildingBuilding

Rim=784.97
Inv=774.62 PVC N
Inv=774.60 PVC E
Inv=774.62 PVC S

Intake=785.93
F.L.=783.63 4" TILE N
F.L.=783.63 4" TILE S
F.L.=783.03 8" PVC TILE W
F.L.=782.68 15" RCP E

Intake=784.52
F.L.=782.94 8" PVC E

Intake=785.92
F.L.=N/A 15" RCP N
F.L.=782.81 8" PVC TILE E
F.L.=782.64 15" RCP W
F.L.=782.52 15" RCP S

Intake=778.72
F.L.=775.91 4" TILE N
F.L.=775.91 4" TILE S
F.L.=774.86 15" RCP W

Intake=778.67
F.L.=775.17 4" TILE N
F.L.=774.53 15" RCP E
F.L.=774.17 15" RCP W

Intake=776.41
F.L.=774.22 4" TILE N
F.L.=772.89 8" TILE SE
F.L.=772.89 15" RCP NE
F.L.=772.01 15" RCP W
F.L.=771.32 24" RCP S

Intake=776.99
F.L.=774.68 4" TILE N
F.L.=773.43 8" PVC TILE W
F.L.=772.40 15" RCP N
F.L.=772.40 15" RCP E

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

EXISTING 6"
CORRUGATED PVC

INV=782.80
(MAP LOCATION)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

Gravel

Gravel

779.76=T.O.P. WHITE
6" CORRUGATED PVC

779.40=T.O.P. WHITE
6" CORRUGATED PVC

779.12=T.O.P. WHITE
6" CORRUGATED PVC

780.64=T.O.P. WHITE 6"
CORRUGATED PVC

6" CORRUGATED PVC
INV=783.72

(MAP LOCATION)

EDGE OF
DISTURBED BEANS

ST-20, INTAKE,
SW-503  W/ MOUNTABLE
 CURB BOX
T/C: 784.89
INV: 980.38 SE
INV: 780.33 NW
INV: 780.38 NE
INV: 780.28 SW

ST-15, INTAKE,
SW-503  W/ MOUNTABLE

 CURB BOX
T/C: 785.58

INV: 781.60 N
INV: 781.60 SE

INV: 781.50 S

ST-17, INTAKE,
SW-503  W/ MOUNTABLE

 CURB BOX
T/C: 784.99

INV: 781.07 N
INV: 781.02 S
INV: 781.07 E

ST-1, INTAKE, SW-513 (4'x4')
OPEN 3-SIDES (N,W,S)

THROAT=783.00

RIM: 784.25
INV: 780.77 E

ST-1A,, 18" Nyloplast Drain Basin
w/ Solid Lid

RIM: 782.44
INV: 779.65 W

INV: 779.54 SE

ST-2, 24" Nyloplast Drain Basin
w/ Domed Grate
RIM: 781.68
INV: 779.28 NW
INV: 779.18 SW

ST-20A, 15" FES w/ Footing
INV: 780.00 NE

27 LF OF 12" RCP @ 0.40%

223 LF OF 15" HDPE @ 0.50%

51 LF OF 15" HDPE @ 0.50%

94 LF OF 18" RCP @ 0.30%

ST-17A, MANHOLE, SW-401
RIM: 785.67

INV: 780.49 N
INV: 780.44 SE

58
 L

F 
O

F
12

" H
D

PE
 @

 0
.4

9%

ST-21, CMP APRON
INV: 781.82 S

ST-22, 18" DRAIN BASIN
W/ DOME GRATE

RIM: 784.15
INV: 781.54 N
INV: 781.54 S

10
0 

LF
 O

F 
12

" H
D

PE
 @

 0
.5

0%

ST-23, 18" DRAIN BASIN
W/ DOME GRATE

RIM: 784.15
INV: 781.04 N
INV: 781.04 S

161 LF OF 12" HDPE @ 0.50%

ST-23A, 18" DRAIN BASIN
W/ SOLID LID

RIM: 786.00
INV: 780.23 N

INV: 780.13 SE
26 LF OF 12" HDPE @ 0.50%

ST-23B, CMP APRON
INV: 780.00 NW

ST-25A, CMP APRON
INV: 780.00 W178 LF OF 12" HDPE @ 0.50%

ST-25, MANHOLE, SW-401
RIM: 785.00

INV: 781.85 N
INV: 780.89 E

15 LF OF 12" HDPE @ 1.00%

ST-24, 12" CMP APRON
W/ GUARD

INV: 782.00 S

ST-26, 8" CMP APRON
W/ GUARD

INV: 778.50 E ST-27, 10" DRAIN BASIN W/ SOLID LID
RIM: 784.74
INV: 777.63 W
INV: 777.53 E

ST-29, 10" DRAIN BASIN W/ SOLID LID
RIM: 780.85
INV: 776.00 W
INV: 775.90 NE

58 LF OF 8" HDPE @ 0.70%
ST-30, 8" CMP APRON

W/ GUARD
INV: 775.50 SE

9 LF OF 8" HDPE @ 2.91%

ST-31, INTAKE, SW-513 (5'X5')
OPEN 3-SIDES (NW,SW,NE)
THROAT=778.35 OPEN 3 SIDE
RIM: 779.60
THROAT: 778.35
INV: 775.24 NW
INV: 775.00 SE

59 LF OF 15" RCP @ 3.79%

F.L.=772.65 15" RCP NW

ST-29A, 8" CMP APRON
INV: 775.50 SW

14 19

20

21

22

23

2425

26

27

28
2930

13

8

7

6 5 4 3 2 1

ST-13, INTAKE,
SW-503  W/ MOUNTABLE
 CURB BOX
T/C: 781.32
INV: 775.73 NE
INV: 775.48 NW
INV: 776.18 SW
INV: 775.38 SE

ST-3, INTAKE, SW-501 W/ MOUNTABLE
 CURB BOX
T/C: 784.55

INV: 780.28 N

ST-4, INTAKE,
SW-503  W/ MOUNTABLE

 CURB BOX
T/C: 784.55

INV: 780.02 W
INV: 780.02 S
INV: 779.92 E

ST-6, INTAKE,
SW-503  W/ MOUNTABLE

 CURB BOX
T/C: 783.90

INV: 779.89 E
INV: 778.77 W
INV: 779.89 S

INV: 778.87 NE

ST-5, INTAKE,
SW-501 W/ MOUNTABLE
 CURB BOX
T/C: 783.90
INV: 780.15 N

ST-7, INTAKE,
SW-501  W/ MOUNTABLE

 CURB BOX
T/C: 783.17

INV: 778.74 E
ST-8, INTAKE,
SW-503  W/ MOUNTABLE
 CURB BOX
T/C: 783.17
INV: 777.38 N
INV: 777.28 S
INV: 778.48 W

ST-8A, MANHOLE, SW-401
RIM: 782.23
INV: 776.38 N
INV: 776.28 SWST-12, INTAKE,

SW-501  W/ MOUNTABLE
 CURB BOX
T/C: 781.32

INV: 775.61 SE

ST-10, INTAKE,
SW-501  W/ MOUNTABLE

 CURB BOX
T/C: 782.85

INV: 779.22 NW
INV: 779.12 S

ST-11, INTAKE,
SW-503  W/ MOUNTABLE
 CURB BOX
T/C: 782.85
INV=778.86 W
INV: 778.86 N
INV: 778.69 E

ST-11A, MANHOLE, SW-401
RIM: 782.65
INV: 777.37 W
INV: 777.27 NE

ST-19, INTAKE,
SW-501  W/ MOUNTABLE
 CURB BOX
T/C: 784.81
INV: 780.61 NE
INV: 780.51 SW

ST-18, 18" Nyloplast Drain Basin
w/ Domed Grate
RIM: 783.37
INV: 780.80 SW

ST-9, 10" CMP APRON W/
GUARD

INV: 779.45 SE

ST-13A, 24" FES w/ Footing
INV: 775.25 NW

26 LF OF 12" RCP @ 1.00%

113 LF OF 12" RCP @ 1.00%
26 LF OF 12" RCP @ 1.00%

26 LF OF 12" RCP @ 0.50%

85
 L

F 
O

F 
12

" R
C

P 
@

 0
.5

0%

13
1 

LF
 O

F 
12

" R
C

P 
@

 0
.4

0%

25 LF OF 12" RCP @ 0.51%

19 LF OF 12" HDPE @ 1.00%

26 LF OF 12" RCP @ 0.50%

26 LF OF 12" RCP
@ 0.50%

26 LF OF 12" RCP @ 1.00%

26 LF OF 10" HDPE @ 0.89%

26 LF OF 12" RCP @ 1.00% 53 LF OF
12" RCP
@ 2.50%

54 LF OF 12" RCP @ 2.00%

69 LF OF 18" RCP
@ 0.80%

62 LF OF 18" RCP @ 0.50%

42 LF OF 24" RCP
@ 0.30%

783.89783.89

INV=774.70 (W)

11
3 

LF
 O

F 
18

" R
C

P 
@

 0
.8

0%
14

4 
LF

 O
F 

18
" R

C
P 

@
 0

.7
0%

46 LF OF 18" RCP @ 0.61%

ST-14, INTAKE,
SW-501  W/ MOUNTABLE
 CURB BOX
T/C: 785.39
INV: 781.73 NW

ST-16, INTAKE, SW-511
RIM: 784.74
INV: 781.20 W

ST-6A, MANHOLE, TYPE SW-401
RIM: 784.66

INV: 778.79 W
INV: 778.49 E
INV: 778.39 S

CONNECT TO EXISTING INTAKE
INV: 772.75 NW

INV: 772.40 E

26 LF OF 24" RCP @ 1.47%

CONNECT TO EXISTING INTAKE
INV: 772.01 W

ST-32, 12"CMP APRON
W/ GUARD

INV: 779.38 S

25 LF OF 12" HDPE
@ 0.50%

1A

1B

1C

1B

VINTAGE LANE

VINTAGE LANE

1H

110 LF OF 8" HDPE @ 0.79%
218 LF OF 8" HDPE @ 0.70%

1E

ST-25A, CMP APRON
INV: 780.00 W
ST-25A, CMP APRON
INV: 780.00 W
ST-25A, CMP APRON
INV: 780.00 W

58 LF OF 8" HDPE @ 0.70%58 LF OF 8" HDPE @ 0.70%

ST-32A, 12" CMP APRON
INV: 779.25 N

145 LF 4" PERF
SUBDRAIN

@ 1.00%

119 LF 4" PERF
SUBDRAIN

@ 1.00%

CLEANOUT
RIM: 786.63

INV: 781.21 E
INV: 783.05 W 89 LF 4" PERF

SUBDRAIN
@ 1.00%

CLEANOUT
RIM: 784.46
INV: 780.78 W

150 LF 4" PERF
SUBDRAIN
@ 1.00%

CLEANOUT
RIM: 785.51
INV: 779.76 E
INV: 781.88 W

90 LF 4" PERF SUBDRAIN @ 1.00%

EXISTING TILE
INV=778.32

(VERIFY)

REMOVE 224LF OF 6"
EXISTING TILE

224LF OF 6"
PERFORATED
HDPE@ 0.8%

CONNECT TO
EXISTING 6" TILE
INV=776.52
(VERIFY)

784.12

FEET

0 40

BY
DA

TE

|

1"
 =

Sh
ee

t

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

JA
L

R
M

M

LM
W

3-
27

-2
02

0

40
'

11
9.

10
37

C
50

0

119.1037

C500

VI
N

TA
G

E 
ES

TA
TE

S
ST

O
R

M
 S

EW
ER

 P
LA

N
N

O
R

TH
 L

IB
ER

TY
, I

O
W

A
R

EV
IS

ED
 T

O
 M

AT
C

H
 T

IL
E 

EX
H

IB
IT

AS
 P

ER
 D

N
R

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

SI
D

EW
AL

K 
N

O
TE

 R
EV

IS
IO

N
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K 
R

EV
IS

IO
N

08
/0

3/
20

09
/1

7/
20

10
/1

3/
20

12
/2

8/
21

R
M

M
R

M
M

LM
W

LM
W

6789

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

STORM SEWER PLAN CONSTRUCTION NOTES

STILLING BASIN DETAIL



N
01

° 1
0'

 1
9"

W
   

58
3.

51
'

S89° 01' 06"W   634.35'

S0
1°

 1
0'

 5
4"

E 
  5

85
.7

2'

N88° 49' 06"E   634.25'

8"W

8"W

8"
W

8"
W

8"W

8"
W

8"W

8"W

PROPOSED 6" PERFORATED HDPE EXISTING 6" SOLID WALL HDPE

78
7

78
6

78
5

78
4

78
3

782 781

780

782

78
1 780

779 77
8

77
7

78
4

78
4

78
2

78
1

78
1 78

0 77
9

788

787

788789
789 787

787

786

785

784 78
5

78
3

782

781

78
0

786

785

784

14

15 16 17 18
19

20

21

22

23

2425

26

27

28
2930

13

12

11

10

9

8

7
6 5 4 3 2 1

5.0'

9.0'
TYP

   12

   11

BM500

S 
Jo

ne
s 

Bl
vd

.
C

on
cr

et
e

S 
Jo

ne
s 

Bl
vd

.
C

on
cr

et
e

Gravel

Gravel

Cory Court
Concrete

Concrete

BuildingBuilding

Rim=784.97
Inv=774.62 PVC N
Inv=774.60 PVC E
Inv=774.62 PVC S

Intake=785.93
F.L.=783.63 4" TILE N
F.L.=783.63 4" TILE S
F.L.=783.03 8" PVC TILE W
F.L.=782.68 15" RCP E

Intake=784.52
F.L.=782.94 8" PVC E

Intake=785.92
F.L.=N/A 15" RCP N
F.L.=782.81 8" PVC TILE E
F.L.=782.64 15" RCP W
F.L.=782.52 15" RCP S

Intake=778.72
F.L.=775.91 4" TILE N
F.L.=775.91 4" TILE S
F.L.=774.86 15" RCP W

Intake=778.67
F.L.=775.17 4" TILE N
F.L.=774.53 15" RCP E
F.L.=774.17 15" RCP W

Intake=776.41
F.L.=774.22 4" TILE N
F.L.=772.89 8" TILE SE
F.L.=772.89 15" RCP NE
F.L.=772.01 15" RCP W
F.L.=771.32 24" RCP S

Intake=776.99
F.L.=774.68 4" TILE N
F.L.=773.43 8" PVC TILE W
F.L.=772.40 15" RCP N
F.L.=772.40 15" RCP E

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

TING 6"
ED PVC
=782.80
ATION)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

3" Clay
(Map Location)

Gravel

Gravel

9.76=T.O.P. WHITE
CORRUGATED PVC

=T.O.P. WHITE
RUGATED PVC

T.O.P. WHITE
UGATED PVC

T.O.P. WHITE 6"
RRUGATED PVC

GATED PVC
INV=783.72
LOCATION)

EDGE OF
BED BEANS

SEE DETAIL A

SEE DETAIL B

784.26
785.00
OVERFLOW
N640599.001
E2153848.647

781.68

●

●
●

●

●
●

●

●
●

●

●

●

●
● ●

●

●
●

●
●

MLO=783.30

MLO=784.25

MLO=784.90

FFE=785.60

FFE=785.60

MLO=786.30
MLO=786.70MLO=787.00MLO=787.30MLO=788.00

MLO=788.00

MLO=787.00

MLO=786.90 MLO=785.35

MLO=783.80

FFE=787.90
MLO=787.65

MLO=784.45

FFE=785.10

FFE=785.75

FFE=787.00

20 TONS OF
CLASS 'D'
RIPRAP

●
● ●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

● ●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●

●
●

●
●

●
●

● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ●

●

6'x8' TRM w/
4'x4' FTM

20 TONS OF
CLASS 'D'
RIPRAP

SILT FENCE
(TYP.)

100-YR ELEVATION=780.38
WQV ELEVATION=776.56'
Normal Pool=775.50'

100-YR ELEVATION=784.69

788

78
3

78
4

78
6

78
5

78
3

78
4

78
7

782

783

787
785

78
5

785
786 784

782

783

786

78
5

784

78
4

785

78
5

786

78
5

787

78
6

78
5

78
3782

780

78
2

78
1

78
4

78
2

78
4

78
6

784

783

784

787

78
6

783784

770
767

767

781
78

0

77
5

77
677

0

78
0

77
8

78
0

78
2

78
3

78
5

785

78
1

78
0

780781

78
6

785

78
5 78

2

78
4

78
778

1

780

782

780

785

STOCKPILE
AREA

STAGING
AREA

CONSTRUCTION
ENTRANCE

77
0

77
0 76

7

77
5

78
078

2

770
775

777

778

779

783

78
1

78
2

78
3

78
2

78
0 77

9

78
3 78
2

785

78
5

785

78
5

78
6

786

78
6

78
6

78
5

786

782

785
784

783

781

785

78
3

78
4

78
5

78
6

78
3

78
4

78
4

78
7 78

6 78
5

787
786

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

●
●

780.90
OVERFLOW

780.50
OVERFLOW

784.15

784.90
OVERFLOW
N640343.183

E2153503.198

784.15

784.90
OVERFLOW
N640431.454
E2153514.717

782.30
OVERFLOW

783.37
784.81
OVERFLOW

10 TONS OF CLASS
'D' RIPRAP

●

●

●

●

●

●

30 TONS OF
CLASS 'D'
RIPRAP

25 TONS OF CLASS
'D' RIPRAP

783 784

785

78
4

784

78
4

78
6

781

780

781

781
784

78
6

78
5

779

781
782780

78
5

783

78
2

78
3

78
4

78
2

781

782 781 78
0

780

77
9

782

782

786

786

10 TONS OF CLASS
'D' RIPRAP

●
●

● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ●
●

●

784.89
OVERFLOW 781.32TC

OVERFLOW

CONCRETE
WASHOUT

VINTAGE LANE

VINTAGE LANE

780

78
0

78
0 77

6
77

6
77

7

77
7

77
7

77
7 778 77
8

77
8

77
8

77
9

78
1781781 78

1 78
1

78
2

78
2

78
278

3

784

77
9 779

784.74

784.90

785.00

785.05

785.40

785.30
785.55TC

785.30

785.25

785.08

HP

784.74
785.01TC

10 TONS OF CLASS
'D' RIPRAP

SOUTHWEST BASIN
100-YR ELEVATION=783.86

WQV ELEVATION=781.37'

786.51
HP

784.54
784.82
HP

785.48
HP

784.29

78
3.9

9

781.31

782.44

STILLING BASIN
Refer to detail on sheet C500

781.90
TOP OF BERM

781.90
TOP OF BERM

786.05
TOP OF BERM

786.05
TOP OF BERM

786.05
TOP OF BERM

785.28
785.31
785.33

785.38

785.36

785.33
785.38

785.42

783.97

786.00
HP

78
0

77
7

77
8

77
9

781

78
2783

784

780

78
0

777
778

77
9

779

781

78
1

782

78
2

MLO=787.80

MLO=787.50

MLO=787.15

MLO=786.90

784.90
OVERFLOW
N640243.142

E2153507.941

HP
786.15

N640596.747
E2153714.803

DETAIL A

MLO=786.95

MLO=786.80

1.2%

-0.
70

%

(778.00)

778.55

786.15

785.90

785.95

785.80

786.00

785.60
785.90

785.90

784.35

782.75

786.65

784.75

784.10

783.45 783.25

783.90

784.60

782.30

784.05
OVERFLOW

784.05
OVERFLOW

784.90
OVERFLOW
N640431.252

E2153504.716

784.90
OVERFLOW
N640343.279
E2153513.198

MLO=786.90
MLO=786.90

MLO=786.90

FFE=785.75

785.30785.70786.00786.30
787.00

786.80

786.50

784.90
OVERFLOW
N640243.299
E2153515.213

MLO=787.65

-6
.3

3%

-7
.4

3%

-8
.86

%

-9
.5

8%

-1
0.

38
%

-8
.5

0%

-7.68%

-9.58%-7.29%

-7.18% -9.78%

-6.82%
-8.92%

-6.26%
-5.29%

-1
0.

09
%

-8
.9

9%

-1
1.

01
%

-1
0.

50
%

-8
.6

7%

-7
.3

8%

-7.89%

-7.88%

-7.69%

-7.82%

-8.45%

-6.93%

-9.07%

-6
.9

4%

-8
.2

6%

FFE=786.55
FFE=786.95

FFE=787.25FFE=787.55
FFE=788.25

FFE=788.25

FFE=788.05

FFE=787.75

FFE=787.40

FFE=787.15

FFE=787.20

FFE=787.05

FFE=787.25

FFE=787.15

FFE=787.15
FFE=787.15 FFE=787.15 FFE=785.60

FFE=784.05

FFE=787.90
FFE=784.70

FFE=785.15

FFE=784.50

FFE=783.55

8" SAN

8"W

VINTAGE LANE
786.51

HP

-1
.1

%

-1
.8

0%

-1
.8

2%

-1.50%

1.
90

%

785.01

785.04

786.07 785.93

786.15

78
6.2

8786.53 786.40

786.75

785.05TC

785.80

786.20

786.24

786.3778
6.6

2

787.00

785.14786.49

786.28 786.15

786.68
786.82

786.40

784.80

786.20

78
6.2

5 784.62
-1.50% -1.79%

-1
1.

01
%

-8
.6

7%

-7
.3

8%
FEET

0 40

BY
DA

TE

|

1"
 =

Sh
ee

t

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

JA
L

R
M

M

LM
W

3-
27

-2
02

0

40
'

11
9.

10
37

C
60

0

119.1037

C600

VI
N

TA
G

E 
ES

TA
TE

S
G

R
A

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 E
R

O
IS

IO
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

PL
A

N
N

O
R

TH
 L

IB
ER

TY
, I

O
W

A
R

EV
IS

ED
 T

O
 M

AT
C

H
 T

IL
E 

EX
H

IB
IT

AS
 P

ER
 D

N
R

 C
O

M
M

EN
TS

SI
D

EW
AL

K 
N

O
TE

 R
EV

IS
IO

N
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K 
R

EV
IS

IO
N

08
/0

4/
20

09
/1

7/
20

10
/1

3/
20

12
/2

8/
21

R
M

M
R

M
M

LM
W

LM
W

6789

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

SGRADING NOTES
1.  CONTRACTOR TO STRIP AND STOCKPILE TOPSOIL ON ALL AREAS TO BE CUT OR FILLED.  RESPREAD TO MINIMUM 6" DEPTH

TO FINISH GRADES.

2. ANY EXCESS CUT TO BE SPREAD ON SITE AS DIRECTED BY ENGINEER DURING CONSTRUCTION.  PLACE TOPSOIL OVER
ALL AREAS DISTURBED.

3. ALL DRAINAGE SWALES AND SLOPES 5 TO 1 OR GREATER TO BE SEEDED USING COMMERCIALLY AVAILABLE EROSION
CONTROL SEED.  MIXTURE APPLIED AT RATE RECOMMENDED BY SUPPLIER.

4. EROSION CONTROL:  SEED THE SITE AFTER ROUGH GRADING HAS BEEN COMPLETED.  PLACE SILT FENCE AND MAINTAIN IN
PROBLEM AREAS AFTER GROUND COVER HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED.  COMPLY WITH EROSION CONTROL LAW.

5. PROVIDE BELOW GRADE INLET PROTECTION IN PAVED AREAS FOLLOWING PAVING OPERATIONS.

6. POST CONSTRUCTION VOLUME OF THE DETENTION BASINS WILL NEED TO BE VERIFIED AND PRIVIDED TO THE CITY
BEFORE FINAL CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY (CO) CAN BE ISSUED.

7. ALL TEMPORARY SEEDING SHOULD INCLUDE MULCH.

8. ALL CLASS D RIPRAP TO HAVE 6" MACADAM STONE TOPDRESSING.

9. INDIVIDUAL GRADING PLANS FOR EACH HOME SHALL BE SUBMITTED AT TIME OF BUILDING PERMIT.

QUANTITIES
SILT FENCE
BELOW GRADE INLET PROTECTION
CLASS 'D' RIPRAP
TRM

2190 LF
19 EA
125 TON
48 SF

DETAIL A
1"=20'

NOTE
FFE: FINISH FLOOR ELEVATION
MLO: MINIMUM LOW OPENING

NO SCALE
1

C600
CONCRETE WASHOUT AREA DETAIL



N
01

° 1
0'

 1
9"

W
   

58
3.

51
'

S89° 01' 06"W   634.35'

S0
1°

 1
0'

 5
4"

E 
  5

85
.7

2'

10' Existing Utiltiy Easemente

r

7' Proposed PUE
Private Storm Water Easement

Private Storm Water Easement

N88° 49' 06"E   634.25'

Water

ress/Egress
asement

50' Proposed Ing
and Utility Ea

50' Proposed Ingres
and Utility Easem

Private Storm Water Easement
S0

1°
 1

0'
 5

4"
E 

  5
85

.7
2'

te W
ent

10' Proposed PrrPd
Main EaseesE

7' Proposed PUE

50' Proposed Ingress/Egress
and Utility Easement

rir
ee
va
m
ataat
ee

s/Egress
ment

123456

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15 16 17 18 19

20

21

22

23

2425

26

27

28
2930

PROPOSED 6" PERFORATED HDPE EXISTING 6" SOLID WALL HDPE

Rim=784.97
Inv=774.62 PVC N
Inv=774.60 PVC E
Inv=774.62 PVC S

780781782

78
3

785

78
5

785

783

784

784

784

786

786

786

78
7

787

787

788

787

788

78
0

77
9

78
1

78
2

78
3 78

3

78
4784

783

784

783

784

785

784

786 785

78
6

785

786

787

786
786

787

78
5

78
6

787

78
8

78
3

78
4

781

782

78
0

78
1

77
8

781

782
783

782 780
77

777
8

77
9

78
1

782

783
784

12"
12"

12"
12"

12"
12"

12"

M

sss

33333
7888887 7888

287777

7888
78878888

0000

3333 4484444

7778

7877 3
777
3 4444484884

7778
3338 7878787888 787

00

s

M
ro

sss

Pro
MMM
oo

222222787878787777 666686666

87888787877 55555

78777877784

PRPROROPO OSO ES DED 6"6 P EPERFR OFORARATA EDTED HD HDH PD EE
SS

7877 588858885

RPRPPROROROOPOPPOSOO

78478787878787878

ESS

78777777777

DEDD

666866666

666 P" EPEERFRR OFOORORRATAAA ETETTED DDD HH PDDD EPEPPEE
SSSSSS

78080800080807877780808880787878788000000000

ment 888888888888887778787878788
8meenentn

7778

t

77877777888788
88888

1-GT

1-GT

1-GT

2-AG
1-AB

1-JV

1-CC

1-JV
1-AB

1-AG

1-CC

1-CR

2-AB

1-AG

1-JV
1-CR

1-CC

1-JV

1-AG

1-CR

1-JV

1-AG

3-GT

40' RADIUS

SSSSS

788387 3377 33

7787887888 77778 77

ater Easement

4

78777878

Prro

50' PN
01

°1
0

19
W

   
58

33

787878787878787878

77

8484848484848484848484848484

Utility Easem
gProposedd Ingresss/Eg

77

786
7866666

1-AGA

RADDD

777777 7838383833

8585555555555

ERFORATED HDPERF RA ED HD EERFORATED H PE
06"W   

77787787878778787808887888880

636
7818181818181

777787878787878787880

800022 80008080008080222

787878

7777777777

55585858585

PROPOSED 6" PERFORATED HDPEPRO OSED 6 E FORATE DPROPOSED 6 PERFO AT D HDDPPP EXISTING 6"
4

Prop7  P

ssss

7

s

1

11811

787

6"6""

7828282

7' Proposed PUE

asement
ess/Egre

tilit E

W
n

-J
1

7877777777

868686868686886

and Utility Easeme
50  Proposed Ingresss/Eg

t

77837

Ea
Pr

0' RA

51

3333333

ity Easemment

s
me

s
e

7787

778
5

7

7777

7877
787878787878

777

r
a
r

8888888888888888

7

87

788
68

mentmentt 8menntmm nnmmeenntt

1-AB1-JV1-CC

3-GT

1-AG1-CR

2-GT

1-CC

1-CR

2-GT2-AG1-CC

VINTAGE LANE

VINTAGE LANE

1-AG

1-CR

1-AG

2-JV

1-AB

DECIDUOUS OVERSTORY
TREES

DECIDUOUS
ORNAMENTAL TREES

EVERGREEN OVERSTORY
TREES

LEGEND

SOD

SEED

EROSION CONTROL
MATTING

BY
DA

TE

|

1"
 =

Sh
ee

t

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

JA
L

R
M

M

LM
W

2/
28

/2
02

0

40
'

11
9.

10
37

C
70

0

119.1037

C700

VI
N

TA
G

E 
ES

TA
TE

S
PL

A
N

TI
N

G
 P

LA
N

N
O

R
TH

 L
IB

ER
TY

, I
O

W
A

R
EV

IS
ED

 T
O

 M
AT

C
H

 T
IL

E 
EX

H
IB

IT
AS

 P
ER

 D
N

R
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
SI

D
EW

AL
K 

N
O

TE
 R

EV
IS

IO
N

BU
IL

D
IN

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K 

R
EV

IS
IO

N

08
/0

4/
20

09
/1

7/
20

10
/1

3/
20

12
/2

8/
21

R
M

M
R

M
M

LM
W

LM
W

6789

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

FEET

0 40

PLANTING PLAN GENERAL NOTES
A. UTILITY WARNING:

THE UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD SURVEY INFORMATION AND/OR
RECORDS OBTAINED.  THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO GUARANTEE THAT THE UTILITIES SHOWN
COMPRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED.  THE
SURVEY FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE UTILITIES SHOWN ARE IN THE EXACT
LOCATION INDICATED.

B. NOTIFY UTILITY OWNERS PRIOR TO BEGINNING ANY CONSTRUCTION.  CONTRACTOR IS
RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING EXISTENCE, EXACT LOCATION AND DEPTH OF ALL
UTILITIES.  AVOID DAMAGE TO UTILITIES AND SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION.  ANY
DAMAGE DUE TO THE CONTRACTOR'S CARELESSNESS SHALL BE CORRECTED AT THE
CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.  COORDINATE AND COOPERATE WITH UTILITY COMPANIES
DURING CONSTRUCTION.

C. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL AT LEAST MEET AND BE INSTALLED PER MINIMUM
REQUIREMENTS SHOWN IN THE "AMERICAN STANDARDS FOR NURSERY STOCK" (ANSI
Z60.1-LATEST EDITION).

D. CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE ALL PLANT MATERIAL FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR FROM
DATE OF INSTALLATION.

E. PROVIDE A  MIN 3-FOOT PERIMETER RING OF SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH, 3" DEPTH
MAXIMUM AROUND ALL TREES. PROVIDE VERTICAL CUT NATURAL EDGE TO A DEPTH OF
4-INCHES.

F. SEED  ALL AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION WITH TYPE 1 SUDAS PERMANENT LAWN
SEED MIX, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. MULCH IS REQUIRED IN ALL SEEDED AREAS.

G. PROVIDE TYPE 2 (PERMANENT COOL SEASON MIXTURE FOR SLOPES AND DITCHES) SUDAS
SEED MIXTURE ON ALL 3:1 OR GREATER SLOPES.

H. PROVIDE SUDAS WETLAND SEEDING MIXTURE WITHIN DETENTION BASIN AREAS. SEE
STORMWATER EASEMENTS FOR LIMITS.

I. PROVIDE TYPE 5 (RURAL TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL) SUDAS  SEED MIXTURE FOR ALL
DISTURBED AREAS ON NEIGHBORING PROPERTY OWNER TO THE SOUTH AND WEST.

PLANT SCHEDULE

SHADEMASTER HONEYLOCUSTGleditsia  triacanthos v. inermis 'Shademaster' GT

EASTERN REDBUD

BOTANICAL NAME

CC

COMMON NAME

B&B

COMMENTS

B&B

SIZE 

Cersis canadensis

TR
EE

S

NOTE: QUANTITIES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY PLANT MATERIAL PRIOR
TO BIDDING. IN THE CASE OF A DISCREPANCY, THE PLAN QUANTITY SHALL GOVERN.

B&B
B&B
B&B

AUTUMN BRILLIANCE SERVICEBERRYAmelanchier x grandiflora ' Autumn Brilliance'AG
B&BBALSAM FIRAbies balsameaAB

DOWNY HAWTHORNCC Crataegus mollis

EASTERN REDCEDAR Juniperus  virginianaJV



8" SAN

S 
Jo

ne
s 

Bl
vd

.

C
on

cr
et

e

Rim=784.97
Inv=774.62 PVC N
Inv=774.60 PVC E
Inv=774.62 PVC S

LANDING AREA
(5'x5' - 2% MAX SLOPE)

LANDING AREA
(5'x5' - 2% MAX SLOPE)

ADA RAMP W/ CAST
IRON DETECTABLE

WARNINGS (BRICK RED)

ADA RAMP W/
CAST IRON

DETECTABLE
WARNINGS

(BRICK RED)

GRIND CURB
FOR PROPOSED

SIDEWALK RAMP

CONTRACTOR TO CREATE
CLEAN SAW CUT 2'  FROM BACK
OF CURB AND REMOVE
EXISTING CURB SECTION TO
NEAREST JOINT FOR
PROPOSED DRIVE AND RAMP.

5.
5%

1.
5%

1.0%

4.
7%

1.0%1.
0% 1.3%

2.1%

6.1%

7.6% 1.
9%

785.00

784.95

785.05
785.00

784.50
784.45

784.45784.50

785.00
784.95

784.92 784.87

(784.24)

(783.46)

784.71

784.66

785.48

785.35

784.78

784.71

784.93

784.88

1.
6%

1.0%

1.0%

782.70

783.88

785.33

784.92

784.76
784.71

784.42

784.42

784.13

784.13

784.78TC
784.28

784.78TC
784.28

1.0%

1.0%

784.09TC
783.84

784.42TC
784.17

784.42TC
784.17

784.09TC

783.84

8" SAN

12" RCP

12
"R

C
P

18" RCP

18
" R

C
P

784.82
HP

784.29

78
3.9

9

784.30

784.20

783.84

783.97

783.89

78
4.8

0784.85

784.75

784.70

784.09

784.14

ADA RAMP W/ CAST
IRON DETECTABLE
WARNINGS (BRICK RED)

1.0%
6.7%

2.
0%

4.1%

2.6%

1.8%
1.2% 1.

0%

784.15

784.20

LANDING AREA
(5' X 5'-2% MAX SLOPE)

LANDING AREA
(5' X 5'-2% MAX SLOPE)

1.2% -0.
70

%

-6.26%

-5.29%

BY
DA

TE

|

1"
 =

Sh
ee

t

Sheet

27
27

 S
.W

. S
N

YD
ER

 B
LV

D
AN

KE
N

Y,
 IO

W
A 

50
02

3
51

5-
96

4-
20

20
 | 

w
w

w
.s

ny
de

r-a
ss

oc
ia

te
s.

co
m

JA
L

R
M

M

LM
W

3-
27

-2
02

0

SC
AL

E

11
9.

10
37

C
80

0

119.1037

C800

VI
N

TA
G

E 
ES

TA
TE

S
IN

TE
R

SE
C

TI
O

N
 D

ET
A

IL
S

N
O

R
TH

 L
IB

ER
TY

, I
O

W
A

AS
 P

ER
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

AS
 P

ER
 C

IT
Y 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
EV

IS
ED

 T
O

 M
AT

C
H

 T
IL

E 
EX

H
IB

IT
AS

 P
ER

 D
N

R
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS

08
/0

3/
20

09
/1

7/
20

10
/1

3/
20

12
/2

8/
21

R
M

M
R

M
M

LM
W

LM
W

6789

TT
N

-R
R

W
-S

S

DETAIL B
1" = 10'

DETAIL C
1" = 10'



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-05 
Page 1 

 

Ordinance No. 2022-05 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING VINTAGE ESTATES RS-4 PAD 
SINGLE-UNIT RESIDENCE PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT 
BY REDUCING THE REAR YARD SETBACK FROM 30 FEET TO 
25 FEET ALONG THE NORTH AND WEST PROPERTY LINE ON 
PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF SOUTH JONES 
BOULEVARD WEST OF THE WESTERN TERMINUS OF CORTY 
COURT LOCATED IN NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 
 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  The Vintage Estates RS-4 PAD Single-Unit Residence Planned Area 
Development amendment, reducing building setbacks from 30 feet to 25 feet for those buildings 
along the northern and western property lines, is hereby approved for the following property: 
 

 Lot 6 Country Pines Subdivision North Liberty, Iowa according to the plat recorded 
in Plat Book 30 Page 228 in the Office of the Johnson County Recorder. 

  
SECTION 2.  CONDITIONS IMPOSED.  The following conditions are hereby imposed on said 
PAD amendment as listed in the February 1, 2022 North Liberty Planning Commission report:  

1. That the development be subject to the design standards and maximum height limitations 
for buildings in the single-unit residence district; 

2. That no buildings in the proposed development have basements; and 
3. That the setback reduction not affect the design of the stormwater management system. 

 
SECTION 3.  RECORDATION.  The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to record this 
ordinance at the Johnson County Recorder’s office upon final passage and approval. 
 
SECTION 4.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 5.  SCRIVENER’S ERROR.  The correction of typographical errors which do not affect 
the intent of the ordinance may be authorized by the City Clerk or the Clerk’s designee without 
further public hearing. 
 
SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be adjudged 
invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the Ordinance as a 
whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 7. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final passage, 
approval and publication as provided by law.  
 



North Liberty – 2022  Ordinance Number 2022-05 
Page 2 

 

 
 
 
First reading on February 22, 2022. 
Second reading on ___________. 
Third and final reading on ___________. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No. 2022-05 in The Gazette on the ____ of 
_____, 2022.   
 
 
_______________________________________       
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

Additional Information 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

To  Mayor and City Council 
CC  City Administrator 
From  Tom Palmer, Building Official 
Date  #/3/2022 
Re  Monthly Report 

 

 

 

February Permits: 
 

35 permits were issued in February with estimated construction value of 2.6 
million dollars. Seven new housing permits were issued with construction 
value of 1.7 million dollars. Staff completed 292 inspections during the month 
of February. 
 
 
Rental/Code Compliance Cases: 
 

Four new rental permit applications received in February. A total of one code 
compliance cases were processed in February. 
 
 
North Liberty Clinic of Chiropractic: 
 

On January 3, 2022, Stebral Construction obtain a permit to renovate unit 6 
located at 580 N. Madison Street for new location for North Liberty Clinic of 
Chiropractic. On February 28th the owner received a certificate of occupancy 
to begin treating patients.       



February Permit Tally Report

Permit Type  Construction Value Total Fees

$1,816.00 $156.00

$5,000.00 $111.25

$0.00 $0.00

$6,000.00 $25.00

$500.00 $23.50

$255,000.00 $1,861.75

$1,715,000.00 $18,075.75

$67,540.00 $300.00

$191,000.00 $400.00

$34,519.95 $570.30

$390,260.00 $3,543.43

$10,000.00 $23.50
Group: Right of Way

Group Total: 1

Group Total: 7

Group: Residential Alteration

Group: Residential Addition 

Group Total: 2

Group Total: 4

Group Total: 6
Group: Rental

Group Total: 7
Group: Permanent Sign

Group: New Commercial 

Group Total: 1
Group: New Single Family Dwelling 

Group Total: 1
Group: Mechanical Electrical Plumbing (MEP) 

Group Total: 1

Group Total: 1
Group: Fence

Group Total: 1
Group: Demolition Structure(s) 

Group Total: 2
Group: Commercial Alteration

 

Group: Automatic Fire Sprinkler System

 



February Permit Tally Report

$0.00 $25.00

$2,676,635.95 $25,115.48
Group Total: 1

Total Records: 35

Group: Zoning Certificate 

 



    Permit Summary Report Inspection Type    
    Inspection Date01/01/2022 TO 02/28/2022    

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Row
Total

Inspection request 4 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11
Re-inspection 37 54 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 91

1st SWPPP 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Above Suspended Ceiling 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Building Sewer 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Commercial Final 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5

Commercial Rough-In 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
Deck, Porch, Sunroom Footings 0 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14

Final 13 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25
Fire - Automatic Sprinkler System 10 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13
Fire - Compressed Gas Detection 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Fire - Fire Alarm Installation 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
Fire - Fire Dept. Acceptance 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5

Fire - Underground Storage Tank for Motor
Vehicle Fuel Dispensing 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Footings/Slabs 7 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20
Foundation Dampproofing 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4

Foundation Wall 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12
Gas service release 6 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25

Grading 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Manufactured Home 5 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8

Notice of Termination CSR 6 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11
Other 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

Permanent Electric Service Release 7 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 26
Plumbing below slab 4 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16

Rental 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Residential final (New Construction) 0 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17

Residential Photovolatic (PV) Solar System 3 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
Residential Rough-in (New Construction) 3 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 20

Rough-in 5 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10
Sewer & Water Service 0 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12



Sidewalk Release 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Sump Pump Discharge Line 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5

Temporary Electric Service 0 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11
Water Heater 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4

Water Service 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Witness air pressure test and piping inspection 7 18 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25

Totals: 134 292 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 426



Certificate of Occupancy Monthly Report

Applicant Parcel Address Permit Type Date C.O. 
Issued

Kyle Sherman 2901 Stoner Ct Unit B-8 Zoning 2/17/2022

Benjamin Frazier 25 Alydar Dr Residential 
Rental

2/15/2022

Tito Francisco 760 Nathan Ave Unit 3 Building  2/9/2022

Grand Rail 
Development

2901 Stoner Ct Unit B-8 Building  2/18/2022

Wade Chapman 1028 Cory Ct Building  2/28/2022

Grand Rail 
Development

2901 Stoner Ct Unit B-5 & 
6

Building  2/11/2022

Grand Rail 
Development

2901 Stoner Ct Unit B-13 Building  2/4/2022

Tyler Hogue 1423 Marilyn Dr Residential 
Rental

2/16/2022

Ryan Lebeda 5 E Cherry St Building  2/7/2022
Golfview MHC 108 Golfview Ct Building  2/8/2022

Golfview MHC 211 Golfview Ct Building  2/8/2022

Miranda Wilde 540 Augusta Cir Unit 1 Residential 
Rental

2/10/2022

Bi-State Contracting 1242 Vintage Lane Building  2/14/2022

Caleb Shield 2239 St. Andrews Drive Building  2/25/2022

Caleb Shield 2237 St. Andrews Drive Building  2/4/2022

Caleb Shield 2233 St. Andrews Drive Building  2/4/2022

Caleb Shield 2236 Denison Avenue  Building  2/18/2022

Caleb Shield 2234 Denison Avenue  Building  2/25/2022

Caleb Shield 2230 Denison Avenue  Building  2/18/2022

Caleb Shield 2228 Denison Avenue  Building  2/18/2022

Caleb Shield 765 River Bend Lane Building  2/24/2022

2 Story 5 Plex Condos

2 Story 5 Plex Condos

2 Story 5 Plex Condos

2 Story 5 Plex Condos

New Zero Lot Line

2022 Rental Permit

Single Family Home

New 2 story, 4 plex 
townhome

New 2 story, 4 plex 
townhome

New 2 story, 4 plex 
townhome

owner Improvment

2022 Rental Permit

Renovation of existing 
108 Golfview Ct. North 
Liberty, IA 52317
211 Golfview Ct. North 
Liberty, IA 52317

2022 Rental Permit

Install temporary three 
compartment sink and 
Owner Improvement

Basement bedroom and 
3/4 bath finish
Owner Improvement

 
Project Description

Storage space for 
diamond dreams 

 



Certificate of Occupancy Monthly ReportRobson Homes Inc. 1110 Harrison Street Building  2/22/2022

Dustin Lee 1480 Franklin Street Building  2/15/2022

Barry Frantz 
Construction, Inc.

1182 Leann Cir Building  2/8/2022

Barry Frantz 1180 Leann Cir Building  2/8/2022

Paul Scallon 1180 Salm Drive Building  2/24/2022

Total Records: 26

New single family 
dwelling

Basement Finish

SFC. Zero Lot . 
MADISON plan

SFC. Zero Lot . 
MADISON plan
New Construction

 



Case Date Case # Status Complaint Reporting 
Code 

2/16/2022 20220092 Open Storage of Junk Zoning Code

Code Compliance Report

02/01/2022 - 02/28/2022

Page: 1 of 1



Breakdown of Backflow Preventer Compliance

141

3

196

1

99

6

102

1

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Domestic- (144) Fire- (197) Irrigation- (105) Isolation- (103)

Non Compliant Compliant
Fire Protection / Fire Detector Bypass=Fire

Domestic / Domestic Bypass=Domestic

Lawn Irrigation=Irrigation

All Others=Isolation



 

 

To Mayor, City Council, Communications Advisory Commission 
CC City Administrator Ryan Heiar 
From Communications Director Nick Bergus 
Date March 2, 2022 
Re Communications Staff Report 

COVID-19 
February saw the end of the state’ Public Health Emergency Proclamation and, with the 
decommissioning of the state’s dedicated websites, we audited and decommissioned the 
city’s resource page. At the end of the month, we issued an update on our masking policy 
based on the CDC’s updated guidance. 

Library Partnerships 
Micah has been working with library on several projects in recent weeks.  

She is on the planning committee for the library- and administration-led annual Embody 
Embrace event, one of the city’s emerging signature DEI events, which is slated to return 
in-person in fall 2022. Micah has been helping the committee evaluate whether 
previously articulated goals were met in the first two years of the program and whether 
new values/priorities have emerged since then, and to set new goals for 2022 to ensure 
the committee can effectively serve the community with this program in 2022 and 
beyond. 

Micah is also collaborating with library staff to develop the department’s IDEA team, a 
staff committee that will work to identify and address the needs of Library patrons as 
they relate to topics of inclusion, diversity, equity and accessibility. 

Micah also appeared on last month’s episode of the library’s podcast, Love, Light, & Lit, to 
share ideas for practicing inclusion year-round. 

Ranshaw House 
Micah and Nick have begun working on bringing programming and social services to the 
Ranshaw House, starting with youth programming in partnership with United Action for 
Youth this spring. South Slope will graciously provide high-speed internet, and we’re 
assess what additional furniture and equipment we’ll need for the space. 

Beat the Bitter 
North Liberty Lights – the illuminated display around Liberty Centre Pond – concluded 
Feb. 28 and will removed in early March. Jillian began plans for the display in May 2021 



and secured GEICO Career’s support to cover half of the $25,000 price tag, while Beat 
the Bitter’s operating budget covered the rest. North Liberty Lights was lit every night at 
sundown in the month of February for residents and visitors to enjoy at their leisure. It 
was also the venue for Beat the Bitter’s inaugural 5K-ish Glow Run with 250 participants. 
Additionally, we partnered with Pedal Power to provide free bike carriage rides to over 
100 households around the pond three Sunday evenings in February. The city has 
received social media and email praise from residents for the unique display and we plan 
to make it a winter staple.  

City Slate 
North Liberty’s City Slate is a collection our largest special events planned by city staff. 
Every event on the slate is free to attend, and our team has over 40 events in store in 
2022. Folks can see what’s in store and save the dates for our events through August at 
northlibertyiowa.org/cityslate. The City Slate was created from the success of the 2021’s 
Summer Slate and is a collaborative effort from programmers across city departments. 
Events are free for attendees thanks to $48,000 raised from local businesses and 
existing city programming dollars.  

Blues & BBQ 
We’re just four months away from the return of North Liberty Blues & BBQ. Jillian and 
Nick have been finalizing our sponsorship drive – of which we’ve secured $67,000 out of 
a goal of at least $70,000 in local business support in addition to $15,000 from the City 
of North Liberty, collaborating with The Englert to book our stage lineup and headliner, 
contracting with vendors for kids’ fun, drafting up a new layout for the event, outlining a 
marketing plan, preparing to accept food vendor applications and reengaging committee 
members after the event’s two-year hiatus. We’re excited to bring this summer tradition 
back to North Liberty. 

Great Neighborhoods 
We held our first quarterly meeting of 2022 with Neighborhood Ambassadors in 
February. We focused on the theme of Welcoming Neighbors at this meeting and plan to 
cover How Local Government Works, Social Services Neighbors Can Lean On, and a 
Review of the Comprehensive Plan at our Q2, Q3 and Q4 meetings this year. We 
continue to partner with our 40 ambassadors to coordinate citywide neighborhood 
events and initiatives, identify and create communication tools ambassadors can use to 
share city and neighborhood news, and promote and recruit for the program.  



Our Neighborhood Ambassador program is still very new but has already caught some 
domestic and international attention. Jillian has been approached by Rockville, Md., 
Gunnison, Colo., and a German consulting company hired by the Government of Dubai to 
advise on community engagement efforts to share details about how we’ve set up our 
program. 

Projects 
Nick began preparing for construction seasons with updates to the projects webpage 
and organization for the the annual project open house to help folks learn about coming 
construction projects. In 2021, we held the open house’s online and so liked the format, 
including being able to record the information to provide to folks later, that we’re 
planning to hold online event again on March 17 (Dubuque Street), 24 (City Hall) and 31 
(Jones Boulevard and Comp Plan). A registration link is available at 
northlibertyiowa.org/projects. 

Welcoming America: Rural Welcoming Initiative 
Our Rural Welcoming Initiatives committee has landed on two areas of focus for this 
year’s efforts to better support immigrants and refugees in our city. Work will align with 
Welcoming America’s standards regarding Equitable Access and Connected 
Communities. Projects will include creating a plan to increase language access in city 
communications and programs and hosting at least one Welcoming Week event that 
focuses on bringing together immigrant and non-immigrant community members for 
fellowship and exchange.  

Other Items 
Staff represented the city at the Building Better Bridges conference, Learning Exchange, 
attending Business Partnership’s Community Leadership Program and in the United 
Way’s Community Impact Council site visits and the monthly Whip Poor Wills club 
meeting. 

We produced City Council meetings and submitted them to the Iowa City government 
channel. 

Staff gave interviews with local news outlets about snow clearing, city hall costs and the 
developments around medical facilities. We posted news releases about tax assistance, 
good neighbor meetings, PulsePoint, updated zoning code, the March 15 special election 
and more.  

  



Completed Videos 
Title Requested By Completed Duration 
Eye on: North Liberty Lights Communications Feb. 1 0:03 
Planning and Zoning Commission Administration Feb. 1 0:35 
Beat the Bitter: 5K-ish Glow Run Communications Feb. 2 0:01 
Beat the Bitter: Fire & Ice Communications Feb. 2 0:02 
Board of Adjustment Administration Feb. 2 0:31 
Connected to Tomorrow Planning Feb. 8 0:02 
Hype Video Fire Feb. 8 0:01 
City Council Administration Feb. 8 1:30 
Bomb Squad Robot Communications Feb. 9 0:01 
Training Fire Feb. 9 0:10 
GNM: Liberty Villas Planning Feb. 14 1:00 
GNM: Jaro Way Planning Feb. 15 0:13 
Eye on: Book Challenges Communications Feb. 22 0:26 
City Council Administration Feb. 22 1:50 
Candidate: Gulick Communications Feb. 23 0:04 
Candidate: Strickland Communications Feb. 23 0:04 
Candidate: Bermel Communications Feb. 23 0:03 
Total completed productions: 17 Duration of new video: 6.6 hours 

52317 Podcast  
Episodes release every three weeks and can be found at northlibertyiowa.org/52317.  

 
 
Downloads is the number times the podcast file was downloaded to a player, including a podcast client, webpage-
embedded player or other device since its publication. Numbers are as reported by service provider LibSyn as of the date 
of this report. Episodes 21: Heyn’s; 65: LaLa Boutique; 64: Kirkwood Workplace Learning Connection; 63: Leash on Life; 62: 
Chomp Delivery; 61: Speedy Mike’s Carwash; 60: Flip Salon & Spa; 59: Rock Valley Physical Therapy; 58: NASA; 57: Animal 
Kingdom; 56: Concha Audiology; 55: Silver Rooster Tattoo; 54: Aero Performance and Physical Therapy; 53: Beathe; 52: 

190 181 177 158
132

169 149 129

190

116 127 140
106

176
151

123 120 112
163

459

0
50

100
150

200
250
300
350
400
450
500

47 48 49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 21



Meadowlark Psychiatric Services; 51: Psychiatric Associates; 50: Letter B; 49: Fryvecind Voice Studio; 48: A Chocolate 
Studio; 47: Corridor Rentals 

North Liberty Bulletin Email Newsletters 

 
Recipients is the number of email addresses to which an issue of the Bulletin was sent and is represented by the top line. 
Opens is the number of unique recipients who opened the Bulletin and is represented by the bottom line; the standard 
open rate for government is 25.4%. Numbers are as reported by service provider Mailchimp. Subject lines Feb: Save the 
dates; Jan: Tomorrowland; Dec: Conspiring, to eat cookies, by the fire; Nov: Not sure you know how psychologically healthy 
that actually is; Oct: Pumpkin spice spooky decorative gourd season; Sept: My fall plans vs; Aug: Summer send-off ����� July: 
My dog hates fireworks; June: Magical world of normal-ism; May: It’s no walk in the park; April: Anything dirty or dingy or 
dusty; March: A really weird lion; Feb: Hi, neighbor ���� 

Know Before You Go Emails 
These emails focus on free, large-scale community and leverage the city’s email list. It is a 
key marketing channel for City Slate events. 

 
Recipients is the number of email addresses to which an issue of the Bulletin was sent and is represented by the top line. 
Opens is the number of unique recipients who opened the Bulletin and is represented by the bottom line; the standard 
open rate for government is 25.4%. Numbers are as reported by service provider Mailchimp. Events: Drive-in Movies 
(July); Inflatables Day; Eastern Iowa Circus; Concert in the Park and fireworks; Playground Crawl; Moonlight Walk; Haunted 
Happenings; Lighthouse in the Library (Jan.), Fire & Ice; Ice Fishing with TAKO 

7,880 7,868 7,862 7,861 7,855 7,855 7,784 7,784 7,783 7,762 7,732 7,720 7,682

2,330 2,494 2,259 2,187

3,404

2,181 2,166 2,211 1,927
2,591 2,463

3,354 3,160

0
1,000

2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000
8,000
9,000

Feb. March April May June July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan.
2022

Feb.

7,8907,873 7,8597,8548,005 7,978 7,968 7,944 7,9197,921

2,1672,145 2,2971,9651,920 2,165 2,181

3,226 2,9843,029

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

7/14/21 8/14/21 9/14/21 10/14/21 11/14/21 12/14/21 1/14/22



Social Media  
Month Facebook  Twitter  Instagram  Nextdoor 
 New 

likes 
Reach New 

follows 
Impressions Followers Members 

Feb 2022 47 47,939 17 18,100 2,620 5,448 
Jan 2022 139 209,293 7 40,500 2,600 5,411 
Dec 2021 32 19,971 11 23,500 2,575 5,383 
Nov 2021 14 20,182 9 30,400 2,570 5,361 
Oct 2021 50 35,617 2 20,600 2,537 5,279 
Sept 2021 60 26,516 11 21,900 2,521 5,237 
Aug 2021 59 26,710 15 40,100 2,497 5,178 
July 2021 80 21,523 3 34,600 2,471 5,114 
June 2021 72 25,066 -4 45,400 2,456 5,076 
May 2021 73 23,940 -19 42,200 2,418 5,018 
April 2021 33 24,980 19 49,800 2,381 4,959 
March 2021 72 100,455 18 61,600 2,342 4,900 
Feb 2021 96 24,756 22 48,700 2,305 4,818 

Facebook new likes is the net number of new users following the city’s Facebook page; it does not include new followers. 
Facebook reach is the number of unique users who saw any of the city’s Facebook content, reported on a 28-day period. 
Twitter new follows is the net number of new users following the city on Twitter. Twitter impressions is the total number 
of times a tweet from the city was shown to a user. Instagram new follows is the net number of new users liking the city’s 
Instagram account. Nextdoor members is the number of verified North Liberty residents who are users and able to 
receive our agency messages. 

Website Statistics  
Month Sessions Users Pageviews 
Feb 2022 22,876 16,286 41,437 
Jan 2022 26,218 20,351 47,444 
Dec 2021 17,011 13,056 33,502 
Nov 2021 20,196 15,122 39,415 
Oct 2021 17,041 13,190 32,858 
Sept 2021 22,849 14,800 44,285 
Aug 2021 29,557 21,990 54,762 
July 2021 32,559 24,967 63,686 
June 2021 22,840 19,955 64,284 
May 2021 24,221 17,537 49,636 
April 2021 22,452 13,855 44,847 
March 2021 23,993 14,861 46,159 
Feb 2021 27,228 20,540 47,047 

Sessions is the number of time-bound user interactions with the website. Users is the number of unique devices loading 
the site in that month. Pageviews is the total number of pages loaded or reloaded. All stats are monthly. 



TO: Johnson County Board of Supervisors
 FROM: Jennie Garner, Library Director  
DATE: March 4, 2022 
SUBJECT: Monthly Library Report 

Library News 
As mentioned, March 1-2, I had the opportunity to travel to Washington DC to take part in a 
two-day convening to discuss the impact of literacy and reading on social well-being and civic 
engagement, hosted by the Institute of Museum and Library Services (IMLS). It was an 
extraordinary experience with presenters including Robert Putnam (author of Bowling Alone 
and Upswing: How America Came Together a Century Ago and How We Can Do It Again) with 
his co-author of Upswing, Shaylyn Romney-Garrett; author Maryanne Wolf who wrote Reader, 
Come Home: The Reading Brain in a Digital World; Tony Ageh, Chief Digital Officer of the New 
York Public Library; British Roberts, Executive Director, Barbara Bush Foundation for Family 
Literacy; and others. It was an extremely rewarding experience to exchange ideas and be at 
the table to discuss how libraries operate today and our future. I’ll keep you all up-to-date as 
this work progresses. 

The library will soon be circulating five hot spots to the public and we are working to add to that 
number soon. Hot spots are much needed to bridge the digital divide in our community and 
allow folks to have Internet access from home. This is crucial as we try to make up for learning 
loss created by the pandemic and online school the last couple of years. Many children, 
particularly our youngest kiddos, are far behind in their learning. We’re hoping the library can 
help bridge these gaps in some part.  

Our Public Services Librarian, Kellee, has collaborated with local women artists and the 
African American Museum to create a display for Women’s History Month. Information on the 
artists can be found here. We will also host our fourth community engagement event for 
Lighthouse in the Library, on May 14, in partnership with the University of Iowa office of 
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion, on cultural competency. This event will be slightly different 
from our previous event as it will be limited to 30 attendees and won’t be recorded due to the 
instructional nature. 

We also recently released produced our latest Love, Light and Lit Podcast featuring an 
important conversation with Kellee and the City’s Program and Equity Coordinator, Micah. 
Listen to this episode on how we can practice inclusion everyday: latest episode.  

Our Collection Development Librarian, Andrew, shared the following statistics regarding library 
materials circulation beginning to increase (recover) after the pandemic. Chart below shows 
circulation totals for this fiscal year through February. At 66% of the way through the year, we 
hope to be at about 66 percent of our circulation compared to last year and we are doing very 
well. Since last year was not the best year to compare, Andrew also compiled the previous 
year’s totals. When we compare to that year prior to the pandemic, we’re on target with adult 
checkouts, increased in youth and picture books, and are slightly under with teen collection.  
Audiobooks and DVDs are decreased compared to two years ago, but way up from last 

https://www.amazon.com/Upswing-America-Together-Century-Again/dp/1982129158/ref=sr_1_1?gclid=CjwKCAiAjoeRBhAJEiwAYY3nDKk6vs7ETMWZwkkqNNX95Yu-PZ2J_dhuEO-OII0mhPagBglKP8VovBoCHP8QAvD_BwE&hvadid=568646054522&hvdev=c&hvlocphy=9018530&hvnetw=g&hvqmt=e&hvrand=2176914718872824538&hvtargid=kwd-1032187096767&hydadcr=22533_10353822&keywords=upswing+putnam&qid=1646413165&s=books&sr=1-1
https://northlibertylibrary.org/artist-showcase-womens-history-month-exhibition/
https://soundcloud.com/nlibertylibrary/love-light-lit-not-just-february-practicing-inclusion-everyday?in=nlibertylibrary/sets/love-light-lit&utm_source=clipboard&utm_medium=text&utm_campaign=social_sharing


Scroll for more Program Highlights 

year.  Part of that may be that new releases for DVDs slowed down as not a lot was being 
released, but things have picked up and Andrew recently several missing or well-worn DVDs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Totals as of Feb 
2022(66 percent 
through year 

FY21 Totals % difference Totals from 
FY20 

% comparison 
of use to date 
FY22 to FY20 

Audio Total 544 481 113 1366 39.82 
      
DVD Total 5516 4071 135 17103 32.25 
Total Adult Books 12926 10992 118 20241 63.86 
Total Primary Books 19011 16850 113 26443 71.89 
Total Juvenile, Plus 
Early Readers 

14763 12116 122 18123 81.46 

Total Teen Fiction 2042 2009 102 3432 59.50 

Monday Morning Social Sour is back in full-swing. 
The library provides coffee every Monday for 
attendees. This group has grown over the years. 
They have not only become fast friends but have 
even created their own armchair travel programs—
sharing travel slides and experiences.  
  

An ARPA grant we were awarded from the 
State Library of Iowa enabled the library to 
purchase two brightly colored solar charging 
benches to be located by the Community 
Center playground. 

Library Night at the Heartlanders: North Liberty Library 
hosted a table at the Feb 26 Heartlanders game as part of 
One Book Two Book festival (and will go again on March 
12th). This event kicked off a book drive in conjunction with 
Miss Iowa whose Social Impact Initiative is Read to Succeed: 
Promoting Literacy in Grades K-3. The book drive will end on 
the 12th of March – Books, which will be donated to Houses 
into Homes and DVIP, can be dropped off at the Heartlanders 
team store, as well as North Liberty Library. 
The writing samples from the kid writer winners from One 
Book Two Book were displayed, as well as information about 
our library. And Erin was asked if she’d like to ride the 
Zamboni.  
 



Erin and Kayla, our Youth Services team (both certified in youth yoga) lead a Dragons 

Love Tacos Yoga for 46 attendees during the One Book, Two Book City of Literature 

Book Festival in February, with special guest, the Taco Dragon! 

More than 100 attended the library’s Snow 

Ball as part of the 2022 City Slate events.  

Storytime, snacks, and an indoor snowball 

fight were enjoyed by all. 



 

 

To Mayor and City Council  
Parks and Recreation Commission  
City Administrator 

From Guy Goldsmith, Director of Parks, Building and Grounds 
Date March 1, 2022 
Re Monthly Report 

We performed various building maintenance tasks as needed this month. We continue to 
work with Shive Hattery and Contractors regarding the Pool Heater Project and the 
Community Center future Roof Replacement Project.  

We maintained equipment as needed this month. We performed preventative 
maintenance and repaired winter equipment as time permitted. We continue to prepare 
for the upcoming growing season by performing preventative maintenance and repairing 
of ball field maintenance, mowing, trimming, landscaping and forestry equipment.  

We removed snow and ice from city parking lots, sidewalks and trails this past month.  

Park staff resurfaced the ice rink at the tennis courts on a weekly basis. However, the rink 
is currently closed due to warmer weather. More than likely we will be disassembling the 
rink for the season and preparing the tennis court for tennis and pickleball users. 

We continue to organize and clean-up our shop as time allows. 

Parks staff continue to prepare for the upcoming season by determining what supplies 
are needed and placing orders. Trees have been ordered in preparation of an early spring 
tree planting day. 

Park staff completed more annual training requirements through Target Solutions. 

Parks staff performed playground safety inspections of all play equipment in preparation 
of the upcoming season. Needed replacement parts have been ordered.   

We continue to review plans for the upcoming Dubuque Street Phase 1 Improvements 
Project. Parks staff removed the AC units and furnace from 405 & 407 North Front 
Street and 430 North Dubuque Street property. The demolition of the property was 
completed on February 18th in preparation of the upcoming Dubuque Street Phase 1 
project.  

Park Staff fabricated two Information Center signs that will be installed at Red Fern Dog 
Park.  This saved the city $5,500. 



On March 1st City staff attended a preconstruction meeting for the Dubuque Street 
Phase 1 Improvements Project. We met with Shive Hattery and project Contractors. 

We continue to meet with NLCBS ball club regarding field usage and future 
improvements at the Babe Ruth field for this upcoming season. 

Department heads participated in a goal setting session on February 23rd for future City 
planning and growth. 

 

 

   

Park Staff fabricated two Information Center signs that will be installed at Red Fern Dog 
Park.   

   
Parks Department performing playground safety inspections to prepare for the season. 

  
Demolition of 405 & 407 North Front Street and 430 North Dubuque Street property in 
preparation of the upcoming Dubuque Street Phase 1 project that will begin very soon.  



North Liberty Police 
Monthly Report 
February 2022 

 
 
 
 
 

Training: 
 
• Members attended monthly Canine, Bomb Squad, 

Tactical Team, and Dive team (64 hours) 
• Officer Jacobi is continuing his Field Officer 

Training and is parternered with an FTO for each 
shift. 

• All staff members attended a 30 minute online 
Zoom meeting with the Guidelink center covering 
the services they provide for all law enforcement.  
(12 hours)  

• All officers attended an online couse on mental 
health called the Shield of Resistance (10 hours) 
 

Public Relations: 
  
• Continue to work the Liberty High School events at 

their request.This overtime is paid by the ICCSD. 
• We participated in a KCRG media request to inform 

the public on the Community Police Academy. It is 
being held next month and the theme is Behind the 
Badge. The academy meets for 4 weeks on Wednesdays evenings at the JECC, starting 
March 23rd through April 6th. The applications and more information can be found at  
https://northlibertyiowa.org/2022/01/26/north-liberty-partners-with-local-law-enforcement-
agencies-to-offer-a-look-behind-the-badge/  

• Donated $100 to the Special Olympics Polar Plunge  
• Officers stopped by Liberty Pond during Liberty Lights display.  
• Bomb Team held a demo in North Liberty for NLTV, NL Fire and the City Administrator.  
• Hosted an event and provided PD tours for the Business Partnership Team and Johnson 

County Legislative Forum.  
• Hosted a Lion Cub Scout tour and safety talk at the PD. 
• Conducted 3 child safety seat inspections.  
• Two of our bilingual officers talked to the media about their experiences and interpreting 

needs in law enforcement. 
 

Equipment:                                                                                                       
 
• The internal and external surveillance camera system went out at the PD. Several Staff 

member worked with IT and the vendor to get the system back on line.   
• Received our new body worn cameras. They are Axon 3 and, with the 5 year program we 

purchased, we get new hardware every 2.5 years. 
 
 
 
 

  
Traffic Contacts 326 

Parking Contacts 19 
Vehicle Inspections 21 

Vehicle Unlocks 20 
Crash Investigations 24 

Public Assists 327 
Assist other Agency 117 

    Crimes Against Persons Report 8 
      Crimes Against Property Report 9 
                                   Other Reports 34 
                                              Arrests 30 
                                           Warrants  5 

Alcohol/Narcotics Charges 15 
Crimes Against Persons Charges 8 
Crimes Against Property Charges 1 

Other Charges 18 
Animal Calls 54 

Total Calls for Service 1854 
*Total Calls for Service for the year 3557 



 
 
 
North Liberty Police Monthly Report Continuation ---  February 2022 

 
Enforcement/Crime: 
 
• Had an officer visible out on I380 for the Avenue of the Saints Enforcement Project.  

 
Department Admin:   
   
• Our North Liberty native and DMACC Criminal Justice unpaid college Intern continues to 

observe and assist with tasks. She will be here another two months. 
• Officer Cade Burma submitted his resignation and will be going to ICPD. 
• Conducted interviews with the non-certified candidate from the January application process.    
• The chief attended various meetings over the month. They were the local chief’s meetings 

with the county attorney, the police chief’s weekly legislative committee prioririties, the ILEA 
council meeting and separate special closed session, department head meeting, and 
department head goal setting session.   

• Submitted the information for all current NLPD officers through grantsiowa.gov for the $1000 
retention bonus from the Governor.  

• Worked with Tracey Mulcahey and Alliant Energy to revise our electrical bill contract from a 
GS rate to a LGS rate. Hopefully we will see some cost savings on our enengy bills.  

• 2021 annual evaluations were completed for all staff.   
• Contact card data for our traffic contact data from 2021 was sent off to Dr Barnum for his 

analysis. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted by Chief Diane Venenga and Alisha Ruffcorn 3/3/2022 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 



 

 

To Park & Recreation Commission Board Members 
CC Mayor, City Council, City Administrator 
From Shelly Simpson 
Date March 1, 2022 
Re Monthly Report – February 2022 
 
February is the shortest month in days but seems to be the longest on one’s mind and body. 
Outdoor building maintenance projects were halted due to the weather. We continue with the 
increase in patron usage, cover short-staffed situations & vacations, and the Recreation side 
stayed open for newest city holiday – President’s Day. We tried to offer a second “Snow Much 
Fun” Friday but there was no interest. Weather leading up to the event was warm, with very 
limited snow for the event. The snow we did get the day prior turned out to be too light and 
non-compactable, fun to build snow opportunity. The City halted its mask policy on Feb 25; it 
will be interesting to see if usage continues to rise and we are planning to re-open the Kids 
Campsite Area. 
    
Recdesk Database:  
Reviewing our Recdesk database; we have 10,133 residents (64%) and 5,782 non-residents 
(36%) totaling 15,915 individuals. Increase of 275 from last month. 
 
Aqua Programs: 
With the new year, many Aqua classes returned with good participation. February sessions had 
approximately 67 registered participants, plus daily drop-ins. Arthritis Aqua, Aqua Zumba, Aqua 
Bootcamp and Easy Does It had the most attendance. Aqua Program revenues totaled $1,265. 
 
Swim Lessons: 
Swim lesson Feb session had 87 registered participants. Private lessons continue to be most 
popular. Swim lesson revenues totaled $1,685. 
 
Leagues/Sports: 
Most youth and adult sports continue through the month of February. This includes our largest 
youth basketball program. This is a cooperative league with Coralville and Tiffin and utilizes 
numerous local gymnasiums on Saturdays. Youth Competitive league play continued along with 
Adult Co-ed Volleyball and Men’s Basketball 
 
Pee Wee Sports (Soccer) totaled 40 participants.   
Sport/Leagues revenues were collected in December. 
 
BASP: Before School – 16; After School – 50 participants. This month, BASP revenues totaled 
$14,735. 
 
Rec Programs: 
Some fitness aerobic classes returned with positive participation. We had approximately 25 
registered participants, plus daily drop-ins. Body Blast, Body Sculpt, Bootcamp, Cardio Pump and 
Senior CBS continue to be mainstays and we added a Gentle Yoga class. 



 

 

To Mayor and City Council 
CC City Administrator Ryan Heiar 
From Street Superintendent Michael Pentecost 
Date March 1, 2022 
Re Street Department Staff Monthly Report for February 

The following items took place in the month of February that involved the Streets Department. 

• Locating of City Utilities (110 job tickets) ongoing  

a. This is an increase of 15% from February 2021 

• Continued animal control services (4 responses to animal issues) 

• Cemetery plot locates (2 in total) 

• Projects/Meetings 

a. Ranshaw Way Phase 5  

i. No work this month  

b. Southwest Growth Project 

i. Met with contractor to make terms for closing out project 

c. Dubuque St Phase 1  

i. MidAmerican gas is currently working on utility relocates 

ii. Mediacom still needing to relocate utility 

d. North Jones Blvd extension 

i. Continued work on design 

• Planning Commissions Meeting 

• Traffic Incident Management (TIM) meeting with IDOT and local agencies covering 

expected road construction locations for Johnson County area this year 

• Traffic signals 

a. Repairs at Ranshaw Way and Penn St intersection after hours for burned out 

light 

b. Replacement of detection pucks in various locations 

• Installation and repair of various street signs 

• Cleaned, organized, and prepared location in shop for new sign production machine 

when purchased 

• Staff conducted monthly safety inspections for all street equipment and buildings 

• Staff conducted monthly warning siren testing in all 8 locations 

• Service and maintenance of various equipment 

• Cold patch potholes in various locations 

• Clearing of vegetation, brush, and trees from Muddy Creek surrounding the Public 

Works Shop 

• Working with CIPCO electric contractor for infrastructure install on west side of town 

• Conducted annual employee evaluations 



• Training 

a. All staff completed Bloodborne Pathogens (BBP) training on Target Solutions 

b. All staff completed Work Zone Safety Training by LTAP (Local Technical 

Assistance Program) 

c. Supervisor completed Water Treatment/Distribution training for CEU on-line by 

ISG 

d. Supervisor training on-line Using Liquids and Winter Maintenance by LTAP 

• Sanitary Sewer 

a. One sewer service back up on Stoner Ct 

i. Staff helped customer identify problem 

b. Contractor finished final cleaning and inspection of West Trunk Sewer Project 

c. Staff working on Herky lift station project to help control H2S gases and order 

control 

• Winter Operations 

a. Prep for snow/ice events on 2-3, 2-13, 2-16, 2-18, 2-22, and 2-24 

b. Anti-ice applied 

i. On 2-23 consisting of 6315 gallons on 91 lane miles costing $606 

c. Staff worked a total of 137 overtime hours for winter operations this month 

d. Preparations made for each potential weather event consist of making sure 

staff, equipment, and supplies are ready with monitoring of conditions before, 

during and after events 

e. After each winter event all equipment is cleaned and inspected for needed 

maintenance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

Ranshaw Way Bridge lights RED in February for Heart Month Awareness 



 

 

To City Council, Mayor and City Administrator 
From Drew Lammers 
Date March 1, 2022  
Re          February 2022 Water Pollution Control Plant (WPCP) Report 

1. All scheduled preventative maintenance at the plant and lift stations was completed.  
Staff stayed very busy with numerous operational jobs throughout the month. One 
submersible pump had all seals replaced and was reinstalled into a digester tank.  
 

2. This month’s staff safety meeting was on Blood-borne Pathogens.  Staff completed 
target solutions online training as well as reviewed safety training topics as a group.   
 

3. EMC insurance visited the treatment plant facility to perform a preventative loss 
inspection.  No major concerns were found during the walkthrough.  A few safety 
recommendations were given and the items have been addressed.  This is a free service 
from the City’s insurance provider.  WPCP has an annual inspection in order to improve 
on safety items that can otherwise be overlooked. 
 

4. Maintenance staff tested all spare submersible pumps for the lift stations and treatment 
plant.  Each pump is lowered into a test pit filled with water and wired to a control box.  
Pumps are ran for several minutes while staff also verifies amperage readings, seal fail, 
and over-temp alarms.  One spare pump had a seal fail so it was sent in for repair. 
  

5. Operations staff used several SCADA trending parameters to help troubleshoot an 
intermittent pressure alarm issue with one of our membrane trains.  Staff diagnosed the 
equipment and was able to disassemble and recalibrate to resolve all issues. 
 

6. City staff and engineers had one final meeting with Jasper Ave. Lift Station contractors 
to close-out the project.  All final documentation is being prepared for approvals. 
 

7. WPCP management completed and submitted 2021 Annual Bio-solids state and federal 
reports.  The state Tier 2 Chemical Inventory report was also completed and submitted 
for 2021 chemicals stored at the treatment facility.  All staff 2021 evaluations were also 
completed. 
 

Drew Lammers - WPCP Superintendent 



 

 

To North Liberty Mayor and City Council Members 
CC City Administrator Ryan Heiar 
From Water Superintendent Greg Metternich 
Date February 28, 2022 
Re Monthly Report – February 2022 

 
 
 
In the month of February, we treated a total of 30,921,000 gallons of water, our average daily 
flow was 1,104,000 gallons, and our maximum daily flow was 1,393,000 gallons. The total 
amount of water used in the distribution system was 4.34% lower than February 2021.  
 
We have had a busy month with 8,907 accounts read, 46 re-reads, 90 service orders, 83 shut-
offs, 72 re-connects for water service, 155 shut-off notices delivered, 6 new meter set 
inspections, 5-meter change outs, 9 MIU change outs, assisted 14 customers with data logging 
information, 55 calls for service, and 12 after hour or emergency calls. Our monthly total service 
work averaged 26 calls per day.  
 
Earlier this month our maintenance staff finished all of our quarterly and yearly required 
maintenance at the treatment plant and the booster station, they changed oil and greased all of 
the pumping equipment, replaced cartridge filters, changed chemical feed tubing on all 11 of 
our peristaltic chemical feed pumps, re-calibrated pressure switches, chemical feed pressure 
valves, and online electronic instrumentation equipment. They finished out the month working 
on our annual maintenance of our excavation equipment including the vac-trailer, dump trucks, 
tractors, and all of our smaller equipment. 
 
Staff spent several days installing about 60 feet of 1” pipe to relocate one of our sample 
collection points at the treatment plant. With the original setup there wasn’t a drain near the 
collection point and in order to collect a representable sample the water needs to run for 
several minutes; this required the person collecting the sample to carry several 5-gallon buckets 
to a nearby drain.  
 
Summit Fire Protection finished the 5-year inspection on the ASR Well sprinkler system, and 
replaced a 5-foot section of black pipe at the treatment plant that had started leaking at a 
fitting.  
 
  
Water Superintendent 
Greg Metternich 



 

Updated March 1, 2022, 9:27 AM 

Parks & Recreation Commission 
March 3, 2022, 7:00pm 

City Council Chambers, 1 Quail Creek Circle, North Liberty, Iowa 
 

This meeting may be accessed live by the public in person or on the internet at 
northlibertyiowa.org/live, on Facebook at facebook.com/northliberty or on 
YouTube at youtube.com/c/northliberty. Meetings are rebroadcast on cable and 
available on-demand on northlibertyiowa.org. 
 

 
1. Call to Order   
 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 a. January 6, 2022 
 b. No February meeting 
  
3. Welcome New Board Member 
 a. Laura Olds 
 
4. Reports 
 a. Parks Report 
 b. Recreation/Pool Report 
 c. Questions, Concerns, Updates 
 
5. New Business 
  
6. Old Business 

a. Community Vision 
Keep up to date on community ideas and concerns with City Comprehensive 
Plan. Visit website at northlibertyiowa.org/connectedtotomorrow. 

  
7. Next Meeting 
 a. Thursday, April 7, 2022 at 7:00pm. 
   
8. Adjourn 

https://northlibertyiowa.org/live
https://facebook.com/northliberty
https://www/youtube.com/c/northliberty
https://northlibertyiowa.org/
https://northlibertyiowa.org/connectedtotomorrow


 
Board Meeting Minutes 

Present: Richard Grugin, Shannon Greene, Kevin Stibal, Gwen Johnson 
Absent: Jeremy Parrish, Amy Chen 
Others Present: Guy Goldsmith, Tim Hamer, Shelly Simpson, Brian Motley 
 
Board Meeting Date: January 6, 2022 
 

1. Call to Order  
a. Call to Order: Chair Grugin called meeting to order.  

2. Approval of Minutes 
a. December 2, 2021 Minutes 

i. Kevin stated that his name was miss spelled.  
ii. Motion and second to approve minutes with correction noted.  

3. Tobacco/nicotine free Presentation 
a. Susan Vileta, JCPH Health Educator and members of Troop 270 gave a presentation to board on benefits 

to eliminating tobacco in parks.  
b. Motion and second to recommend adoption of a resolution/ordinance for tobacco/nicotine free parks 

to City Council. Simpson to provide recommendation to city administration. 
4. Reports 

a. Parks Report provided by Guy Goldsmith 
• Guy mentioned they repurposed doors from old pet clinic building for Ranshaw House. 
• Maintaining equipment this time of year; both snow/winter equipment repairs as well as tuning 

up seasonal equipment. 
• Rebuilt dump truck box for longer use. 
• Snow/ice removal tasks when needed and some time for cleaning and organizing. 
• Clean out fence line on park shop property and conducted annual training. 
• Tree City USA certification submitted; this will be 27th year when accepted. 
• Mid American’s Trees Please grant for $1,000 goes to second tree plantings at West Lakes. 
• Ice Skating Rink was installed, filled ready for use. Some vandalism occurred again but no lining 

damage to report at this time. 
• Forevergreen Trail project walk thru completed. Dubuque Street project reviews began, 

property abatement and clean up. Project will begin this spring and will impact use of south side 
of Penn Meadows Park. Board members not aware that Parks Department did such work on city 
owned property.  

• Budget & Capital Projects proposals submitted and meetings held. Once finalized will provide 
more details to board. 

• Ice Skating information discussed such as skate rental and status of ice conditions; open/closed. 
     

b. Rec & Pool Report provided by Shelly Simpson & Brian Motley 
• December is busy month of registration for programs beginning in January. Continue to roll with 

waves & changes of pandemic. 
• Indoor Pool opened Dec 13, though the pool heater project is not complete. Change orders 

possible. 
• Mask policy continues to be challenging for staff. Public asked to be respectful of policy, others 

and staff. 



• Matt Meseck spearheaded and did a great job with various holiday events and lighting displays 
at Gazebo and Ranshaw House. 

• Shelly provided summary of programs/operations. 
• Brian provided summary of upcoming youth and adult leagues. 
• Board member asked about staffing issues. Shelly reported holding steady, but changes could 

occur at any time and need to evaluate minimum wage increases locally to remain competitive 
for quality applicants. 

• Rec Center has been busy on no school days. 
5. New Business 

a. Chair Grugin thanked Marcia Zeimer for service as she submitted her resignation. Chair Grugin urged 
candidates to apply.  

b. Chair Grugin mentioned he was serving on Community Vision Plan committee. Shelly shared link and 
other ways for everyone to be a part of this visioning plan. 

6. Old Business 
a. Chair Grugin led discussion on mission/purpose of board. Shelly shared document with all on ways for 

members to stay engaged with planning and decision-making ideas. 
7. Next Meeting 

a. February 3, 2022.  
8. Adjourn 

a. Motion and seconded to adjourn meeting. 
 



 
Tippi Toes Dance classes continued with approximately 34 participants. Baby Ballet, Ballet Tap 
Jazz, and Hip Hop Jazz seem to be most popular.   
 
Senior Connections Lunches, continued in February with 70 meals provided.   
Classes/Programs revenue totaled $4,990.75.    
 
Pools:  
We continue to do our best in meeting various needs of lap swimmers, water fitness classes, 
open swim time and swim lessons in the Indoor Pool. This month, Season Pool Pass revenues 
totaled $2,857; Daily Pool Fees totaled $2,483; Pool Rentals totaled $1,080 and Concessions 
revenues totaled - $0.  
 
Weight & Exercise Area / Track: 
This month; Weight fee revenues totaled - $13,037; Split membership revenues totaled $3,859. 
 
Gymnasiums: 
This month; Gymnasium Rental revenues totaled $1,435. 
 
Rentals:  
This month; Community Center Rental revenues totaled $1,648.33; Shelter rental revenues 
totaled $-0- ; Field Rental revenues totaled $0 
 
Revenues: 
Revenues (February) totaled $49,454.08 
 
Additional Reports: Recdesk Monthly Revenue, Dashboard Summary, Membership Summary 
and Organizational Activity.  
 



RefundsCC (Net)CC (Gross)CheckCash**Net**Gross OtherAcct Credit OtherInternal CC

DEBITS CREDITS

ACH (Gross) ACH (Net)

000 - Household Credit Account

0.000.000.000.000.00447.00447.00 0.00 0.00 1,018.75 -571.750.00 0.00

001-0000-4310-01 - Pool Rentals

0.00925.14953.750.0090.001,051.391,080.00 0.00 36.25 0.00 0.000.00 0.00

001-0000-4310-02 - Community Center Rentals (Room Rental) 

-37.501,375.771,418.33175.0092.501,605.771,648.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00

001-0000-4310-03 - Gymnasium Rentals

0.00732.35755.00680.000.001,412.351,435.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00

001-0000-4500-10 - Weight Fees

-299.009,628.929,927.00143.003,205.0012,738.9213,037.00 0.00 61.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00

001-0000-4500-11 - Class/Programs

-353.754,780.954,929.500.00339.004,842.204,990.75 0.00 76.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00

001-0000-4500-13 - Before/After School

0.0014,270.4514,712.500.000.0014,292.9514,735.00 0.00 22.50 0.00 0.000.00 0.00

001-0000-4500-19 - Season Pool Pass

-270.002,095.202,160.00680.000.002,792.202,857.00 0.00 287.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00

001-0000-4500-20 - Daily Pool Fees

-4.001,009.771,041.00260.001,186.002,451.772,483.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00

001-0000-4500-21 - Swim Lessons

-262.501,670.791,722.500.00225.001,633.291,685.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00

Regular Revenue

Revenue By Period - GL Account Summary
2/1/2022 12:00 AMStart Date: End Date: 2/28/2022 11:59 PM

Payment Methods: CA, CK, CC, IC, EC, CR

 - All -User(s)/Cashier(s):



001-0000-4500-22 - Aquatic Program/Classes

-355.001,332.001,374.000.00191.001,223.001,265.00 0.00 55.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00

NONE - Unnassigned

-68.000.000.000.000.00-68.00-68.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00

Split - Membership - Black & Gold

0.003,743.233,859.000.000.003,743.233,859.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00

48,166.0749,454.08 5,328.50 1,938.00 42,852.58 41,564.57 -1,649.75

** Difference between GROSS and NET calculation is that NET uses CC (Net) value instead of CC (Gross) value

$0.00 537.75 1,018.75 -571.750.00 0.00

RefundsCC (Net)CC (Gross)CheckCash**Net**Gross OtherAcct Credit OtherInternal CC

DEBITS CREDITS

ACH (Gross) ACH (Net)

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

** Difference between GROSS and NET calculation is that NET uses CC (Net) value instead of CC (Gross) value

$0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00

Sales Tax

Revenue By Period - GL Account Summary
2/1/2022 12:00 AMStart Date: End Date: 2/28/2022 11:59 PM

Payment Methods: CA, CK, CC, IC, EC, CR

 - All -User(s)/Cashier(s):



Dashboard Summary; February 2022: 

 

 

Membership Counts; February 2022: 

 



Organization Activity; February 2022: 

 

 

 

 

 



 

City of North Liberty – 2022 
Page: 1 

Planning Commission 
March 1, 2022 

 
 
Call to Order 
This meeting is being held online via Zoom due to the Council Chambers being unavailable.  The 
space is being used as a polling place for a special election that does not conclude until 8:00 p.m.  
Other potential city facilities were not available as well. The City has no other facilities that would 
be practical and reasonable to use for a public meeting. Public input was sought through various 
means prior to the meeting.  
 
Planning Commission Chair Becky Keogh called the March 1, 2022 Planning Commission to order 
at 6:30 p.m.  Commission members present:  Barry A’Hearn, Jason Heisler, Becky Keogh, Patrick 
Staber, Brian Vincent, Dave Willer; absent: Barry A’Hearn, Josey Bathke.    
 
Others present: Ryan Rusnak, Tracey Mulcahey, Grant Lientz, Kevin Trom, Brandon Pratt, Jon 
Marner from MMS Consultants, Matt Lepic and other interested parties.    
 
A’Hearn arrived at 6:31 p.m.  
 
Approval of the Agenda  
Staber moved, Willer seconded to approve the agenda. The vote was all ayes. Agenda approved.  
 
Solomon Holdings, LLC Zoning Map Amendment 
Staff Presentation 
Rusnak presented the request of Solomon Holdings, LLC for a zoning map amendment (rezoning) 
on approximately 71.48 acres from ID Interim Development District to RS-9 Single-Unit Residence 
District, RM-21 Multiple-Unit Residence District and C-2-A Highway Commercial District. The 
property is located on the north side of West Penn Street west of North Jones Boulevard as 
extended northerly from West Penn Street to 240th Street.  Staff recommends approval of the 
application with the following two findings:  

1. The proposed zonings would be consistent with the North Liberty Comprehensive Plan 
Land Use Plan; and  

2. The proposed use and density of the development would be compatible with the area;  
and with the following conditions:  

1. That the preliminary plat be approved at the time of the rezoning. 
2. The preliminary site plan for the RM-21 portion of the development be approved at the 

time of the rezoning.  
 
 
 
 



City of North Liberty – 2022 
Page: 2 

Applicant Presentation 
Brandon Pratt, the applicant, was present and provided additional information.   Pratt is looking to 
provide new housing types at an affordable price point.  The proposed RM-21 will have more 
amenities than other complexes in the area.  
 
Public Comments 
Fifteen people attended the Good Neighbor meeting with questions, not concerns. The only 
concern received was protection of the trail for users.  
 
Questions and Comments 
The Commission discussed the application including the extension of Jones Boulevard, the 
location of trail, RM-21 access points, the bridal shop location in relation to the new roadway, 
potential need for signalization on Penn Street at Saratoga, use of RS-9 zoning in this 
development, accesses to multi family, size of home on RS-9, the potential price point of homes, 
and the location of a park in this area.  
 
Recommendation to the City Council 
Willer moved, A’Hearn seconded that the Planning Commission accept the two staff 
recommended findings: the proposed zonings would be consistent with the North Liberty 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Plan; and the proposed use and density of the development would 
be compatible with the area; and forward the zoning map amendment with the following 
conditions:  

1. That the preliminary plat be approved at the time of the rezoning. 
2. The preliminary site plan for the RM-21 portion of the development be approved at the 

time of the rezoning.  
to the City Council with a recommendation for approval.  The vote was: ayes – Keogh, Heisler, 
Vincent, A’Hearn, Willer, Staber; nays – none; absent – Bathke. Motion approved.  
 
Matnic, LLC Zoning Map Amendment 
Staff Presentation 
Rusnak presented the request of Matnic, LLC for a zoning map amendment (rezoning) on 
approximately 1.48 acres from RS-3 Single-Unit Residence District to RM-21 Multiple-Unit 
Residence District on property located at 10 Jaro Way.  Staff recommends approval with two 
findings:  

1. The proposed zonings would be consistent with the North Liberty Comprehensive Plan 
Land Use Plan; and  

2. The proposed use and density of the development would be compatible with the area. 
 
Applicant Presentation 
Jon Marner, MMS Consultants and Matt Lepic, the developer, were present and offered additional 
information on the application.   
 
Public Comments  



City of North Liberty – 2022 
Page: 3 

Two groups attended the Good Neighbor Meeting. Three emails were received in objection to the 
project regarding the development being rentals and requests to maintain the residential 
structure on the property.  
 
 
 
Questions and Comments 
The Commission discussed the application including moving the home on the property, traffic 
concerns in the area, potentially updating the crosswalk on Front Street with a flashing sign and 
the connection with neighboring development. 
 
Recommendation to the City Council 
Heisler moved, Willer seconded that the Planning Commission accept the two staff recommended 
findings, the proposed zonings would be consistent with the North Liberty Comprehensive Plan 
Land Use Plan; and the proposed use and density of the development would be compatible with 
the area; and forward the zoning map amendment to the City Council with a recommendation for 
approval. The vote was: ayes – Staber, Heisler, A’Hearn, Keogh, Willer, Vincent: nays – none; absent 
– Bathke. 
 
Approval of Previous Minutes 
A’Hearn moved, Staber seconded to approve the minutes of the February 1, 2022 meeting. The 
vote was all ayes. Minutes approved. 
 
Old Business 
No old business was presented. 
 
New Business 
Rusnak updated the Commission on the status of the Comprehensive Plan.  Keogh will not be 
attending the next two meetings due to a conflict.   
 
Adjournment 
At 7:22 p.m., A’Hearn moved, Willer seconded to adjourn. The vote was all ayes. Meeting adjourned.   
 
Signed:  
Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk 
 




